JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME

CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Twenty-ninth Session International Conference Centre, Geneva, Switzerland 3-7 July 2006

Report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Commission:

a) Adopted amendments to the Rules of Procedure and other amendments to the Procedural Manual, including the splitting of the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants into the Committee on Food Additives and the Committee on Contaminants in Foods;

- b) Adopted 26 new or revised Codex standards or related texts;
- c) Approved a number of new work proposals and proposals for discontinuation of work;
- d) Approved the activity reduction measures for the 2006-2007 biennium, including reduction of the Executive Committee meetings from four to three sessions while expressing a serious concern about the fact that one session of the Executive Committee had to be cancelled due to budgetary shortage; and requested FAO and WHO to continue to give high priority, in their regular budgets, to Codex and Codex-related activities;
- e) Agreed to invite the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committees to comment on the draft Strategic Plan 2008-2013 at their forthcoming session;
- f) Noted with satisfaction the progress made in implementing the proposals based on the recommendations from the Codex Evaluation (2002); and agreed to continue consideration of the proposals made by the Secretariat on the review of Codex committee structure and mandates of Codex committees and task forces;
- g) Agreed to establish Codex *Ad Hoc* Intergovernmental Task Forces on Antimicrobial Resistance and on the Handling and Processing of Quick Frozen, while deferring to its 31st Session the decision on whether to start new work on animal feeding;
- h) Noted with satisfaction the collaboration and cooperation between Codex and other international organisations, namely the OIE and the IPPC;
- i) Expressed its appreciation to FAO and WHO and to the countries having made donations to the FAO/WHO Trust Fund for Enhanced Participation in Codex;
- j) Expressed its appreciation to FAO and WHO for their ongoing activities in support of Codex, namely provision of scientific advice and capacity building in food safety and quality;
- k) Elected the following Officers of the Commission for their second term:
 - Chairperson: Mr Claude J.S. Mosha (United Republic of Tanzania),
 - Vice-Chairpersons: Ms Karen Hulebak (USA), Ms. Noraini Mohd. Othman (Malaysia) and Mr Wim van Eck (the Netherlands)
- 1) Designated/confirmed the host governments of thirty Codex subsidiary bodies.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Paragraphs
INTRODUCTION	1-3
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA	4-5
REPORT BY THE CHAIRPERSON ON THE 57 th and 58 th SESSIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE	6-14
AMENDMENTS TO THE PROCEDURAL MANUAL OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION	15
Proposed Amendments to the Rules of Procedure	16-21
Proposals to Amend Other Sections of the Procedural Manual	
Amendments to the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related texts, Guide to the Consideration of Standards at Step 8 and Guide to the Procedure for the Revision and Amendment of Codex Standards	
Consequential Amendments to the Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings of Codex Committee and Ad hoc Intergovernmental Task Forces	
Amendments to the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius	24-25
Terms of Reference of the Committee on Food Additives and the Committee on Contaminants in Foods	26-29
Draft Revised Criteria for Prioritization Process of Compounds for Evaluation by JMPR	30-32
The Use of Analytical Results	33-35
DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AT STEP 8 OF THE PROCEDURE	36-37
Cereals, Pulses and Legumes	38
Food Additives and Contaminants	39-66
Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification Systems	67-73
Food Labelling	74-78
Methods of Analysis and Sampling	79-81
Milk and Milk Products	82-90
Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses	91-93
Pesticide Residues	94
Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods	95-96
PROPOSED DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AT STEP 5	97-98
Food Additives and Contaminants	99-107
Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses	108-110
Methods of Analysis and Sampling	111-112
Milk and Milk Products	113
Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods	114-115
Quick Frozen Foods	116-119

ALINORM 06/29/41 iii

REVOCATION OF EXISTING CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS	120-123
PROPOSALS FOR THE ELABORATION OF NEW STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AND FOR THE DISCONTINUATION OF WORK	124
Elaboration of New Standards And Related Texts	124-135
Discontinuation of Work	136-138
FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY MATTERS	139-151
STRATEGIC PLANNING OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION	152-155
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE JOINT FAO/WHO EVALUATION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS AND OTHER FAO AND WHO WORK ON FOOD STANDARDS	
General Implementation Status	156-157
Review of the Codex Committee Structure and Mandates of Codex Committees and Task Forces	158-161
MATTERS ARISING FROM REPORTS OF THE COMMISSION, CODEX COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES	162-163
Antimicrobial Resistance	164-169
Animal Feeding	170-174
WHO Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health	175-176
Committee on Milk and Milk Products	177-184
Committee on General Principles	185-187
Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants	188-195
Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods	196
Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling	197-198
RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND OTHER INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS	
Relations between the Codex Alimentarius Commission and Other International Intergovernmental Organizations	199-208
Relations Between the Codex Alimentarius Commission and International Non-Governmental Organizations	209-213
FAO/WHO PROJECT AND TRUST FUND FOR ENHANCED PARTICIPATION IN CODEX	214-217
OTHER MATTERS ARISING FROM FAO AND WHO	218-226
ELECTION OF OFFICERS OF THE COMMISSION	227
DESIGNATION OF COUNTRIES RESPONSIBLE FOR APPOINTING THE CHAIRPERSON OF CODEX COMMITTEES AND $AD\ HOC$ TASK FORCES	228-232
OTHER BUSINESS	233

APPENDICES

		Page
I	List of Participants	27
II	Amendments to the Rules of Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission	73
III	Amendments to the Procedural Manual	74
IV	List of Standards and Related Texts adopted by the Twenty-ninth Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission	85
V	List of Draft Standards and Related Texts adopted at Step 5 by the Twenty-ninth Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission	88
VI	List of Draft Standards and Related Texts held at Step 8 by the Twenty-ninth Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission	89
VII	List of Standards and Related Texts Revoked by the Twenty-ninth Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission	90
VIII	List of Approved New Work	91
IX	List of Discontinued Work	92
X	Terms of Reference of the <i>Ad Hoc</i> Codex Intergovernmental Task Force on the Processing and Handling of Quick Frozen Foods	93
XI	Terms of Reference of the <i>Ad Hoc</i> Codex Intergovernmental Task Force on Antimicrobial Resistance	94
XII	Current Chairmanship of Codex Subsidiary Bodies	95

INTRODUCTION

1. The Codex Alimentarius Commission held its Twenty-ninth Session at the International Conference Centre, Geneva, Switzerland, from 3 - 7 July 2006. Dr Claude J. S. Mosha (Tanzania), Chairperson of the Commission presided over the Session, assisted by the Vice-Chairpersons Ms Noraini Mohd. Othman (Malaysia), Dr Karen Hulebak (United States of America) and Dr Wim van Eck (Netherlands). The Session was attended by 376 delegates, alternates and advisors from 109 Member countries and 1 Member Organisation, 1 Observer Country, 59 international governmental and non-governmental organizations including UN agencies. A list of participants, including the Secretariat, is given in Appendix I to this report.

- 2. The Session was opened by Dr Kraisid Tontisirin, Director, Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division, Agriculture, Biosecurity, Nutrition and Consumer Protection Department, FAO and Ms Weber-Mosdorf, Assistant Director-General, Sustainable Development and Healthy Environments, WHO, respectively.
- 3. A two minutes' silence was observed in memory of Dr Jong-Wook Lee (Director-General, WHO) and Mr David Nhari (former Vice-Chair of the Commission and former Coordinator for Africa).

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA (Agenda Item 1)¹

- 4. The Commission adopted the Provisional Agenda as its Agenda for the Session.
- 5. The Commission noted the division of competence between the European Community and its Member States, presented by the Delegation of the European Community as LIM.2, according to Rule II.5 of the Rules of Procedure. The Delegation of the European Community informed the Commission that the positions taken by the European Community were also supported by Bulgaria and Romania, for which the accession treaty to the EC had been signed and officially published.²

REPORT BY THE CHAIRPERSON ON THE 57^{th} and 58^{th} SESSIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Agenda item 2)³

- 6. In accordance with Rule V.7 of the Rules of Procedure, the Chairperson reported to the Commission on the outcome of the 57th and 58th Sessions of the Executive Committee, as follows.
- 7. The 57th Session of the Executive Committee had considered in particular the preparation of the Strategic Plan 2008-2013; the implementation of the recommendations from the Codex Evaluation; financial and budgetary matters; and the Codex Trust Fund.
- 8. As regards the critical review, the Commission agreed to endorse the following recommendations to Codex Committees:
 - To prioritize work when the agenda of the Committee includes many items of work;
 - To invite all Chairpersons, or host countries for adjourned committees, to provide their comments on the items of work that have been under consideration for more than five years; and
 - To inform the Executive Committee and the Commission of the proposed timeframe for completion of all items that have been approved as new work prior to 2004.
- 9. The Commission agreed with the arrangements proposed by the Executive Committee to carry out the critical review: the session held immediately prior to the Commission would review proposals for new work and the session held between the sessions of the Commission would monitor standards development.
- 10. The Delegation of Chile expressed the view that consideration should also be given to draft standards that were held at the level of the Commission for several sessions. The Commission noted that the critical review was intended to facilitate the advancement of texts through the elaboration procedure until their submission for adoption to the Commission but not their consideration at the level of the Commission.

_

ALINORM 06/29/1; ALINORM 06/29/1A Rev.1; CAC/29 LIM 2 (Statement of Competence and Voting Rights submitted by the European Community and its Member States)

The positions expressed by the European Community on items on which it had competence according to LIM 2 represented the views of the 22 EC Member States present in the room

³ ALINORM 06/29/3 and ALINORM 06/29/3A

11. As regards matters arising from Codex Committee and Task Forces, the Commission agreed that flexibility should be allowed in order to facilitate timely development of the documents by the *Ad Hoc* Task Force on Foods Derived from Biotechnology. Approval of new work had been recommended by the 58th Session of the Executive Committee and would be considered at the present session under Agenda Item 7.

- 12. The Commission noted that the advice provided by the 58th Session of the Executive Committee on several matters for consideration by the present session would be considered under the relevant Agenda Items.
- 13. As regards the critical review, the Commission endorsed the criteria proposed by the 58th Session of the Executive Committee for conducting the critical review:
 - When progress on a standard is delayed due to the need for scientific advice, the Executive Committee could encourage FAO and WHO to schedule an expert consultation to provide such advice in a timely manner, and recommend suspension of work until such time as scientific advice became available;
 - When scientific advice has been provided and a standard has been under consideration for more than
 five years, the Executive Committee should urge the Committee concerned to take action within a
 specified timeframe;
 - When an item has been considered for several sessions without any progress and there is no prospect of reaching consensus, the Executive Committee could propose suspension of work at a particular Step in the Elaboration Procedure for a specified period of time or discontinuation of work, or corrective action to be taken to achieve progress, fully taking into consideration the information provided by the subsidiary body concerned.
- 14. As regards future work on antimicrobial resistance, the Commission supported the proposal of the Executive Committee to establish an in-session working group open to all interested members and observers to consider the comments received in reply to CL 2005/33-CAC and prepare proposals for the plenary, without prejudice to the decisions to be taken by the latter, on the terms of reference, time frame for completion of work and name for the Task Force (see Item 11).

AMENDMENTS TO THE PROCEDURAL MANUAL OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION (Agenda item 3)⁴

15. The Secretariat informed the Commission that the amendment to the Statutes proposed by its 28th Session as a consequential amendment following the abolition of the Acceptance Procedure had been approved by the 33rd FAO Conference and the 59th World Health Assembly, thereby allowing the amendment to enter into force.

Proposed Amendments to the Rules of Procedure

Amendments concerning the duration of the terms of office of the Members of the Executive Committee

- 16. The Commission noted that there was general support for the amendments to current Rule III. Officers, Rule IV. Coordinators and Rule V. Executive Committee, as proposed by the Committee on General Principles.
- 17. The Commission determined that the quorum specified in Rule VI.7 for the amendment of the Rules of Procedure was constituted⁵. In accordance with Rule VIII.7 and XV.1 of the Commission's Rules of Procedure and Rule XII.7 of the General Rules of FAO, the Commission agreed to proceed to a single roll call vote for all amendments, as they all concerned the duration of terms of office of the Members of the Executive Committee, with the following results.

Votes in favour:

Afghanistan, Algeria, Angola, Antigua and Barbuda, Argentina, Armenia, Australia, Austria, Barbados, Belgium, Benin, Bhutan, Botswana, Brazil, Bulgaria, Burundi, Canada, Chile, China, Colombia, Cook Islands, Costa Rica, Cuba, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Egypt, Eritrea, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Ghana, Greece, Guatemala, Guinea, Honduras, Hungary, Iceland, India, Indonesia, Islamic Republic of Iran, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Jordan, Kenya, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Lesotho, Lithuania, Malaysia, Mali, Mexico, Morocco, Netherlands, New Zealand, Nigeria, Norway, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Poland, Portugal, Qatar,

ALINORM 06/29/4, ALINORM 06/29/4A (comments of Argentina, Brazil, Malaysia), ALINORM 06/29/4-Add.1, LIM 10 (comments of Australia, Philppines, Thailand), LIM 12 (comments of India)

The number of Codex Member Countries [173] / 2 + 1 = 87.5; Rounded down to 87

Republic of Korea, Rwanda, Samoa, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Slovak Republic, Slovenia, South Africa, Spain, Sudan, Swaziland, Sweden, Switzerland, Syrian Arab Republic, Thailand, Tunisia, Turkey, Uganda, Ukraine, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom, United Republic of Tanzania, United States of America, Uruguay, Viet Nam

Votes against: None

Abstaining: None

Tally: 89 votes cast, 89 in favour, 0 against, 0 abstentions (two-thirds majority required 60)

Result: The amendment was adopted

18. The Commission noted that the amendments to the Rules of Procedure would enter into force only after their approval by the Directors-General of FAO and WHO (Rule XVI). The amendments to the Rules as adopted by the Commission are presented in Appendix II to the present report.

- 19. The Representative of the FAO Legal Counsel informed the Commission that the amendments, following approval of the Directors-General, should apply to the elections to be held at the 30th Session in 2007 and provided the following clarification.
- 20. As regards the eligibility for election in 2007 of the various members of the Executive Committee (i.e. the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairpersons, the members elected on a geographic basis and the Coordinators), it was proposed that the matter be handled in light of the spirit and purpose of the new provisions. The purpose of the new scheme was that assuming re-election of members of the Executive Committee, and regardless of the frequency of sessions either annual or biennial members would serve up to between three and four years. Also for the sake of convenience and fairness it was proposed that the period of office served under the current rules should be taken into consideration at the 30th Session in 2007 when deciding on the eligibility of members holding office at that point in time. Therefore, at the 30th Session in 2007, members having served in their respective positions for 3 years or more would not be eligible for re-election for the same positions. Members having served for less than this period of time would be eligible for re-election. This solution would apply "across the board" to all categories of members of the Executive Committee, i.e. the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairpersons, the members elected on a geographic basis and the Coordinators.
- 21. The Commission **agreed** to proceed as proposed by the Representative of the FAO Legal Counsel.

Proposals to Amend Other Sections of the Procedural Manual

Amendments to the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related texts, Guide to the Consideration of Standards at Step 8 of the Procedure of the Elaboration of Codex Standards including Consideration of any Statement Relating to Economic Impact and Guide to the Procedure for the Revision and Amendment of Codex Standards

<u>Consequential Amendments to the Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings of Codex Committee and Ad hoc</u> Intergovernmental Task Forces

- 22. The Delegation of Malaysia, while supporting the amendments to the Elaboration Procedure Part 3 and 4, expressed the view that six paragraphs in the *Guide to the Consideration of Standards at Step 8*, proposed for deletion, should be reinserted in order to ensure that Codex work was not affected by the adoption of insufficiently considered amendments, and to allow delegations sufficient time to consider these amendments. The Delegation of India pointed out that the following provisions of the *Guide* should be reinserted in the Elaboration Procedure at Step 8: paragraph 2 on the timing of the Circular Letter in order to ensure timely availability of comments; and paragraph 6 allowing Members to draw the attention of the Commission to any matter which had not, in that Member's opinion, been satisfactorily resolved at an earlier step. These proposals were supported by several delegations, who stressed the importance of the issue of economic impact, especially for developing countries.
- 23. After some discussion, the Commission agreed to adopt the amendments as proposed and to refer the proposals made by India in its written comments (LIM 12) and Malaysia to the next session of the Committee on General Principles in order to consider whether the reinsertion of the paragraphs deleted in the *Guide* was needed in the Elaboration Procedure.

Amendments to the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius

24. The Delegation of Malaysia, supported by several delegations and one Observer, expressed its concern with the deletion of the provisions concerning advisory texts in the General Principles. The Delegation stressed the importance of advisory texts to provide guidance to governments as regards food control and pointed out that the Commission should consider elaborating related texts such as codes of practice when scientific data were insufficient or incomplete to elaborate a standard. The Delegation therefore proposed to retain the provisions on the advisory status of "related texts". Some delegations expressed the view that if no reference was made to advisory texts, it might be understood that Codex texts were mandatory. The Secretariat recalled that the Committee on General Principles had agreed to delete these specific provisions on "advisory texts" taking into account that all Codex standards and related texts were advisory, and to avoid confusion on the status of different types of Codex texts.

25. In view of the substantial issues raised by several delegations, the Commission agreed to return the proposed amendment to the Committee on General Principles for further consideration, taking into account the comments presented at the present session.

Terms of Reference of the Committee on Food Additives and the Committee on Contaminants in Foods

- 26. The Commission adopted the terms of reference proposed for both committees with the amendments proposed by the Delegation of Brazil in its written comments, thereby deciding to replace the Committee on Additives and Contaminants (CCFAC) with the Committees on Food Additives (CCFA) and on Contaminants in Foods (CCCF). The Commission agreed that each Committee should review its terms of reference at its first session.
- 27. The Commission agreed that the responsibility for considering food irradiation should be transferred to the Committee on Food Hygiene and adopted the amendment to point g) of its terms of reference as proposed.
- 28. The Delegation of Finland, speaking on behalf of the Member States of the European Community present at the session, expressed the view that the new Committees should discuss the consequential changes presented in ALINORM 06/29/4-Add.1 for subsequent consideration by the Commission, and that in the meantime the provisions of these texts should remain in force insofar as they related to the work of the two committees.
- 29. The Commission adopted the consequential amendments to several sections of the Procedural Manual as proposed in ALINORM 06/29/4-Add.1, with the understanding that they could be reviewed by the Commission in the light of future developments.

Draft Revised Criteria for Prioritization Process of Compounds for Evaluation by JMPR

- 30. The Delegation of India, supported by other delegations, proposed to insert an additional criterion to ensure that priority was given to pesticides and commodities of relevance for developing countries.
- 31. The Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as Chair of the Committee on Pesticide Residues, recalled that the request for evaluation of compounds by JMPR was conditional on the availability of the relevant data, especially supervised trials, and that the application of national and Codex MRLs at export and import was being considered by the Committee as a separate issue. The Commission also recalled that the Criteria for the Establishment of Work Priorities specifically referred to the needs of developing countries.
- 32. After some discussion, the Commission adopted the Draft Revised Criteria as proposed and agreed to refer to the Committee on Pesticide Residues the question of prioritization for pesticides and commodities of relevance to developing countries both in respect of new chemicals and periodic re-evaluation.

The Use of Analytical Results: Sampling Plans, Relationship between the Analytical Results, the Measurement Uncertainty, Recovery Factors and Provisions in Codex Standards

- 33. The Delegation of Thailand, supported by other delegations, expressed its concerns with the provisions for measurement uncertainty and pointed out and that if each Commodity Committee had the possibility to decide how to address measurement uncertainty, this would lead to inconsistency throughout Codex and therefore clear guidance should be provided on the allowance for measurement uncertainty. The Delegation therefore proposed to defer the adoption of the provisions on the Use of Analytical Results until such guidance had been developed.
- 34. After some discussion, the Commission agreed to adopt the recommendations as proposed and to refer to the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling the request made by some delegations for further guidance in order to address measurement uncertainty.

35. The amendments to the Procedural Manual as adopted by the Commission are presented in Appendix III to the present report.

DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AT STEP 8 OF THE PROCEDURE (Agenda Item 4)⁶

- 36. The Commission **adopted** the Draft Standards and Related Texts submitted by its subsidiary bodies at Step 8 (including those submitted at Step 5 with a recommendation to omit Steps 6 and 7 and those submitted at Step 5 of the Accelerated Procedure) as presented in Appendix IV to this report.
- 37. The following paragraphs provide additional information on the comments made and the decisions taken on certain items.

Cereals, Pulses and Legumes

Draft Standard for Instant Noodles⁷

38. The Commission recalled that work on the Draft Standard had been initiated by the Coordinating Committee for Asia and further developed by the Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes by correspondence following its adoption at Step 5, and noted that all provisions had been endorsed by the relevant horizontal Committees. The Commission **adopted** the Draft Standard as proposed with the editorial corrections proposed by Japan in its written comments.

Food Additives and Contaminants

Draft Revision of the Preamble of the Codex General Standard for Food Additives⁸

- 39. The Delegation of India, referring to its written comment in LIM 8, proposed amendments to Sections 1.2 and 3.1 of the Preamble.
- 40. The Commission, noting that the points raised by India had already been considered by the Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants, **adopted** the proposed revision of the Preamble of the Codex General Standard for Food Additives as proposed. The Commission noted that the Delegation of India could raise its concern at a future session of the Committee on Food Additives.

Draft Food Additive Provisions of the General Standard for Food Additives (GSFA) at Step 8 and Proposed Draft Food Additives Provisions of the General Standard for Food Additives (GSFA) at Step 5/89

- 41. The Commission noted that within the framework of the Critical Review, the 58th Session of the Executive Committee had provided general guidance to the CCFAC on the development of the GSFA in relation to the food additive provisions in commodity standards.
- 42. The Commission **endorsed** the following recommendations of the Executive Committee: ¹⁰
 - (i) The Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants (CCFAC) should, in its future report, clearly establish a distinction between:
 - a) additive provisions included in adopted standards and proposed for incorporation into the GSFA;
 - b) revocation of existing relevant provisions in the GSFA in order to ensure consistency with existing standards; and
 - c) proposed amendments to current additives provisions in Codex standards for inclusion in the GSFA. These amendments may be referred to the relevant Committee (when active committees exist and relevant standards are under consideration). The Committee may develop them as new provisions or amendments to the GSFA, in which case they should follow the Step Procedure in order to allow for comments.

ALINORM 06/29/5; ALINORM 06/29/3A; ALINORM 06/29/5A (comments of Argentina, Australia, Brazil, China, Guatemala, Indonesia, Japan, Malaysia, New Zealand, Peru, Switzerland, United States and IDF); LIM 4 (comments of Brazil, China, Japan, Peru, Thailand, IADSA and ISDI); LIM 8 (Brazil, Honduras, India, Kenya, Malaysia, Peru, Philippines, Switzerland, Thailand and AIIBP); LIM 13 (comments of Thailand), CAC/29-LIM 15 (comments of India)

Annex to CL 2006/15-CPL

⁸ ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix V

⁹ ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix VII and Appendix XI

¹⁰ ALINORM 96/29/3A, paras. 6-8

(ii) When provision for additives for inclusion into the GSFA result in amendments to additive provisions in Codex standards, consequential amendments should be made to the relevant standards, and that the report of CCFAC should include a table showing the existing additive provisions in Codex standards.

- 43. The Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as Chair of the CCFAC, indicated that the CCFAC would make its best effort to assure transparency in making proposals to the Commission, during the course of elaborating the GSFA.
- 44. Regarding the question on whether the levels of some food additives in Food Category No.11.1.2 (Powdered sugar, powdered dextrose) and Food Category No.12.1.1 (Salt) in the GSFA were different from the current levels of them corresponding to relevant commodity standards¹¹, the Delegation of the Netherlands clarified that the provision of some food additives in the GSFA, such as phosphates in powdered sugar, ferrocyanides in salt, had been grouped together because they were assigned a group ADI in JECFA evaluation. The Delegation, thus, assured the Commission that there were no changes made when transferring the additives provision in individual standards to the GSFA.
- 45. The Delegation further clarified that all provisions in Food Category No.02.2.1.2 (Margarine and similar products), Food category No.13.1.1 (Infant formulae) and Food Category No.13.1.2 (Follow-up formulae), being proposed for inclusion in the GSFA (ALINORM 06 29/12, Appendix VII) were in accordance with the latest version of the standards adopted by the Commission and that as and when new or revised standards would be adopted the relevant provisions would be updated accordingly in the GSFA.
- 46. The Delegation of the United States strongly supported the adoption of the draft and proposed draft food additive provisions of the GSFA without any changes and expressed its view that the recommendations made by the 58th Session of the Executive Committee were not consistent with the status of the GSFA as the single reference point for food additives in the Codex Alimentarius and were delaying the work of the CCFAC unnecessarily. The Delegation of the European Community and some other delegations also supported the adoption of the draft and proposed draft food additive provisions of the GSFA as presented.
- 47. The Delegation of Costa Rica proposed that some additives in Food Category No. 2.2.1.2 (Margarine and similar products), No. 02.1 (Fats and Oils essentially free from water), and No. 02.1.2 (Vegetable Oils and Fats) should not be revoked because the use of those additives had a major impact for such food products.
- 48. The Delegation of Malaysia pointed out that Draft Standard for Fat Spreads and Blended Spreads, and the Draft Revised Standard for Infant Formula were under elaboration by the Committee on Fats and Oils and the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses respectively, and that the Standard for Follow-up Formula was closely related to the Standard for Infant Formula. The Delegation therefore proposed that the adoption of food additive provisions for "margarine and similar products" and food additive provisions for "Infant formulae" and "Follow-up formulae" in the GSFA be deferred.
- 49. After some discussion, the Commission **adopted** the draft and proposed draft food additive provisions of the GSFA (ALINORM 06/29/12 Appendix VII and XI) at Step 8 or Step 5/8 with the exception of Food Categories Nos. 02.2.1.2, 13.1.1, 13.1.2 in those two Appendices and **decided** to defer the consideration of food additive provisions of those food categories, pending finalization of the Draft Standard for Fat Spreads and Blended Spreads, and the Draft Standard for Infant Formula and submission of the additives sections of these standards for endorsement by CCFA.
- 50. The Delegations of the United States and the European Community reserved their position on the decision.
- 51. As recommended by the Executive Committee¹², the Commission invited CCFA to review Food Category 02.2.1.2 in order to ensure one-to-one correspondence with the relevant commodity standards.

_

¹¹ ALINORM 06/29/3A para.11 and para. 12

¹² ALINORM 06/29/3A para.10

Draft Maximum Levels for Cadmium¹³ in marine bivalve molluscs (excluding oysters and scallops) and in cephalopods (without viscera) and in polished rice¹⁴

(i) Maximum Level for Cadmium in molluscs

- 52. The Delegation of the European Community noted that the CCFAC, at its 38th Session, had started the discussion to elaborate the level of cadmium 1.0 mg/kg as adopted by the 28th Session of the Commission at Step 5. The Delegation expressed the view that intake of cadmium should be reduced to as low as reasonably achievable (ALARA) and opposed the adoption by the Commission, without justification, of a higher level of 2 mg/kg.
- 53. On this point, the Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as Chair of the CCFAC, clarified that the CCFAC had agreed to the higher level of 2mg/kg, taking into account the impact assessment of dietary intake undertaken by the 64th JECFA at three different maximum levels of cadmium and its conclusion that the proposed level of 1mg/kg and one level higher level of 2mg/kg had little impact on mean intakes of cadmium.
- 54. The Commission **adopted** the maximum level of 2mg/kg for cadmium in marine bivalve molluscs (excluding oysters and scallops) and in cephalopods (without viscera) as proposed at Step 8. The Delegation of the European Community reserved its position on this decision.

(ii) Maximum Level for Cadmium in Polished Rice

- 55. Many delegations supported the adoption of the proposed maximum level of 0.4 mg/kg for Cadmium in polished rice as proposed by CCFAC, referring to the 64th JECFA intake and exposure assessment which had concluded that the level of 0.4 mg/kg was sufficient to protect human health.
- 56. Several other delegations expressed their concern that the intake assessment conducted by the 64th JECFA had not taken into consideration different food intake patterns in some countries / regions and exposure of cadmium to vulnerable groups including children and that the proposed level was not acceptable for countries where rice was a major staple food.
- 57. The Representatives of FAO and WHO, on behalf of JECFA Secretariats, clarified that as many as 13 regional diets had been used by the JECFA evaluation and that even under the highest baseline intake scenario the estimated intake remained at 34 % of the PTWI.
- 58. The Delegation of the European Community did not object to the adoption of the Draft Maximum Level, noting that rice containing cadmium at 0.4 mg/kg was produced in very limited geographical locations and, therefore, it was unlikely that such rice would enter international trade.
- 59. After some discussion, the Commission **adopted** the maximum level of 0.4 mg/kg for cadmium in polished rice as proposed at Step 8. The Delegations of Egypt, Honduras, Nigeria, Norway, Qatar, Singapore and the United Arab Emirates reserved their position on this decision.

Proposed Draft Code of Practice for the Prevention and Reduction of Dioxin and Dioxin-like PCB Contamination in Food and Feeds¹⁵

- 60. The Delegation of Thailand, supported by India, referring to its written comment in LIM 13, stated that some recommendations in the proposed draft code were too broadly formulated for users to follow and more practical stepwise guidance was needed. The Delegation also expressed its concern that the methods of analysis currently available required expensive investment and presented challenges for developing countries. This position was supported by some other delegations. These delegations suggested to defer the adoption of the section on analytical methods or to refer it to the Committee on Analysis and Sampling (CCMAS) for further study.
- 61. The Delegation of the European Community, supported by the United States, pointed out that concerns raised by some countries had already been addressed by the Committee and that the methods of analysis and Good Laboratory Practices were considered critically important for contaminants such as dioxin and dioxin-like PCBs.

-

For inclusion in the Codex General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods (CODEX STAN 193-1995)

¹⁴ ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXV

¹⁵ ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXVI

62. The Commission **adopted** the Code of Practice as proposed at Step 5/8, and agreed to invite the CCMAS to review the sections on sampling and analytical methods and assess the need for future revisions of the Code, taking into account the comments made at the current Session.

Proposed Draft Revised Guideline Levels for Radionuclides in Foods Contaminated Following a Nuclear or Radiological Emergency for Use in International Trade¹⁶

- 63. Some delegations expressed their concern that the proposed Guideline Levels would not sufficiently protect consumers' health and stated that long term adverse effects of radionuclides to human health should be taken into account.
- 64. The Representative of IAEA clarified that the proposed Guideline Levels for radionuclides were not different from the current levels adopted by the Commission and that the scope of the text had been extended while additional radionuclides were included. The Representative also clarified that the Guideline Level applied to situations related to nuclear accidents or radiological events and were not meant for use in routine monitoring conducted at national level for screening and that other existing international conventions could be applied to prevent distributions of contaminated foods.
- 65. The Commission **adopted** the revision of Guideline Levels for Radionuclides as proposed at Step 5/8.
- 66. The Delegations of Egypt, Malaysia, Singapore and Sudan reserved their position on this decision.

Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification Systems

Proposed Draft Principles and Guidelines for Imported Food Inspection Based on Risk¹⁷

- 67. The Commission noted that definitions for terms such as "science based" and "risk based" were under discussion in the Committee on General Principles based on a discussion paper from New Zealand¹⁸ but did not see this as an impediment to adopting the proposed draft principles.
- 68. The Commission noted the amendments proposed by India and Peru contained in LIM 8 and LIM 4 respectively. However the Commission was of the opinion that a thorough discussion had been held on the proposed draft principles and guidelines in the CCFICS and that reopening the discussion would delay the adoption of the document.
- 69. The Commission **adopted** the Proposed Draft Principles and Guidelines at Steps 5/8, with the omission of Steps 6 and 7, for inclusion as an Appendix to the Codex *Guidelines for Food Import Control Systems* (CAC/GL 47-2003). The Delegations of India and Peru reserved their position on this decision.

Proposed Draft Principles for Traceability/Product Tracing as a Tool within a Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification System¹⁹

- 70. The Delegation of India, while agreeing to the Proposed Draft Principles in general, proposed in LIM 8 and LIM 15 substantive amendments to the text. However, the Commission did not agree to these proposals, noting that the points raised by India had been extensively discussed in a Working Group and the 14th Session of the CCFICS. The Delegation of India reserved its position on this decision.
- 71. The Observer from OIE informed the Commission that in OIE's Terrestrial Animal Health Code, Section on Identification and Traceability of Live Animals, reference was made to relevant Codex texts. The Observer was of the opinion that a similar reference to OIE and IPPC could be included in the proposed draft principles in order to encourage members to set up a traceability system that encompassed the entire food chain without gaps and duplication.
- 72. The Commission agreed to include a reference to the OIE and IPPC texts by adding, at the end of paragraph 1, the phrase: "as well as those adopted by IPPC and OIE where appropriate.". The delegations of Chile, Malaysia and Thailand reserved their position on this decision.
- 73. The Commission **adopted** the proposed draft principles as amended at Steps 5/8 with the omission of Steps 6 and 7.

16

ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXXI

ALINORM 06/29/30, para. 48 and Appendix II

¹⁸ ALINORM 06/29/33, paras 149 to 162

ALINORM 06/29/30, para. 80 and Appendix III

Food Labelling

Draft Amendment to the Guidelines for the Production, Processing, Labelling and Marketing of Organically Produced Foods: Annex 2 Permitted Substances: Table 3²⁰

74. The Commission noted that the 58th Session of the Executive Committee, while conducting the critical review, had recommended returning the Draft Amendment to Step 6 as it had not been circulated for comments at Step 6 prior to the Committee due to its late availability²¹. Some delegations indicated that they had additional comments and supported further consideration of the Draft Table in the Committee.

75. The Commission **agreed** to return the Draft Amendment to Step 6 for comments and further consideration in the Committee on Food Labelling. The Delegations of the European Community and the United States expressed their reservation on this decision.

Proposed Draft Definition of Trans-Fatty Acids (Amendment to the Guidelines on Nutrition Labelling) 22

76. The Commission recalled that its 26th Session, while adopting the revised Guidelines for Nutrition Labelling, had requested the Committee on Food Labelling, in cooperation with the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses, to provide a definition of trans fatty acids²³. Following consideration of the definition by the CCNFSDU and approval as new work through the Accelerated Procedure at the 28th Session of the Commission, the Committee on Food Labelling had finalised the definition at its 35th Session for inclusion in the *Guidelines on Nutrition Labelling*. The Commission **adopted** the Proposed Draft Definition at Step 5 of the Accelerated Procedure as proposed.

General Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars: labelling provisions related to processing aids²⁴

- 77. The Commission recalled that the Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars had been adopted at its 28th Session, with the exception of three processing aids that might cause allergenicity and were subject to specific labelling provisions, therefore requiring endorsement by the Committee on Food Labelling²⁵.
- 78. The Commission noted that the 34th Session of the Committee on Food Labelling had endorsed the labelling provisions in the footnote to the list of processing aids, as proposed by the Task Force on Fruit and Vegetable Juices, and **adopted** these provisions, thereby allowing the inclusion of these processing aids in the Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars.

Methods of Analysis and Sampling

Methods of Analysis and Sampling for inclusion in Codex standards and/or in CODEX STAN 234-1999²⁶

- 79. The Commission was informed that the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling had endorsed all methods of analysis and sampling for inclusion either in draft standards submitted for adoption to the Commission (instant noodles, milk and milk products) or in existing standards (fruit juices, milk and milk products) as part of the regular update of methods. It was also noted that the methods of analysis endorsed by CCMAS in draft standards that were still under development in the relevant Committees were not for consideration by the Commission.
- 80. The Delegation for Thailand, supported by several delegations, expressed its concern with the adoption of isotope mass spectrometry methods as this would create difficulties for developing countries where such costly and sophisticated methods were not available, and proposed to ask the CCMAS to consider alternative methods that would be more generally applicable for the analysis of fruit juices. The Observer from IFU indicated that the methods had been developed following detailed discussion in the Task Force on Fruit and Vegetable Juices and were necessary in order to complete the Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars.

²⁰ ALINORM 06/29/22, Appendix II

²¹ ALINORM 06/29/3A, para. 19

²² ALINORM 06/29/22, Appendix V

²³ ALINORM 03/26/41, para. 72

²⁴ ALINORM 06/29/22, paras 4-5

²⁵ ALINORM 05/28/41, para. 64

ALINORM 06/29/23, Appendix II.

81. After some discussion, the Commission **adopted** the methods proposed in the Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars and recommended that the CCMAS give due regard to methods of analysis that could be used world wide both in developed and developing countries, where applicable. The Commission adopted all other methods as proposed.

Milk and Milk Products²⁷

Draft Standard for a Blend of Evaporated Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat

Draft Standard for a Blend of Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat in Powdered Form

Draft Standard for a Blend of Sweetened Condensed Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat

82. The Delegation of Costa Rica proposed to add the percentage of milk fat and vegetable fat in close proximity to the name of the food. The Commission **adopted** the draft standards with an amendment to the listing under Section 3.1 "Raw Material" to read, "Skimmed milk and skimmed milk powder, other non-fat milk solids and edible vegetable fats / oils", for clarification purposes.

Draft Revised Standards for Cheddar (C-1) and Danbo (C-3)

Proposed Draft Revised Standard for Edam (C-4), Gouda (C-5), Havarti (C-6), Samso (C-7), Emmental (C-9), Tilsiter (C-11), Saint-Paulin (C-13), Provolone (C-15), Cottage Cheese (C-16), Coulommiers (C-18), Cream Cheese (C-31), Camembert (C-33), Brie (C-34) and Proposed Draft Standard for Mozzarella

- 83. The Commission noted that all labelling provisions referred to the Committee on Food Labelling had been endorsed, with the exception of Section 7.2 "Country of Origin". It further noted that the Committee on Milk and Milk Products in response to a request from the CCFL had provided justification to the CCFL to explain the inclusion of this provision.
- 84. Some delegations expressed the view that all the individual standards should be adopted at Step 8 with the exception of Section 7.2, which should be referred back to the CCFL for further discussion, while other delegations supported the adoption of the standards in their entirety as proposed by the CCMMP and were of the opinion that country of origin labelling was essential to avoid misleading the consumer.
- 85. The Delegation of the United States of America, supported by other delegations, noted that the Commission had decided not to undertake new work on the revision of the country of origin labelling provisions in the General Standard for Labelling of Prepackaged Food and pointed out that country of origin labelling was not motivated by food safety concerns and that consumer information issues were matters for national legislation, as provided for in section 4.5.1 of the General Standard for the Labelling of Prepackaged Foods.
- 86. The Delegation of Switzerland expressed the opinion that more general, health-based standards should be developed, in accordance with the recommendations of the Codex Evaluation and the Strategic Framework, to limit the number of individual cheese standards and proposed to return these standards to Step 6.
- 87. The Delegation of Sudan supported the declaration of country of origin and the indication of the animal species to avoid misleading the consumer.
- 88. After lengthy discussion on this provision, the Commission agreed to adopt the proposed draft standards at Step 5, move them to Step 8 with the omission of Steps 6 and 7 and to **retain** all standards at **Step 8** pending further discussion of Section 7.2 "Country of Origin" by the next session of the Committee on Food Labelling, with the understanding that the 30th Session of the Commission revisit the matter, taking into account the view of the CCFL on Section 7.2. These draft standards are presented in Appendix VI to this Report.
- 89. The Commission further noted that in its deliberations on Section 7.2, the CCFL would take into consideration the fact that the General Standard for Labelling of Prepackaged Foods had provisions for Country of Origin which referred to the country of manufacture while in many of the individual cheese standards, generic regional names were specified.
- 90. The Commission noted that several editorial corrections to the Spanish versions of the Proposed Draft Revised Standards for Edam, Mozzarella and Cream Cheese should be made as indicated in the written comments of Argentina (CAC/29 LIM 4).

27

Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses

Draft Revised Standard for Processed Cereal-Based Foods for Infants and Young Children²⁸

The Delegation of Thailand referring to its comments in LIM 13, stated that it was necessary to limit the level of added free sugars in the Draft Revised Standard to be less than 10% of total energy as recommended by the WHO/FAO Expert Consultation on Diet and Nutrition for the Prevention of Non-communicable Diseases and proposed to return the text to the CCNFSDU for further consideration of this issue. This view was supported by several delegations.

- The Delegation of India referring to its comments presented in LIM 8, proposed that the content of the cereal in cereal based foods should be kept at 50% cereal as the minimum, that the energy density of the cereal based foods for infants should be 4-5 kcal/g and that the minimum protein content of cereal based foods for infants and children should be 15%. This view was supported by some delegations.
- 93. After some consideration, the Commission adopted the Draft Revised Standard for Processed Cereal-Based Foods for Infants and Young Children at Step 8 as proposed in Appendix II of ALINORM 06/29/26. The Delegations of Thailand and India reserved their positions on this decision. The Commission agreed to request the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Uses to evaluate the need for revising Sections 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 of the adopted standard in light of the recommendations of the WHO Global Strategy for Diet, Physical Activity and Health.

Pesticide Residues

Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides, including Dried Chili Pepper²⁹

The Commission adopted the MRLs as proposed in Appendices II and III of ALINORM 06/29/24 and noted the reservation expressed by the European Community and Norway on MRLs for methicaarb (132), deltamethrin (135), oxydemeton-methyl (166) and chlorpropham (201).

Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods

Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Veterinary Drugs³⁰

- The Commission adopted the proposed maximum residue limits for Trichlorfon (Metrifonate), Pirlimycin, Cypermethrin / alpha-cypermethrin and Doramectin as proposed at Step 8.
- The Delegations of the European Community and Norway reserved their position on the adoption of maximum residue limits for Trichlorfon in cow milk. The Delegation of Argentina expressed a reservation to the decision for adoption of maximum residue limits for Cypermethrin / alpha-cypermethrin.

PROPOSED DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AT STEP 5 (AGENDA ITEM 5) 31

- The Commission adopted the Proposed Draft Standards and Related Texts at Step 5 submitted by its subsidiary bodies at Step 5 as presented in Appendix V to this report and advanced them to Step 6. The Commission noted that technical comments raised during the session would be referred to the relevant Committees for their consideration. The Commission encouraged members and observers that have submitted comments in writing or orally at the session to submit these comments at Step 6 of the Procedure.
- The following paragraphs provide additional information on the comments made and the decisions taken on certain items

ALINORM 06/29/6-Add.1, ALINORM 06/29/6A (comments of Australia, Bolivia, Brazil, Costa Rica, Norway, Peru, United States, Venezuela, ILCA, ISDI, WSRO (CCNFSDU), Australia (CCRVDF), Australia (Quick Frozen Foods)), CAC/29-LIM 5 (comments of Argentina (CCMAS, CCMMP), Brazil (CCRVDF)), CAC/29-LIM 9 (India, Philippines (CCFAC), Guatemala, Philippines (CCNFSDU), Brazil, Peru (CCMAS), Philippines (CCRVDF), Kenya, IIR (Quick Frozen Foods)), CAC/29-LIM 14 (comments of Thailand), CAC/29-LIM 16 (comments of South Africa)

²⁸ ALINORM 06/29/26, Appendix II.

²⁹ ALINORM 06/29/24, Appendix II.

³⁰ ALINORM 06/29/31, Appendix II.

³¹

Food Additives and Contaminants

Proposed Draft Revision of the Codex Class Names and the International Numbering System for Food Additives³²

99. The Observer from ICBA, while supporting the adoption of the proposed revision, expressed a concern that a functional class "acids" and a subclass "flavour modifiers" were deleted from the Table in Appendix XV and noted that flavour modifiers were an area of active innovation.

- 100. The Observer from IDF expressed a view that "carriers" should not be considered as additives or processing aids and should therefore not be included in the Table
- 101. The Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as Chair of the CCFAC, clarified that the comments made could be addressed at later Steps, and also noted that CCFAC had decided to put the functional classes of carriers and packaging gases in square brackets and had requested the CCFL to clarify the labelling requirements for carriers and packaging gases.
- 102. The Commission **adopted** the proposed draft revision of the Codex Class Names and the International Numbering System for Food Additives at Step 5 as proposed by the Committee and advanced it to Step 6.

Proposed Draft Maximum Level for Total Aflatoxins in Almonds, Hazelnuts and Pistachios for "ready to eat" 33

- 103. The Delegation of Iran stated that the proposed level of 8 μ g/kg for total aflatoxins for ready to eat almonds, hazelnuts and pistachios was a hypothetical level and that it was necessary to wait for the result of dietary exposure assessment to be conducted by JECFA. This view was supported by several delegations.
- 104. The Commission **adopted** the proposed draft Maximum Level for Total Aflatoxins in Almonds, Hazelnuts and Pistachios for "ready to eat" at Step 5 as proposed by the Committee and advanced it to Step 6.

Propose Draft Maximum Levels for Tin in Canned Foods (other than beverages) and in Canned Beverages³⁴

- 105. The Delegation of the European Community stated that the proposed level was not acceptable in the absence of additional toxicology evaluation undertaken by JECFA and that it should be possible to further reduce tin levels by applying good practices in the production of canned foods.
- 106. The Commission **adopted** the proposed draft maximum levels for tin in canned foods at Step 5 as proposed by the Committee and advanced them to Step 6.
- 107. The Delegation of the European Community reserved its position on this decision.

Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses

Proposed Draft Revised Standard for Infant Formula and Formulas for Special Medical Purposes Intended for Infants (Section B)³⁵

- 108. The Delegation of India proposed to modify the Scope of the Standard by deleting the terms "disorder, disease or medical condition" and to indicate that the Standard should cover foods to be consumed only during specific period of age and supported using conversion factors of 6.38 for all milk formula products prepared with milk and 5.71 for infant formula derived from soybean.
- 109. The Delegation of Cuba noted that a number of square brackets remained in the text and encouraged the Committee to finalise the Draft Revised Standard as soon as possible in view of its importance.
- 110. The Commission **adopted** the Proposed Draft Revised Standard at Step 5 with the understanding that technical comments submitted to the Commission and comments made by India would be considered by the next session of the CCNFSDU.

32

ALINORM 06/29/12 Appendix XV

³³ ALINORM 06/29/12 Appendix XXII

ALINORM 06/29/12 Appendix XXVIII

³⁵ ALINORM 06/29/26, para. 126 and Appendix IV.

Methods of Analysis and Sampling

Proposed Draft Guidelines for Settling Disputes on Analytical (Test) Results³⁶

111. The Commission noted the comments made by some delegations on specific sections of the Proposed Draft: the decision to refer to the laboratory selected by the competent authority of the importing country (section 3.3) when no agreement could be reached on the laboratory; the proposal to use analytical duplicate samples in order to confirm or dispute the result concerned; and the question as to applicability of the procedure to microbiological analysis, since the models used had been developed for chemical analysis.

112. The Commission **adopted** the Proposed Draft Guidelines at Step 5 with the understanding that the above comments would be considered by the next Session of the Committee.

Milk and Milk Products

Proposed Draft Model Export Certificate for Milk and Milk Products³⁷

113. The Commission **adopted** the Proposed Draft Model Export Certificate at Step 5 and advanced it to Step 6 and noted that the comments submitted by Argentina (LIM 5) would be considered by a physical Working Group prior to the next Session of the Committee on Milk and Milk Products.

Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods

Proposed Draft Guidelines for the Design and Implementation of National Regulatory Food Safety Assurance Programmes Associated with the Use of Veterinary Drugs in Food Producing Animals³⁸

- 114. The Delegation of Brazil, referring to its written comment in LIM 5, suggested the use of the word "based on risk" instead of "risk-based" throughout the text in order to ensure consistency with definitions for the purpose of Codex.
- 115. The Commission **adopted** the proposed draft Guidelines at Step 5 as proposed by the Committee and advanced them to Step 6, with the understanding that the above comments would be considered by the next Session of the Committee.

Quick Frozen Foods

Proposed Draft Recommended International Code of Practice for the Handling and Processing of Quick Frozen Foods³⁹

- 116. The Commission noted that different procedures had been applied for the revision of the Code since 1999, the latest allocating work by correspondence on the quality provisions, including Defects Action Points Analysis (DAPs), to the US Secretariat assisted by the Codex Secretariat with a view to the finalization of the hygienic/safety provisions by the Committee on Food Hygiene following adoption at Step 5 by the Commission.
- 117. The Commission noted that the extensive work done by correspondence on the quality provisions, including DAPs Analysis, did not succeed in resolving a few outstanding issues, i.e. whether certain quality provisions could better identified as hygienic/safety provisions and the inclusion of DAPs Analysis in the Code. In this respect, several delegations indicated that application of DAPs Analysis was unnecessary and burdensome to the industry while the actual quality provisions in addition to the application of the HACCP system were sufficient to ensure both quality and safety of the product.
- agreed to establish an *Ad Hoc* Intergovernmental Codex Task Force on the Processing and Handling of Quick Frozen Foods under Rule XI.1.b(i) of the Rules of Procedures of the Commission to finalize the Code within a period of two years time with one session of the Task Force. The Commission noted that the agreed Terms of Reference, as presented in Appendix X to this report, would allow the Task Force to discuss and finalize both quality and safety provisions of the Code without having to receive endorsement on the safety provisions by the Committee on Food Hygiene unless the Task Force decided otherwise. The Delegation of the United States expressed the view that if the Task Force was unable to finalise the Code in one meeting, the Commission should consider discontinuing work in the Code.

36

ALINORM 06/29/23, para. 43 and Appendix III

ALINORM 06/29/11, para. 142 and Appendix XXIV

³⁸ ALINORM 06/29/31 Appendix VII

³⁹ ALINORM 06/29/6-Add.1.

119. The Delegation of Thailand expressed its interest in hosting the Task Force subject to availability of funds. The Delegation of the United States indicated that, subject to funding, it would assist Thailand in the practical operation of the Task Force. In order to solve as many outstanding issues as possible before the physical meeting of the Task Force would take place, it was agreed that a Circular Letter be issued requesting comments on the Code now returned to Step 3. The Delegations of Thailand and the United States would revise the Code by correspondence based on the comments submitted at the present session of the Commission and in response to the CL in order to prepare a revised document that would serve as a basis for the discussion at the session of the Task Force

REVOCATION OF EXISTING CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS (Agenda Item 6)⁴⁰

120. The Commission approved the revocation from the *Codex Alimentarius* of previously adopted texts as summarized in Appendix VII to this report. The following paragraphs provide additional information on the decisions taken on certain items.

Food Additives and Contaminants

Food Additive Provisions of the GSFA

- 121. The Delegation of Malaysia, supported by Costa Rica, opposed the revocation of 7 food additive provisions for Food Category 02.1 (Fats and oils essentially free from water) in Annex II of ALINORM 06/29/7 which were not listed in Food Category 02.1.2 (Vegetable oils and fats) in Appendix XI of ALINORM 06/29/12 and proposed that those food additive provisions whose revocation were recommended be referred back to the CCFAC for further discussion, in view of the importance of those additives for food industry.
- 122. The Commission agreed to revoke the food additive provisions in Appendixes VII and XII of ALINORM 06/29/12 as proposed by the Committee, with the exception of Food Categories No.02.2.1.2 (Margarine and similar products), No.13.1.1 (Infant formulae) and No.13.1.2 (Follow-up formulae), and agreed to revoke the food additive provisions in Annex II of ALINORM 06/29/7.
- 123. The Delegation of Malaysia and Costa Rica reserved their position on this decision.

PROPOSALS FOR THE ELABORATION OF NEW STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AND FOR THE DISCONTINUATION OF WORK (Agenda Item 7)⁴¹

ELABORATION OF NEW STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS

124. The Commission approved the elaboration of new standards and related texts as summarized in Appendix VIII to this report. The following paragraphs provide additional information on the comments made and the decisions taken on certain items.

Foods Derived from Biotechnology

Proposed Draft Guideline for the Conduct of Food Safety Assessment of Foods derived from Recombinant-DNA Animals

Proposed Draft Annex to the Codex Guideline for the Conduct of Food Safety Assessment of Foods Derived from Recombinant-DNA Plants (CAC/GL 45-2003) regarding food safety assessment of foods derived from recombinant-DNA plants modified for nutritional or health benefits

- 125. The Delegations of Sudan and Iran expressed their concern about foods derived from biotechnology in view of the risks to human and animal health.
- 126. Other delegations stressed the need to provide guidance to governments in order to carry out safety assessment of foods derived from biotechnology on a scientific basis, as this was essential to protect consumers' health. Some delegations pointed out that this was especially important for developing countries.
- 127. The Commission approved both proposals for new work as proposed.

⁴⁰ ALINORM 06/29/7

⁴¹ ALINORM 06/29/8, ALINORM 06/29/8-Add.1

Food Additives and Contaminants

Code of Practice for the Reduction of Acrylamide in Food

128. The Delegation of Mexico, while not objecting to approval as new work, recalled its concerns with the practical application of measures to reduce contamination by acrylamide. The Delegation also raised a general issue concerning the need to request approval as new work for minor amendments to standards.

Food Labelling

<u>Proposed Draft Amendment to the Guidelines for the Production, Processing, Labelling and Marketing of Organically Produced Foods (Ethylene)</u>

- 129. Some delegations and one observer expressed the view that the use of ethylene for fruit ripening was not compatible with the principles of organic production and would mislead consumers as to the nature of the product, and therefore objected to new work on the addition of ethylene to the list of permitted substances.
- 130. Other delegations pointed out that ethylene was a natural substance produced by fruit species and that its use was compatible with organic production systems. The Delegation of the European Community, while not objecting to approval of new work, expressed the view that the use of ethylene should be limited to kiwifruit.
- 131. The Commission approved the proposal for new work on the addition of ethylene to the list of permitted substances and noted the reservations of the Delegations of Cuba, Egypt and the Philippines on this decision.

Proposed Draft Definition of Advertising in relation to health and nutrition claims

- 132. Some delegations stressed the need to limit new work to the definition of advertising in relation to health and nutrition claims and the Commission recalled that this was the proposal put forward by the Committee on Food Labelling and that no extension to a general definition was under consideration.
- 133. Several delegations and some observers expressed their objections to new work on advertising as the regulation of advertising should be left to national authorities and the establishment of a definition at the international level might prevent governments to establish their national legislation in this area. Some delegations pointed out that the Guidelines for Use of Nutrition and Health Claims could be applied to advertising at the national level. Several other delegations supported new work on a definition of advertising in order to protect consumers from misleading practices, taking into account that advertising might have more impact on consumer choice than labelling, and pointed out that since advertising was not only a national issue, it should be addressed at the international level.
- 134. In reply to a question concerning consideration of this proposal in the framework of the Critical Review, the Commission recalled that there was no project document as this proposal for new work was made in response to a direct request of the Commission to the Committee on Food Labelling. The Commission agreed that the time frame should be five years as mentioned in the Elaboration Procedure, with the understanding that the Committee on Food Labelling could confirm the time frame at its next session and inform the Commission accordingly.
- 135. The Commission approved the proposal for new work on a definition of advertising in relation to health and nutrition claims.

DISCONTINUATION OF WORK

Discontinuation of work on draft and proposed draft Food Additive Provisions of the GSFA

136. The Commission agreed that following its earlier decision on the additives provisions in food categories 02.2.1.2 Margarine and Similar Products, No 13.1.1 Infant Formulae, and 13.1.2 Follow-up Formulae under Agenda Item 4, the additives corresponding to these categories should be deleted from the list of additives in Appendix XIII of ALINORM 06/29/12. The Commission agreed to discontinue work on all other additives provisions as proposed.

<u>Proposed Draft Amendment to the Codex MRL Elaboration Procedure (in Relation to the Establishment of Interim MRLs)</u>

137. The Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as Chair of the Committee on Pesticide Residues, recalled that the Committee had worked on the establishment of interim MRLs for several sessions in order to expedite MRL setting and that specific interim MRLs had been adopted at the 28th Session of the Commission. The

Commission, noting that the CCPR had agreed on new policies to expedite the MRL setting process, approved discontinuation of work on interim MRLs.

138. The list of discontinued items of work is presented in Appendix IX to this report.

FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY MATTERS (Agenda Item 8) 42

139. The Commission noted the extensive discussions held at the 58th Session of the Executive Committee on the Codex Budget and Expenditure 2004-2005, 2006-2007 and programmatic considerations beyond 2006-2007 as well as FAO/WHO Budgets for Codex-Related Activities.⁴³

Codex Budget and Expenditure 2004-2005 and 2006-2007

- 140. The Commission noted the budget situation of the Codex programme and the additional costs incurred due to the introduction, in January 2006, of a new charge-back arrangement in FAO affecting all technical programmes including Codex concerning costs of document storage and dispatch.
- 141. The Commission endorsed the cost saving measures being taken by the Codex Secretariat since January 2006 concerning discontinuation of distribution of paper documentation.
- 142. The Commission noted concerns from developing countries that discontinuation of paper distribution might lead to problems when distributing the information within their countries and noted that a minimum level of services and facilities was ensured by the Codex Secretariat, including the possibility that hardcopies of Codex documents be provided to member countries on an exceptional basis and that the FAO and WHO country offices could assist Codex Contact Points in obtaining needed documentation.
- 143. The Commission noted further that the following publications would continue to be sent as hardcopies (or electronic media) to Codex Contact Points: Codex CD-ROMs of text-based and numerical standards as well as advocacy material such as Codex video and multimedia presentation; the Procedural Manual; A5 format booklets of selected Codex texts; and the Reports of the Commission. The Commission encouraged all members and observers to take necessary measures to take full advantage of electronic distribution of documents by registering, preferably, generic rather than personalised e-mail addresses with the Codex Secretariat.
- 144. The Commission endorsed the recommendation of the Executive Committee to cancel one session of the Executive Committee in the present biennium meaning that the 59th Session of the Committee would not be held in December 2006, but in June 2007 immediately prior to the 30th Session of the Commission. The Commission was satisfied that by taking this measure the six sessions of the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committees planned for in this biennium as well as the Commission session in July 2007 would be maintained. The Commission expressed its concern that the budget situation no longer allowed to hold two meetings of the Executive Committee between the 29th and 30th Sessions of the Commission as planned.
- 145. The Commission noted the strong objections of some members concerning the option mentioned in the working document to reduce the language coverage of meetings of the Commission. The Commission stressed that with the activity reduction endorsed previously (see paragraph above) this would not be necessary but noted that if requests were made to Codex to increase its language coverage, additional funds would have to be provided.
- 146. The Commission thanked the FAO and WHO for protecting the Codex budget and for having kept to a minimum budget cuts in real terms for the Codex programme and invited the governing bodies of FAO and WHO to ensure adequate funding for Codex in view of the particular nature of the Codex programme whose financial and managerial flexibility was limited compared to other technical programmes.
- 147. The Commission noted the information given by the Representatives of FAO and WHO that if members wished to call for adequate funding of the Codex programme, they should do so in the governing bodies of FAO and WHO, in order to have an influence in the budget preparation process of these organizations. For example such action would need to be initiated soon in advance of the budget preparation for the 2008-2009 biennium by FAO and WHO, e.g., in time to affect decision making on this matter by the Executive Board of WHO in January 2007.

_

⁴² ALINORM 06/29/9; CAC/29 INF/10

⁴³ ALINORM 06/29/3A, paras 52-78

148. The Commission decided to encourage the Secretariat to continue to explore additional efficiency savings in the operation of the Codex programme. The Commission also encouraged host governments of subsidiary bodies to fully meet their obligations in conjunction with the operation of these bodies including fully covering the costs of documentation.

Programmatic considerations beyond 2006-2007

- 149. The Commission endorsed the recommendations of the Executive Committee to request the Secretariat to prepare a discussion paper, in cooperation with FAO and WHO, by exploring several options for streamlining Codex session planning and their implications on Codex work, for discussion at its next Session. Session planning scenarios should focus on the 2008-2009 biennium and should also include alternative session frequencies for Codex bodies other than the Commission and its Executive Committee.
- 150. The Commission also agreed to request the Secretariat to prepare a discussion paper, in collaboration with FAO and WHO, on the possibilities for more sustainable funding including through other funding sources and alternative ways of achieving it.

FAO/WHO Budgets for Codex-related Activities

151. The Commission noted the budgetary situations of FAO and WHO as presented in document INF.10 and expressed its desire that FAO and WHO obtain an adequate level of funding to continue to provide scientific advice to support the work of Codex in a timely manner.

STRATEGIC PLANNING OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION (Agenda Item 9)⁴⁴

- 152. Several delegations expressed their appreciation to the intensive work done by the members of the sub-committee of the Executive Committee and the working group consisting of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons of the Commission, who had produced the draft Strategic Plan.
- 153. The Delegation of India, supported by other delegations, stated that involvement of and data generation by developing countries should be encouraged in order to improve the decision making process of Codex based on scientific evidence, in view of globalization of food trade.
- 154. The Commission, concurring to the recommendations made by the Executive Committee⁴⁵, agreed that:
 - (i) The draft Strategic Plan 2008 2013 as revised be circulated to all Coordinating Committees for comments, prior to the final adoption by the Commission in July 2007; and
 - (ii) The current format used by the Executive Committee for the Critical Review be replaced with Table 2, Part 3 of the draft Strategic Plan 2008 2013, as a new tracking mechanism for effective implementation of the Critical Review.
- 155. The Commission noted that the work to constantly update Tables in Part 3 of the draft Strategic Plan would require a high level input and support from host governments including the chairpersons of subsidiary bodies as well as the strengthening of the staff resources in the Codex Secretariat.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE JOINT FAO/WHO EVALUATION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS AND OTHER FAO AND WHO WORK ON FOOD STANDARDS (Agenda Item 10)

GENERAL IMPLEMENTATION STATUS (Agenda Item 10(a))⁴⁶

- 156. The Commission noted with satisfaction the status of the implementation of the recommendations of the Evaluation as presented in Table 1 of the working document which showed that most of the proposals originating from the recommendations and endorsed by the 26th Session of the Commission had been implemented. The Delegation of Finland, speaking on behalf of the Member States of the European Community present at the session, while supporting the work that had been carried out until now, highlighted that the advisory role of the Executive Committee and the resources of the Codex Secretariat should be strengthened. In addition it felt that the process of modernising the Procedural Manual should be continued.
- 157. The Commission noted that the working document was a "living document" which would be updated by the Codex Secretariat taking into account future developments in the status of implementation. The Commission

⁴⁶ ALINORM 06/29/9B Part I; ALINORM 06/29/3A, paras 79-82

-

⁴⁴ ALINORM 06/29/9A, ALINORM 06/29/9A Add.1, ALINORM 06/29/3A, CAC/29-LIM 11 (Comment from India)

⁴⁵ ALINORM 06/29/3A para. 38

noted concerning Proposal 34 (Determination of Consensus), that the 23rd Session of the Committee on General Principles had considered a discussion paper prepared by India and had "considered that it was yet premature to request approval of the Commission to initiate new work on these subjects and had agreed to continue the discussion of the issue at its next session"⁴⁷.

REVIEW OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE STRUCTURE AND MANDATES OF CODEX COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES (Agenda Item 10(b))⁴⁸

- 158. The Commission recalled that its 28th Session had considered a Consultants' Final Report on the review of the Codex Committee Structure and Mandates of Codex Committees and Task Forces ⁴⁹, containing 20 recommendations and had agreed that four of the recommendations required further study and that a Circular Letter be sent to Members and Observers to solicit comments⁵⁰.
- 159. The Commission noted the replies to Circular Letter 2005/30-CAC presented in document ALINORM 06/29/9B Part II, as well as document ALINORM 06/29/9B Part II Add.1, prepared by the Secretariat taking into account the replies received to the Circular Letter, containing additional information and analysis of the issue.
- 160. The Commission congratulated the Secretariat on the quality of the document and decided that a Circular Letter be prepared to invite government comments on paragraphs 1 to 28 of the document including 11 proposals to give further opportunity to members and observers to study the analysis and proposals before a more detailed discussion would be held at the 59th Session of the Executive Committee and the 30th Session of the Commission. The Commission further decided to invite the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committees to discuss the proposals in their upcoming sessions and provide their comments to the Executive Committee and the Commission.
- 161. The Commission also noted the Secretariat's note contained in paragraphs 29 to 32 of the document regarding the hosting of Codex sessions in developing countries and the difficulties encountered in some cases before the conclusion of a letter of agreement between FAO and the countries offering the venue for the sessions.

MATTERS ARISING FROM REPORTS OF THE COMMISSION, CODEX COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES (Agenda Item 11) 51

- 162. The Commission **noted** several matters arising from the reports of Codex Committees and Task Forces, including those matters arising form the previous session of the Commission and the Executive Committee, as contained in working documents ALINORM 06/29/9C and ALINORM 06/29/9C-Add.2.
- 163. The following paragraphs provide additional information on the comments made and decisions taken on certain items.

28th Session of Codex Alimentarius Commission

Antimicrobial Resistance⁵²

164. The Commission recalled that at its 28th session it had agreed, in principle, to the establishment of an *Ad Hoc* Intergovernmental Task Force to deal with the issue related to antimicrobial resistance and that a final decision as to its establishment had to be taken at its current session. It also recalled that a Circular Letter⁵³ had been issued to request proposals on Terms of Reference of such task force and on national activities and policies

⁴⁷ ALINORM 06/29/33, paras 106-114

CL 2005/30-CAC; ALINORM 06/29/9B Part II (Comments from Australia, Brazil, Canada, Egypt, European Community, India, Japan, New Zealand, Singapore, United States of America and Venezuela); ALINORM 06/29/3A, paras 83-90; ALINORM 06/29/9B Part II (Paper prepared by the Codex Secretariat)

⁴⁹ CL 2005/12-CAC

⁵⁰ ALINORM 05/28/41 para. 158

ALINORM 06/29/9C, ALINORM 06/29/9C-Add.1 (comments of Australia, Canada, Cuba, European Community, Japan, Norway, Paraguay, Republic of Korea, United States, Venezuela, Consumers International, IDF and OIE), ALINORM 06/29/9C-Add.2, ALINORM 06/29/9C-Add.3 (comments of IFAH), CAC/29-LIM 6 (Update: Implementation of the WHO Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health: Action that could be taken by Codex, prepared by WHO in cooperation with FAO), CAC/29-LIM 7 (comments of Brazil), CAC/29-LIM 11 (comments of Philippines)

⁵² ALINORM 05/28/41, paras 177-186; ALINORM 06/39/3A, paras 91-93

⁵³ CL 2005/33-CAC.

dealing with containment of antimicrobial resistance. The Commission noted that an in-session working group had been convened under the Chairmanship of the United States (see para. 14) to analyze comments received and to prepare proposals for the title, objectives, terms of reference and time frame for the proposed Task Force.

- 165. The Commission considered the report prepared by the in-session working group presented in LIM 18 and discussed whether to establish such a task force and how to better proceed with the foreseen work.
- 166. Some delegations stressed that technical cooperation including information exchange was essential in order to assist developing countries in addressing the issue of antimicrobial resistance.
- 167. The Observer from OIE drew the attention of the Commission to the fact that OIE had recently adopted a standard on antimicrobial resistance and proposed to cross reference this standard and work in complementary way in order to avoid duplication and conflict between the standards developed by the relevant organisations referenced under the WTO SPS Agreement.
- 168. The Commission **agreed** to establish a Codex *Ad Hoc* Intergovernmental Task Force on Antimicrobial Resistance and, on the basis of the discussion on the proposals in LIM 18 and with the necessary adjustments, **agreed** on its objectives, terms of reference and timeline as presented in Appendix XI to this report.
- 169. The Commission agreed that a Circular Letter be sent to request concrete proposals for new work, preferably in the form of draft project documents, which would be compiled in a working document to be circulated for comments and consideration by the first meeting of the Task Force. The Commission also agreed to use the text listing elements and activities presented in LIM 18 as background information for the above Circular Letter.

Future Work on Animal Feeding⁵⁴

- 170. The Commission recalled that at its last session there had been no agreement on whether to immediately commence work on animal feeding and that the 58th Session of the Executive Committee maintained its recommendation to defer future work on animal feeding until 2008 in order to allow more time to study the need for new work.
- 171. The Delegation of Finland, speaking on behalf of the Member States of the European Community present at the current session, indicated that former work of the Codex Task Force on Animal Feeding was very effective and that there was a clear need to re-establish the Task Force to complement work on (i) application of HACCP system in feed area; (ii) development of detailed rules at the global level in dealing with feed emergency situations and (iii) good practices in minimizing undesirable substances in feed and establishing maximum limits where appropriate. This view was supported by some other delegations.
- 172. Other delegations, while recognizing the importance of this issue, were of the view that the establishment of a task force was premature and that more time was needed to gain more experience in implementing the adopted Code of Practice on Good Animal Feeding. It was also noted that the Commission had decided to establish two new Task Forces at its current session and that the establishment of additional Task Force should be deferred to a later time.
- 173. After some discussion on the timing and the work of future Task Force on Animal Feeding, the Commission **agreed** to the proposal of the Executive Committee to defer consideration of this matter until 2008. It also agreed that a Circular Letter asking proposals for new future work by Codex, preferably in the form of project documents, and information on the national experience in the implementation of the Code of Practice on Good Animal Feeding be issued after the 30th Session of the Commission in 2007 in order to allow further consideration of the issue at the 31st Session of the Commission.
- 174. The Representative of FAO informed the Commission that it was planned to hold a FAO/WHO Meeting on scientific issues related to animal feed safety in 2007.

WHO Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health: actions that could be taken by Codex⁵⁵

175. The Representative of WHO informed the Commission about the background and progress to date in preparing a document on activities that Codex might take to facilitate the implementation of the WHO Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health. The Representative indicated that due to the complexity of this

⁵⁴ ALINORM 05/28/41, paras 162-166; ALINORM 06/39/3A, paras 94

⁵⁵ ALINORM 05/28/41, paras 229-234; ALINORM 06/39/3A, para. 95

issue, inputs had been sought by the establishment of an electronic forum by WHO and FAO and requested to accept delay in preparing a complete action document for this session of the Commission.

176. The Commission **noted** the information provided in LIM 6 and agreed that WHO and FAO would complete a document containing concrete proposals for possible actions by Codex that would shortly be circulated for comments to all Codex Contact Points. The comments received together with the document itself, would be considered by the next sessions of the CCNFSDU and CCFL. The views and recommendations of these Committees would then be forwarded to the 30th Session of the Commission for further guidance.

Committee on Milk and Milk Products

Standard for Whey Powders (CODEX STAN A-15-1995) (inclusion of provisions for benzoyl peroxide)⁵⁶

177. In view of the positive safety evaluation of benzoyl peroxide by JECFA and its subsequent inclusion in the GSFA in food category 01.82 (dried whey and whey products, excluding whey cheeses), the Commission **adopted** the inclusion of benzoyl peroxide in the Codex Standard for Whey Powders as proposed.

Amendment to food hygiene provisions of Codex Standards for Milk and Milk Products⁵⁷

178. The Commission **agreed** to the proposal of the Committee to amend the Codex General Standard for Cheese (CODEX STAN A-6-1978) and other relevant texts as presented in the Annex to ALINORM 06/29/9C so that the hygiene section of those standards refer to the Codex Code of Hygienic Practice for Milk and Milk Products (CAC/RCP 57-2004) and to delete the provisions contained in Section 6.2 as these were already covered by the new Code.

Nitrogen Conversion Factor⁵⁸

- 179. The Commission noted the request of the Committee on Milk and Milk Products to ensure consistency in the use of nitrogen conversion factors and the importance of using the conversion factor of 6.38 when analyzing milk protein. The Commission recalled that this matter was under discussion in the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses in the development of the draft revised Standard for Infant Formulas and Formulas for Special Medical Purposes Intended for Infants.
- 180. The Delegation of the European Community supported the need for consistent use of a nitrogen conversion factor in products containing milk protein and supported the proposal to refer this issue to the CCMAS.
- 181. The Delegation of the United States of America supported by the Delegations New Zealand and the European Community further proposed that the matter be referred to the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling whose terms of reference included the consideration of specific sampling and analysis problems submitted to it by the Commission or any of its Committees.
- 182. The Secretariat clarified that the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling did not develop methods, but rather endorsed methods put forward by specific Committees and that the current issue under consideration by the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses was not being discussed under the methods section of the draft revised standard, but rather under "essential requirements" and that any methods that CCNFSDU might propose at its forthcoming session or any question on methodology issues could be considered by the next session of CCMAS.
- 183. After some discussion, the Commission **agreed** to request the Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses to consider the nitrogen conversion factor based on the principle of scientific analysis and evidence, involving thorough review of all relevant information, taking into account the need for consistency.
- 184. The Delegations of the United States and New Zealand expressed their reservation with this decision and maintained their position that the methods of analysis and sampling and the determination of an appropriate nitrogen conversion factor were interlinked and that the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling was the appropriate subsidiary body to consider this matter.

-

⁵⁶ ALINORM 06/29/11, para.21

⁵⁷ ALINORM 06/29/11, paras 36-37

⁵⁸ ALINORM 06/29/11, paras 17-18

Committee on General Principles

Use of the term "interim" 59

185. The Commission recalled that the Committee on General Principles had considered the term "interim" as relates to the adoption of Codex standards and related texts, following the request of the 27th Session of the Commission. This issue was also considered at the present session in relation to pesticide residues (see Agenda Item 7).

186. The Commission **agreed** to endorse the following recommendations, as proposed by the Committee on General Principles:

- The Commission should not adopt any food safety standards at Step 8, whether they are called temporary or interim, that are not substantiated by the scientific advice of expert bodies and consultations recognized by the Commission, in accordance with the Working Principles for Risk Analysis for Application in the Framework of the Codex Alimentarius.
- Where draft standards are based on international risk assessments as mentioned above, the Commission might still wish to adopt them and at the same time commit itself to revisiting the matter in the near future; in this case, the Commission should generally refrain from using the term "interim" or "temporary", which could introduce ambiguity as to their status, including from a legal standpoint.
- The Commission should be very cautious in adopting standards having a limited lifetime; should the Commission choose to do so, then the time period for "automatic" expiration must be clearly defined, since all standards adopted by the Commission would be presumed to remain in force until they are revoked or replaced by new or revised standards adopted by the Commission.

Reference to Codex Standards⁶⁰

187. The Commission recalled that the Committee on General Principles had proposed to delete the year of revision in the reference to Codex texts, as it was not applied consistently to all texts and created some confusion, and as the information on revision and amendments was available on the Codex website. The Commission **agreed** that all Codex texts would be referred to only by the reference number and year of adoption.

Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants

General Standard for Food Additives (GSFA)⁶¹

188. The Commission **agreed** to reassign the food additive provisions as illustrated in the Annex of ALINORM 06/29/9C-Add.2.

189. The Commission **agreed** with the approach proposed by the CCFAC to replace food additive provisions of those Codex commodity standards that have one-to-one correspondence with the GSFA food categories, with a text referring to the provisions of the relevant GSFA category.

- 190. The Commission noted that the work of the CCFAC was ongoing to amend the Procedural Manual to reflect the status of the GSFA as a single reference for food additives in the *Codex Alimentarius*.
- 191. The Commission **agreed** to request Codex commodity committees, when they consider new entities or revision of food additives provisions in these commodity standards, to provide to the CCFAC justification of technological need for the food additives, based upon section 3.2 of the Preamble of the GSFA.
- 192. The Delegation of Mexico requested clarification on the procedure to be followed when the revision to the additives section of an individual standard was undertaken, i.e. whether it was considered as new work and should therefore require a project document in the framework of the Critical Review. The Delegation also recalled the request from the Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables concerning the possibility to apply simplified procedures when making minor amendments to adopted standards, which was referred to the Committee on General Principles by the 28th Session of the Commission.
- 193. The Secretariat recalled that the provisions in the Elaboration Procedure exempted certain new work from the mandatory submission of project documents, as was the case for the maintenance of the GSFA, and noted

⁵⁹ ALINORM 06/29/33, paras 137-148

⁶⁰ ALINORM 06/29/33, para. 174

⁶¹ ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 63 and Appendices VIII and IX

that the Committee on General Principles was considering the revision of the *Guide to the Procedure for the Revision and Amendment of Codex Standards* in order to clarify and streamline the procedures to be applied when addressing amendments to or revisions of adopted standards and related texts.

Codex General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods (GSCTF)⁶²

194. The Commission **agreed** to the recommendation of the CCFAC to include a specific reference to the GSCTF in the sections on contaminants of Codex commodity standards and decided to request the CCGP to finalize the standard wording for the contaminants section, based on the text proposed by the CCFAC, for inclusion in the Procedural Manual.

FAO and WHO Expert Consultation on the health risks associated with methylmercury and dioxins and dioxin – like PCBs in fish and the health benefits of fish consumption⁶³

195. The Commission agreed to request FAO/WHO to consider convening an expert consultation on the health risks associated with the consumption of fish and other seafood and the health benefits of fish and other seafood consumption, with the detailed terms of reference as proposed by the CCFAC.

Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods

Compendium of Methods of Analysis Identified as Suitable to Support Codex MRLs⁶⁴

196. The Commission **noted** the existence of the Compendium of Methods of Analysis as Suitable for Support to Codex MRLs developed by the Committee, without adopting it as a Codex text, and agreed that the Secretariat should make it publicly available in such a way as to make it most useful to Members. The CCRVDF was invited to revise the Compendium regularly to keep it updated.

Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling

Codex Guidelines for the Assessment of the Competence of Testing Laboratories Involved in Import and Export Control of Food (CAC/GL 27-1997)⁶⁵

197. The Commission **endorsed** the proposal of the Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling to update the reference to the *International Harmonized Protocol for the Proficiency Testing of (Chemical) Analytical Laboratories*, developed by IUPAC/ISO/AOAC and updated in 2006, in the Guidelines for the Assessment of the Competence of Testing Laboratories Involved in the Import and Export Control of Food (CAC/GL 27-1997).

198. The Commission noted that the *Food Control Laboratory Management Recommendations* (CAC/GL 28-1995) mentioned the above Protocol, with two other texts adopted by reference and agreed to seek further clarification from the CCMAS as to whether the above Harmonised Protocol and the *Protocol for the Design, Conduct and Interpretation of Collaborative Studies*, both adopted in 1995, should be identified separately or under a single reference.

RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND OTHER INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS (Agenda item 12) 66

RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND OTHER INTERNATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS (Agenda Item 12a) 67

International Plant Protection Convention (IPPC)

199. The Secretariat informed the Commission that there were regular consultations between the Secretariats of the Codex Alimentarius Commission and the IPPC, in order to identify areas of common interest, and to seek synergy and coordination as regards certification issues.

67 CAC/29 INF 4 (OIE), CAC/29 INF 5 (WTO), CAC/29 INF 6 (IAEA)

⁶² ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 119 and Appendix XVIII

⁶³ ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 191

⁶⁴ ALINORM 06/29/31, para. 120 and Appendix X

⁶⁵ ALINORM 06/29/23, paras 98-102

⁶⁶ ALINORM 06/29/9D

World Organization for Animal Health (OIE)

200. The Director-General of the OIE informed the Commission of the OIE activities relevant to Codex in several areas: the OIE Animal Production Food Safety Working Group; the work of OIE on Salmonella and other foodborne diseases related to animal production, taking into account the work of the Committee on Food Hygiene and WHO; the establishment of an expert group on standards for animal feeding; and the development of a guide for good farming practices in collaboration with FAO. The Commission was also informed that the OIE Strategic Plan for the period 2006-2010 included cooperation with Codex and relevant international organization as one of its objectives.

201. The Commission noted that the OIE had participated in the work of several Committees which considered issues of particular relevance to animal production: Committee on Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification Systems (certification and traceability/product tracing); Committee on Residue of Veterinary Drugs (registration of veterinary drugs); Committee on Milk and Milk Products (elaboration of a model export certificate for milk and milk products). The Director-General stressed the importance of a coordinated approach to traceability/product tracing in order to follow the food chain approach and establish a link between primary animal production and food safety of animal products. As regards antimicrobial resistance, he recalled the joint activities of OIE, FAO and WHO in this area in order to provide scientific advice, and supported the establishment of a Joint Codex/OIE Task Force on antimicrobial resistance in order to address this important health issue. The Director-General stressed the need for further cooperation with Codex in all relevant sectors in order to optimize efforts and avoid duplication of work.

World Trade Organization

- 202. The Representative of WTO pointed out that the monitoring of the use or non-use of international standards was one of the main agenda items in the SPS Committee and recalled that Sri Lanka had raised its concern regarding the need for a Codex maximum level for sulphur dioxide in cinnamon, due to its implications for export of cinnamon, and that the Chair of the SPS Committee had written to the Chair of the Codex Alimentarius Commission to draw his attention to this matter. The Representative noted that the prompt finalisation of a level for sulphur dioxide in herbs and spices at the present session was a very positive development and provided a good example of constructive cooperation between WTO and Codex.
- 203. The Delegation of Sri Lanka expressed its appreciation to the WTO, to the Commission and to the Delegation of the European Community for their efforts in order to facilitate the finalisation of an international standard of great relevance to international trade. The Delegation of the European Community also welcomed the resolution of this issue that had been addressed in a timely manner by the Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants.
- 204. The Representative of WTO also informed the Commission about the issues under discussion in the framework of the second review of the operation and implementation of the SPS Agreement; the trade concerns related to food safety raised in the SPS Committee; and capacity building activities carried out in cooperation with the Codex Secretariat. The Representative looked forward to maintaining close collaboration between WTO and Codex.
- 205. The Delegation of Chile expressed the view that, following the abolition of the Acceptance Procedure, there was a need to monitor the use of Codex standards at the national level, and noted that notification in the framework of the SPS Agreement applied only to those standards that were not harmonised with international standards. The Representative of WTO indicated that one of the proposals under discussion in the framework of the review of the Agreement was the possible extension of notification to measures that complied with international standards, and invited governments to comment on a possible revision of the Guidelines on Notification Procedures. The Secretariat informed the Commission that the use of Codex standards at the national or regional level would be considered by FAO/WHO Coordinating Committees as standing agenda item.

International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA)

206. In addition to those activities highlighted in document CAC/29 INF/6, the representative of the IAEA noted that the Food and Environmental Protection Subprogramme of the Joint FAO/IAEA Division of Nuclear Techniques in Food and Agriculture was hosting the 1st Technical Panel on Phytosanitary Treatments under the IPPC Commission on Phytosanitary Measures at IAEA Headquarters in December 2006 to discuss, among other issues, the use of ionizing radiation for quarantine treatments of fresh fruits and vegetables.

207. The Representative also noted that a Consultants Meeting would convene at the IAEA Marine Environment Laboratory in Monaco in September 2006 to undertake preliminary work on the recently approved IAEA Coordinated Research Project on the Application of Radiotracer and Radioassay Technologies to Seafood Safety Risk Assessment. The Commission was also informed that in addition to the holding of a Training Workshop on Quality Assurance/Quality Control Measures in Pesticide Residue Analytical Laboratories in September/October 2006, a planned Inter-regional Training Course for Developing Countries on Screening and Confirmatory Methods for Veterinary Drug Residues would be held in 2007.

208. The Commission expressed its thanks to the Director-General of OIE and the Representatives of WTO and IAEA for the useful information provided at the present session and their continued cooperation with the Codex Alimentarius Commission.

RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND INTERNATIONAL NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS (Agenda Item 12b)⁶⁸

209. In accordance with section 6, paragraph 4 of the *Principles Concerning the Participation of International Non-Governmental Organizations in the Work of the Codex Alimentarius Commission*, the Secretariat reported to the Commission on the relations between the Commission and international non-governmental organizations as presented in ALINORM 06/29/9D and in CAC/29 INF/2.

Relations with the International Organization for Standardization (ISO)

- 210. The Commission noted the detailed information provided in CAC/29 INF 7 on the work of ISO relevant to Codex work as well as the ongoing contacts for information exchange between the Codex and ISO Secretariats. The Observer from ISO stated that development of voluntary standards by ISO was complementary to the work of Codex.
- 211. The Observer provided to the Commission additional information on new ISO work which might start on the initiative of the national standardization body of Norway on environmental awareness, test methods and technical specifications in fisheries and aquaculture. He stated that this new Technical Committee was likely to identify Codex as an organization in liaison status.
- 212. Several delegations stressed the importance of maintaining coordination and cooperation between Codex and ISO to avoid duplication of work or contradiction in the standards. It was suggested that Codex members liaise with their national member bodies that were members of ISO. One delegation suggested ISO's national focal point could be part of the National Codex Committee.
- 213. The Commission **supported** continued cooperation and coordination with ISO and agreed that the Codex Secretariat should maintain its contacts with ISO and continue to report regularly to the Commission on ISO activities of relevance to Codex work.

FAO/WHO PROJECT AND TRUST FUND FOR ENHANCED PARTICIPATION IN CODEX (Agenda Item 13)⁶⁹

- 214. The Delegation of Canada, speaking as Chair of the information meeting held on 4 July 2006, reported to the Commission a summary of the discussion and information exchanged between donor and beneficiary countries in the meeting and highlighted the needs of beneficiary countries to improve: (i) capacity of countries including establishment of National Codex Committees and strengthening of national food control systems, (ii) quality of country participation in Codex sessions through adequate preparation and presentation of country positions.
- 215. The Representatives of FAO and WHO expressed their appreciation to the generous contribution from donor countries to the Trust Fund and stated that the Trust Fund was responding to the request from developing countries to provide training in Codex at the regional level.
- 216. The Commission expressed its appreciations to the effort being made by FAO and WHO and to the donors making a generous financial contribution. The Commission encouraged current donors to continue to provide funds to the Trust Fund and invite other countries to consider contributing to the Fund in order to ensure its sustainability.

.

⁶⁸ CAC/29 INF/2 (International non-governmental organization in observer status with the Codex Alimentarius Commission); CAC/29 INF 7 (Communication from ISO – Report of Activities Relevant to Codex).

⁶⁹ ALINORM 06/29/9E, CAC/29 INF/11, CAC/ INF/11 Add.1

217. The Commission welcomed the initiative taken by the host governments of subsidiary bodies in cooperation with the Codex Secretariat and the Trust Fund Secretariat to hold information meetings for the delegates supported by the Trust Fund held immediately prior to Codex sessions.

OTHER MATTERS ARISING FROM FAO AND WHO (Agenda Item 14)⁷⁰

Part I: Outcomes of Recent FAO/WHO Expert Meetings

- 218. The Representatives of FAO and WHO informed the Commission of the major outcomes of the FAO and WHO expert meetings and related activities carried out since the last Session of the Commission and future meetings to be held in late 2006 and in 2007, including those of JECFA, JMPR, JEMRA, *ad hoc* meetings, consultations and related projects.
- 219. The Representative of the JECFA Secretariat expressed its concern regarding the apparent lack of support, particularly by industry, of the JECFA/CCRVDF system to evaluate veterinary drug residues.
- 220. The Commission noted that JECFA recently celebrated its 50th Anniversary and acknowledged the intensive work of experts to provide high-quality scientific advice to Codex and member countries.
- 221. The Commission noted that due to budgetary constraints, only one meeting of JECFA would be held in 2007.

Part II: Progress Report on the FAO/WHO Consultative Process for the Provision of Scientific Advice to Codex and Member Countries

- 222. The Representative of WHO informed the Commission of the progress being made on the Consultative Process and noted that the consultative process would be concluded later this year and its outcome would be reported to the governing bodies of FAO and WHO as well as to the 30th Session of the Commission.
- 223. The Commission was informed of the results of the Belgrade FAO/WHO Meeting aimed at addressing the needs of developing countries in enhancing their participation in work related to the provision of scientific advice (CAC/29 INF 13).

Part III: Status of Requests for Scientific Advice from Codex Subsidiary Bodies

- 224. The Commission noted the information provided in the Annex of document ALINORM 06/29/9F regarding the status of requests for scientific advice from Codex subsidiary bodies and expressed its appreciation to FAO and WHO for their efforts to provide scientific advice in a timely manner and encouraged them to give a high priority to requests for scientific advice coming from Codex subsidiary bodies.
- 225. The Commission endorsed the recommendation of the 58th Session of the Executive Committee that the terms of reference for expert consultation on active chlorine developed by the 37th Session of the Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants and 37th Session of the Committee on Food Hygiene provided sufficient guidance to FAO and WHO. The Commission therefore requested FAO and WHO to start taking necessary steps for the identification of required extra budgetary funds for organization of such an expert consultation.

Part IV: Capacity Building in Food Safety and Quality

226. The Commission was informed of FAO/WHO activities in capacity building in the field of food safety and quality (CAC/29 INF/3). Several key activities were highlighted: FAO/WHO Regional Conferences on Food Safety, several recommendations of which were being implemented, funding mechanisms, information exchange, joint global programmes including development of guidance materials for governments and stakeholders as well as a number of recent and ongoing projects and activities at the regional and national levels. In this perspective, the Commission noted that a Strategic Plan for Food Safety in Africa had been developed and that donors were being approached to assist in the funding of this plan.

ALINORM 06/29/9F, ALINORM 06/29/9F Add.1, ALINORM 06/29/3A paras.126-128, CAC/29 INF/3, CAC/29 INF/8, CAC/29 INF/9, CAC/29 INF10, CAC/29 INF13

-

ELECTION OF OFFICERS OF THE COMMISSION (Agenda Item 15)⁷¹

227. The Commission elected, by general consent, the following persons to hold office as Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons of the Codex Alimentarius Commission from the end of its present Session to the end of the next regular 30th Session of the Commission.

Chairperson: Dr Claude J. S. MOSHA (United Republic of Tanzania)

Vice-Chairpersons: Dr Karen HULEBAK (United States of America)

Ms NORAINI Mohd. Othman (Malaysia)

Dr Wim VAN ECK (The Netherlands)

DESIGNATION OF COUNTRIES RESPONSIBLE FOR APPOINTING THE CHAIRPERSON OF CODEX COMMITTEES AND *AD HOC* TASK FORCES (Agenda Item 16)⁷²

228. The Commission **confirmed** the designation of the Host Governments as listed in the Appendix XII to this report.

- 229. In arriving at its decision, the Commission noted the willingness of Brazil and the Netherlands to serve as host government for the Committee on Contaminants in Foods. The Commission proceeded with a secret ballot and designated the Netherlands as the host government for the Committee.
- 230. The Delegation of the Netherlands indicated its firm commitment to ensure effective operation of this Committee. The Delegation of Brazil congratulated the Netherlands on their designation and wished them every success. The Delegation however noted that a majority of Codex subsidiary bodies were still hosted by developed countries and expressed its view that better geographical balance should be achieved in the future.
- 231. The Delegation of China committed itself to providing sufficient human and financial resources and to appoint qualified chairpersons to the Committees on Food Additives and on Pesticides Residues. The Commission congratulated the Netherlands for its outstanding contribution to Codex work by having hosted both the CCFAC and CCPR since their first sessions.
- 232. The Delegation of the United Kingdom recalled its statement made at the 28th Session of the Commission that it would not seek to remain the host country either for the Committee on Sugars, or for the Committee on Fats and Oils after its forthcoming session in 2007. Nevertheless, the Delegation stated that the United Kingdom was content to remain as host of the Committee on Sugars until such time as an alternative host country came forward. The Delegations of Malaysia and Argentina expressed interest in serving as the host government for the Committee on Fats and Oils after 2007. The Delegation of Malaysia informed the Commission of its official commitment to host the Committee on Fats and Oils if the Commission so decided.

OTHER BUSINESS (Agenda Item 17)

233. The Commission noted that its 30th Session would be held in Rome from 2 to 7 July 2007, subject to further confirmation.

72

ALINORM 06/29/9G

⁷¹ ALINORM 06/29/2.

APPENDIX I

LIST OF PARTICIPANTS LISTE DES PARTICIPANTS LISTA DE PARTICIPANTES

Chairperson: Dr. Claude J.S. MOSHA

Président : Chief Standards Officer (Food Safety & Quality)

Presidente: Head, Agriculture and Food Section

Tanzania Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 9524 Dar-es-Salaam Tanzania

Phone: +255 22 245 0206 mobile: 255 741 32 4495

Fax: +255 22 245 0959

Email: cjsmosha@yahoo.co.uk/info@tbs.or.tz

AFGHANISTAN - AFGANISTÁN

Prof. Dr.Abdul Wadood GULISTANI

Director-General

Food Industries and Quality Control Directorate

(MAAHF)

Ministry of Agriculture, Animal Husbandry and Food

University Road, Jamal Mina

Kabul

Phone: +0093 070 653048

Email: codexafghanistan@hotmail.com

Mr Hamed FURMULY

Deputy Director of Drug Quality Control Department Member of National Board for Medicine in Health Focal Point for Food Safety in World Health

Organization

Ministry of Public Health

P.O. Box 1528

Kabul

Phone: mobile 0093(0) 799332956 Email: formuly_h_s@yahoo.com

ALGERIA - ALGÉRIE - ARGELIA

Dr. Jamila NADIR

Responsable du programme de lutte contre les

maladies non transmissible

20 rue Danjou Hydra Alger

Phone: +213 72 144 658 Email: dnadir@caramail.com

ANGOLA

Dr. Gomes CARDOSO

Président du Comité National pour le Code

Alimentaire en Angola Codex Alimentarius en Angola Ministère du commerce- 3° Andar

Av. 4 de Fevereiro,7 Caixa Postal N° 1337/8

Luanda, Angola

Phone: +(00244) 923 507105-912500514 Fax: +(00244) 222 31 0658/311368/310273 Email: minco.dnci.gc@netangola.com

Website: www.dnci.net

Mme Maria Antónia SENAZENGE

2ème Vice Présidente du Comité National pour le

Code Alimentaire en Angola Codex Alimentarius en Angola

Ministère du Santé Av. 4 de Fevereiro

Luanda

Phone: +(00244) 923 653695

M Miguel DOMINGUES

Secrétaire Exécutif du Comité National pour le Code

Alimentaire en Angola Codex Alimentarius en Angola

Ministère de l'agriculture et du développement rural

Rue Comandante Gika, C.P. 527

Luanda

Phone: +(00244) 92 534756 Fax: +(00244) 33 0553

ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA – ANTIGUA-ET-BARBUDA – ANTIGUA Y BARBUDA

Mr Lionel MICHAEL

Chief Health Inspector

Ministry of Health, Sports, Carnival and Youth

Affairs

Central Board of Health Lower All Saints Road St. John's

Antigua and Barbuda

West Indies Phone: +268 462 2936 Fax: +268 460 5992

Email: cbh_chi@yahoo.com

ARGENTINA - ARGENTINE

Dra. Inés Gabriela FASTAME

Segundo Secretario Mision de Argentina 10, Route de l'Aéroporte 1215 Genève 15

CP 536

Phone: +41 022 9298609 Fax: +41 022 7985995/1992 Email: ines.fastame@ties.itv.int

Sra. Gabriela Alejandra CATALANI

Coordinadora del Punto Focal del CODEX

Secretaría de Agricultura, Ganadería, Pesca y

Alimentos

Ministerio de Economía y Producción

Paseo Colon 922 Buenos Aires

Phone: +54 11 4349 2549 Fax: +54 11 4349 2244 Email: gcatal@mecon.gov.ar

Dra. Carolina PADRÓ

Punto Focal-Contact Point bn

Codex Alimentarius- Argentina

Dirección de Relaciones Agroalimentarias

Internacionales

Secretaría de Agricultura, Ganadería, Pesca y

Alimentos

Av. Paseo Colón 922- Planta Baja-Oficina 29

Buenos Aires (C1063ACW) Phone: +54 11 43492747 Fax: +54 11 43492549 Email: cpadro@mecon.gov.ar

ARMENIA - ARMÉNIE

Ms Gayane NASOYAN Codex Contact Point

Ministry of Agriculture

Government Building #3, Republic Square

375010 Yerevan Republic of Armenia Phone: +374 10 529231 Fax: +374 10 524610

Email: gayane@agrounit.am/agrounit@xter.net

AUSTRALIA - AUSTRALIE

Mr Steve MCCUTCHEON

Executive Manager

Product Integrity, Animal and Plant Health

Australian Government Department of Agriculture,

Fisheries and Forestry

GPO Box 858

CANBERRA, ACT, 2601

Australia

Phone: +61 2 6272 4316 Fax: +61 2 6272 5697

Email: steve.mccutcheon@daff.gov.au

Mr Greg READ

Executive Manager, Exports

Australian Quarantine and Inspection Service

Australian Government Department of Agriculture,

Fisheries and Forestry

GPO Box 858

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Australia

Phone: +61 2 6272 3594 Fax: +61 2 6272 4112

Email: gregory.read@daff.gov.au

Ms Ann BACKHOUSE

Manager, Codex Australia

Product Integrity, Animal and Plant Health

Australian Government Department of Agriculture,

Fisheries and Forestry

GPO Box 858

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Australia

Phone: +61 2 6272 5692 Fax: +61 2 6272 3103

Email: ann.backhouse@daff.gov.au

Mr Graham PEACHEY

Chief Executive Officer

Food Standards Australia New Zealand

Level 2

55 Blackall Street

Barton ACT 2600

Australia

Phone: +61 2 6271 2222 Fax: +61 2 6271 2261

Email: graham.peachey@foodstandards.gov.au

AUSTRIA - AUTRICHE

Mr Dieter JENEWEIN

Austrian Agency for Health and Food Safety

EU- Coordination Codex Alimentarius

Spargelfeldstrasse 191 A1226 Vienna, Austria

Phone: +43 50 55534149 Fax: +43 50 555 25802

Email: dieter.jenewein@ages.at

Mr Alexander ZILBERSZAC

Head of Unit IV/8

Federal Ministry of Health and Women

Radetzkystrasse2, A-1031 Vienna

Austria

Phone: +4317 11004617 Fax: +4317 137952

Email: alexander.zilberszac@bmgf.gv.at

Dr. Erhard HÖBAUS

Head of Division "Nutrition and Quality Assurance"

Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management

Stubenring 12 A-1012 Wien

Phone: +431 71100-2855 Fax: +431 71100-2901

Email: erhard.hoebaus@lebensministerium.at

BARBADOS - BARBADE

Dr. Corlita BABB-SCHAEFER

Counsellor

Permanent Mission of Barbados to the United Nations

and other international organizations Chemin François-Lehmann 18A CH-1218 Grand-Saconnex

Geneva

Phone: +41 22 791 8500 Fax: +41 22 791 8509

Email: cbabb-schaefer@foreign.gov.bb

BELGIUM - BELGIQUE - BÉLGICA

M Charles CRÉMER

Directeur

SPF, Santé Publique

Sécurité de la chaîne alimentaire et Environnement Service Denrées alimentaires, Aliments pour Animaux

et autres produits de consommation Place Victor Horta, 40 Boîte 10

Bloc II -7° étage 1060 Bruxelles

Phone: +32 (0) 2 5247371 Fax: +32 (0) 2 5247399

Email: charles.cremer@health.fgov.be

M Marc CORNELIS Conseiller général

Agence fédérale pour la Sécurité de la Chaîne

Alimentaire

DG Politique de contrôle - Relations internationales

Avenue Simon Bolivar, 30

1000 Bruxelles

Phone: +32 2 2083834 Fax: +32 2 2083823

Email: marc.cornelis@favv.be

M Johan HALLAERT

Conseiller

Fédération belge des Industries alimentaires (FEVIA)

Avenue des Arts, 43 1040 Bruxelles Phone: +32 2 5501760

Fax: +32 2 5501754 Email: jh@fevia.be

M Guido KAYAERT

Vice-President

Relations with the European Institutions

Nestle Coordination Center Rue de Birmingham, 221

1070 Bruxelles Phone: +32 2 5295330 Fax: +32 2 5295667

Email: guido.kayaert@be.nestle.com

M Luc OGIERS Directeur SPF Economie City Atrium C Rue de Progrès 50 1210 Bruxelles Phone: 0032 2 2777481

Fax: 0032 2 277 5304

Email: luc.ogiers@mineco.fgov.be

BENIN - BÉNIN

Dr. Ahoukpo Denis MIKODE

Directeur et Secrétaire Permanent

Direction de l'alimentation et de la nutrition appliquee et secretariat permanent du comité national du Codex

Alimentarius

Phone: +229 95958422 Fax: +229 20213963 Email: admikode@yahoo.fr

BHUTAN - BHOUTAN - BHUTÁN

Mr Karma DORJI

Executive Director

Bhutan Agriculture and Food Regulatory Authority

(BAFRA)

Ministry of Agriculture

Royal Government of Bhutan

Thimphu

Phone: +9752 327030 Fax: +9752 327032

Email: karma_d@moa.gov.bt

Mr Thuji TSHERING

Chief Regulatory and Quarantine Officer

Bhutan Agriculture and Food Regulatory Authority

(BAFRA)

Ministry of Agriculture Royal Government of Bhutan

Thimphu

Phone: +9752 327031 Fax: +9752 327032

Email: t_tshering@moa.gov.bt

Mr Dorjee DORJEE Chief Horticulture Officer Department of Agriculture

Ministry of Agriculture Royal Government of Bhutan

Thimphu

Phone: +9752 323183 Fax:+9752 323562 Email: dorjee@moa.gov.bt

Mr Dasho Sangay THINLEY

Secretary

Ministry of Agriculture Rioyal Government of Bhutan

Thimphu

Phone: +9752 322379 Fax: +975 2 326834

Email: s_thinley@moa.gov.bt

BOTSWANA

Dr. Alexander Clemence MOSHA

Ag. Managing Director Private Bag 008 Kanye

Botswana

Phone: (267) 5440441 Fax: (267) 5440713 Email: mosha@naftec.org

BRAZIL - BRÉSIL - BRASIL

Ms Ligia Maria SCHERER

Minister Counsellor

Deputy Permanent Representative to FAO

Permanent Representation of the Federative Republic

of Brazil to FAO

Via di Santa Maria dell'Anima 32

00186 Rome

Phone: + 39 06 68307576 Fax: +39 06 68398802

Mr Sergio Aguiar Viana CARVALHO

Secretary

Ministry of External Relations Esplanada dos Ministérios, Bloco H Anexo I, Sala 531, Brasília, DF

Phone: +55 61 3411 6369 Fax: +55 61 3226 3255 Email: sviana@mre.gov.br

Ms María Aparecida MARTINELLI

Coordinator of Brazilian Codex Committee

National Institute for Metrology, Standardization and

Industrial Quality - INMETRO

Ministry of Development, Industry and Trade SEPN 511, edificio Bittar III, Bloco B, 4º Andar

70 750-527 Brasília, DF

Brazil

Phone: +55 61 3340 2211 Fax: +55 6161 3347 3284

Email: codexbrasil@inmetro.gov.br

Mr Cleber Ferreira SANTOS

Food General Manager

National Health Surveillance Agency

SEPN 511 Ed. Bittar II -CEP: 70750541 Brasilia, DF

Brazil

Phone: +055 61 3448 6091 Fax: +055 61 3448 6274 Email: alimentos@anvisa.gov.br

Ms Antonia María DE AQUINO

Manager of Special Products

National Health Surveillance Agency SEPN 511, Bloco A, Ed. Bittar II

70750-541 Brasília, DF

Brazil

Phone: +055 61 34486352 Fax: +055 61 3448 6274

alimentos@anvisa.gov.br/Antonia.maria@anvisa.gov.

Mr Odilson Luiz Ribeiro e SILVA

Director

Department of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Matters Secretariat of Agribusiness International Relations Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply Esplanada dos Ministérios Bloco "D"- Edifício Sede-

Sala 352

70 043-900 Brasília, DF Phone: +55 61 3218 2834 Fax: +55 61 3225 4738

Email: odilson@agricultura.gov.br

Mr Guilherme Antônio DA COSTA JÚNIOR

General Coordinator for WTO Negotiations Secretariat of Agribusiness International Relations

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply

Esplanada dos Ministérios, Bloco "D"- Edifício Sede-

Sala 348

70 043-900-Brasília, DF

Brazil

Phone: +55 61 3218 2834 Fax: +55 61 3225 4738

Email: guilherme@agricultura.gov.br

Mr Alexandre PONTES

Coordinator for Codex Alimentarius Matters Secretariat of Agribusiness International Relations Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply Esplanada dos Ministérios, Bloco "D"-Edifício Sede-

Sala347

70 043 -900 Brasília, DF

Brasil

Phone: +55 61 3218 2834 Fax: +55 61 3225 4738

Email: apontes@agricultura.gov.br

Mr Francisco Frederico Sparenberg OLIVEIRA

Technical Adviser

Brazilian Association of Technical Standards-ABNT

Brazil

Phone: +55 11 30173655 Fax: +55 11 30173633 Email: ffsoliveira@abnt.org.br

BULGARIA - BULGARIE

Mrs Dessislava PARUSHEVA

Second Secretary'

Permanent Mission of Bulgaria 16, Chemin des Crets-de-Pregny

1218-Grand Saconnex

Geneva

BURUNDI

Mr Nestor BIKORIMANA

Directeur

Bureau Burundais de Normalisation et Contrôle de la

Oualité

Point de contact du codex alimentarius

Bujumbura

Phone: +257 221815(b)/257 730585(m)

Fax: +257 225595

Email: bbn@onatel.bi/bikonest@yahoo.fr

CAMEROON - CAMEROUN - CAMERÚN

M Moungui MÉDI

Deputy Permanent Representative to FAO Embassy of the Republic of Cameroon

Via Siracusa 4-6 00161 Rome

Phone: +39 06 4403644 Fax: +39 06 4403644

Email: medimoungui@yahoo.fr

CANADA - CANADÁ

Ms Debra BRYANTON Executive Director, Food Safety Canadian Food Inspection Agency 159 Cleopatra Drive

Ottawa, Ôntario, K1A 0Y9 Phone: +613 221-7155 Fax: +613 221-7295

Email: dbryanton@inspection.gc.ca

Ms Janet BEAUVAIS

Director-General, Food Directorate

Health Canada

Building #7 Postal Locator (0701A5)

Tunney's pasture

Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0L2 Phone: +613 957-1821 Fax: +613 957-1784

Email: janet_beauvais@hc-sc.gc.ca

Mr Ron BURKE

Codex Contact Point for Canada

Director, Bureau of Food Regulatory, International

and Interagency Affairs Food Directorate Health Canada

200 Tunney's Pasture Driveway Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0L2 Phone: +613 957-1748

Phone: +613 957-1748 Fax: +613 941-3537

Email: ronald_burke@hc-sc.gc.ca

Dr. Anne MACKENZIE

Senior Science Advisor

Canadian Food Inspection Agency 159 Cleopatra Drive, Room 113 Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0Y9

Phone: +613 221-7084 Fax: +613 221-7010

Email: amackenzie@inspection.gc.ca

Mr Allan MCCARVILLE

Senior Adviser, Codex

Bureau of Food Regulatory, International and

Interagency Affairs Food Directorate Health Canada

200 Tunney's Pasture Driveway Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0L2 Phone: +613 957-0189

Fax: +613 941-3537

Email: allan_mccarville@hc-sc.gc.ca

Mr Bertrand GAGNON

Manager, International Coordination Canadian Food Inspection Agency

159 Cleopatra Drive Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0Y Phone: +613 221-7161 Fax: +613 221-7295

Email: bgagnon@inspection.gc.ca

Ms Angela BEHBOODI

Senior Trade Policy Officer

Department of Foreign Affairs and International Trade

11 1 Sussex Drive

Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0G2 Phone: +613 944-2100 Fax: +613 943-0346

Email: angela.behboodi@international.gc.ca

Dr. Réjean BOUCHARD

Assistant Director

Policy and Dairy Production Dairy Farmers of Canada 75 Albert Street, Suite 1101 Ottawa, Ontario, K1P 5E7 Phone: +613 236-9997

Fax: +613 236-0905 Email: rejeanb@dfc-plc.ca

CHILE - CHILI

Sr Gonzalo Ríos KANTOROWITZ

Jefe de Proyecto Negociaciones Internacionales

OMC/MSF y Codex Alimentarius

Ministerio de Agricultura Av. Bulnes 140 Santiago

Chile

Phone: (56-2) 345 1581-345 1576

Fax: (56-2) 345 1578

Email: gonzalo.rios@sag.gob.cl

Sr Felipe LOPEANDIA

Consejero

58 rue de Moillebeau

Geneve, 1209

CHINA - CHINE

Ms XU XIAOJUN

Deputy Director-General

Department of Market and Economy Information

Ministry of Agriculture 11 Nongzhanguan Nanli

Beijing, 100026

Phone: +86 10 64193158 Fax: + 86 10 64193154 Email: xuxiaojun@agri.gov.cn

Mr KAN XUEGUI

Consultant

Department of Health Inspection and Law

Enforcement Ministry of Health No.1 Xizhimenwai Nanlu

Beijing 100044

Phone: +86 10 68792403 Fax: +86 10 68792387

Email: xueguikan@hotmail.com

Ms LIAO XIAOQIAN

Director-General

Standardization Administration of the People's

Republic of China

Department of Agriculture, Light Industry and Local

Standardization No.9 Madian East Road Haidian District Beijing 100088

Phone: +86 10 82262652 Fax: +86 10 82260685 Email: liaoxq@sac.gov.cn

Dr. MAK SIN-PING

Controller

Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

HKSAR, P.R. China

45/f, Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2867 5500 Fax: +852 2536 9731 Email: spmak@fehd.gov.hk

Mr CHEN JUNSHI

Professor

National Institute of Nutrition and Food Safety

China CDC 29 Nanwei Road Xuanwu District

Beijing

Phone: +86 10 83132922 Fax: +86 10 83132922 Email: jshchen@ilsichina.org

Dr. LIN WEI

Deputy Director-General

No. 9 Madian Donglu Haidian District

Beijing P.R. 100088 Phone: +86 10 82262394 Fax: +86 10 82260612 Email: linwei@aqsiq.gov.cn

Dr. QI QINGDONG

Deputy Director-General

Department of International Cooperation

Ministry of Health

No. 1 Xizhimenwai Nanlu, Baijing 100044

Phone: +8610 68792275 Fax: +8610 68792279 Email: qiqd@moh.gov.cn

Dr. LI JINJU

Researcher

State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA) Department of Food Safety Coordination

A38, Beilishi Road Beijing, 100810

Phone: +86 10 68313344-0529 Fax: +86 10 68313344-0519 Email: lijj@sda.gov.cn Mrs ZHAO YANXIA

Director

Department of WTO Affairs Ministry of Commerce Peope's Repunblic of China No.2 Dongchangan Street 100731

Phone: +86 10 65197242 Fax: +86 10 65197310

Email: zhaoyanxia@mofcom.gov.cn

Ms FANG XIAOHUA

Engineer

Department of Market and Economy Information

Ministry of Agriculture 11 Nongzhanguan Nanli Beijing 100026

Phone: +86 1064193156 Fax: +86 10 64193315

Email: fangxiaohua@agri.gov.cn

Dr. HE YIBING

Professor

Institute for the Control of Agrochemicals

Ministry of Agriculture 22 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District Beijing 100026

Phone: +86 10 64194106 Fax: +86 10 64194107 Email: heyibing@agri.gov.cn

Mr XU XUEWAN

Engineer

Development Center of Science and Technology

Ministry of Agriculture 20 Maizidian Street Chaoyang District Beijing, 100026 Phone: +86 10 64195082

Fax: +86 10 64194550 Email: xuxuewan@agri.gov.cn

Mrs ZHANG LINGPING

Director

Department of Health Inspection and Law

Enforcement Ministry of Health No. 1 Xizhimenwai Nanlu Beijing 100044

Phone: +86 10 68792403 Fax: +86 10 68792387

Email: lingpingzhang@yahoo.com

Dr. LIU XIUMEI

Professor

National Institute of Nutrition and Food Safety, China

CDC

29 Nan Wei Road Beijing 100050 Phone: +86 10 8313928 Fax: +86 10 83132928

Email: xmliu01@yahoo.com.cn liuxiu@chinacdc.net.cn

Ms TIAN JING

Research Assistant

National Institute of Nutrition and Food Safety, China

No. 7 Panjiayannanli, Chaoyang District

Beijing 100021

Phone: +86 10 67791259 Fax: +86 10 67711813

Email: tianjing960928@126.com

Mrs HE DANYING

Deputy Director of Division

Department of Supervision on Food Production

AQSIQ

No. 9 Madiandonglu, Haidian District

Beijing 100026

Phone: +86 10 82262026 Fax: +86 10 82260385 Email: hedy@aqsiq.gov.cn

Mr GU SHAOPING

Director

Department for Registration,

Division for Certification and Accreditation

Administration (CNCA)

P.R. China

B-2005, No. 9 Madian East Road

Beijing 100088

Phone: +86 10 8226 2680 Fax: +86 10 8226 0755 Email: gusp@cnca.gov.cn

Mr LIU JUNHUA

Assistant Professor

China National Institute of Standardization

No.4 Zhichun Road Haidian District Beijing, 100088

Phone: +86 10 58811641 Fax: +86 10 58811641 Email: liujh@cnis.gov.cn

Mr LIU YUDONG

Chief of Department

ShanDong Food and Drug Administration No. 11 Jiefang Road Jinan ShanDong Province,

Phone: +86 531 88592610 Fax: +86 531 8859615

Email: liuyudong@sdfda.gov.cn

Mr SUN MING

Assistant Researcher

Center for Health Food Evaluation

State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA)

5th Floor

No.11 Fahua Nanli Chongwen District Beijing 100061

Phone: +86 10 67156130-322 Fax: +86 10 67172946

Email: mtosunming@hotmail.com

Mr ZHANG BINGGUI

Chief of Department

Guangdong Food and Drug Administration No. 753 East Dongfeng Road of Guangzhou

Guangdong Province, 510080 Phone: +86-20 37886060 Fax: +86 20 37886069

Email: zhangbinggui@gdda.gov.cn

Dr. KWOK LAI-KEY

Principal Medical Officer

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

HKSAR, P.R. China

43/F, Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2867 5185 Fax: +852 2893 3547

Email: plkkwok@fehd.gov.hk

Mr CHU YUEN-KEUNG

Scientific Officer

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

HKSAR, P.R. China

43, Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2867 5606 Fax: +852 2893 3547 Email: jykchu@yahoo.com.cn

Mr YANG XIAOKUN

First Secretary

Permanent Mission of China

Geneva

Mr PANG Yuliang

Third Secretary

Permanent Representation of the People's Republic of China to the United Nations Agencies for Food and

Agriculture Via degli Urali 12 00144 Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 59193123 Fax: +30 06 59193130

Email: pangyyuliang@yahoo.com.cn

COLOMBIA - COLOMBIE

Sra. Gloria CONTRERAS

Asesora

Calle 28 No. 13A -15

Mr Diego PRIETO Minister Counsellor 82 rue de Lausanne

Genève

Dra. Luz Estela ARANGO

Ministro Cnsejero

Mision Prmanente de Colombia Chemin du Champ d' Anier 17-19

1209 Genebra

Phone: +44 (0) 22 7984554 Fax: 41 (0) 22 7910787

Email: donuginebra@minrelext.gov.co

COOK ISLANDS - ÎLES COOK – ISLAS COOK

Dr. Ngatoko NGATOKO

P.O. Box 96 Rarotonga Cook Islands Phone: +682 28711 Fax: +682 21 881

Email: ngatoko@agriculture.gov.ck

COSTA RICA

Mrs Giannina María LAVAGNI

Tecnóloga de Alimentos

Secretaría Técnica del Codex en Costa Rica Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Comercio

Edificio IFAM en Moravia

A.P. 10216 1000 San José

Phone: +506 236-2538 Fax: +506-236-7192 Email: glavagni@meic.go.cr

CROATIA - CROATIE - CROACIA

Ms Adamic MAJA First Secretary Croatia Mission

Geneva

CUBA

Sra. Hortensia Nancy FERNÁNDEZ RODRÍGUEZ

Directora General

Oficina Nacional de Normalización (NC)

Punto de Contacto de Cuba Calle E No. 261 esq.13 Vedado, Plaza

La Habana Cuba

Phone: +537 830 0879 Fax: +537 836 8048 Email: nancy@ncnorma.cu

Ing. René Antonio FERNÁNDEZ INFANTE

Director de Normalización

Oficina Nacional de Normalización (NC)

Calle E No. 261 esq.13 Vedado, Plaza La Habana Cuba

Phone: +537 8300732 Fax: +537 836 8048 Email: nc@ncnorma.cu Lic. Iliana MONTERO PACHECO

Vicedirectora Técnica

Centro Nacional de Inspección de la Calidad

Ministerio de la Industria Alimenticia

Rancho Boyeros, Km.3 1/2 Crucero de Armada y Ave.

Camaguey, Cerro La Habana Cuba

Phone: +537 57 7143 Fax: +537 6427166 Email: alina@cnica.cu

Lic Jorge FERNANDEZ RODRIGUEZ

J'Dpto. Higiene de los Alimentos y Nutrición Centro Provincial de Higiene y Epidemiología de Provincia Habana Ministerio de Salud Pública de

Cuba

Calle 43 No. 10606e/106 y 108

Marianao, La Habana

Cuba

Phone: +537 2600029

Email: carmenam@infomed.sld.cu

Lic. Mariela CUÉ LADRÓN DE GUEVARA

Dirección de Regulaciones Técnicas y Calidad

Ministerio de Comercio Exterior

Calle 23 e Infanta 16

Vedado La Habana

Cuba Phone: +537 550454

Fax: +537 550461

Email: mariela@mincex.cu

CYPRUS - CHYPRE - CHIPRE

Mr Ioannis KARIS

Director of CYS

Cyprus Organization for Standardization

Email: i.karis@cys.com.cy

Mrs Phrosso HADJILUCA

Director ECC Cyprus

Competition and Consumer Protection Service Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Tourism

6A Araouzou Street 1421 Nicosia

Cyprus

Phone: +357 22867167 Fax: +357 22304916

Email: phadjiluca@mcit.gov.cy

CZECH REPUBLIC – RÉPUBLIQUE TCHÈQUE – REPÚBLICA CHECA

Ms Eva PRIBYLOVÁ

Officer-in-Charge

National Codex Contact Point

Ministry of Agriculture

Food Production Department

Tesnov 17 11705 Praha 1

Phone: +420 221 812 795

Fax: +420 222 314 117 Email: pribylova@mze.cz

DEMOCRATIC PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF KOREA RÉPUBLIQUE POPULAIRE DÉMOCRATIQUE DE CORÉE - REPÚBLICA POPULAR DEMOCRÁTICA DE COREA

Mr JANG II Hun Counsellor 1, Chemin de Plonjon 1207 Geneva

Mr SUNG II Third Secretary Permanent Mission 1, Chemin de Plonjon

DENMARK - DANEMARK - DINAMARCA

Mr Knud ØSTERGAARD

Head of Division

Danish Veterinary and Food Administration

Mørkhøj Bygade 19 DK-2860 Søborg Phone: +45 33956120 Fax: +45 33 956001 Email: koe@fyst.dk

Ms Jytte KJÆRGAARD

Head of Section

Danish Veterinary and Food Administration

Mørkhøj Bygade 19 DK-2860 Søborg Phone: +45 33 956233 Fax: +45 33 956001 Email: jk@fvst.dk

Mrs Linda JENSEN

Food Scientist, Head of Section

Danish Meat Association

Axeltory 3 DK-16099 Copenhagen V Denmark

Phone: +45 33 732500 Fax: +45 33 931023

Email: LMJ@danishmeat.dk

Mrs Annette TOFT Deputy Director

The Danish Agricultural Council

3, Axeltory

DK-1609 Copenhagen V

Denmark

Phone: +45 33 394000 Fax: +45 33 394150 Email: at@agriculture.dk

Mr Jørgen Hald CHRISTENSEN

Head of Division - Quality and Food Safety

Danish Dairy Board Frederiks Alle DK-8000 Århus C

Denmark

Phone: +45 873 12000 Fax: +45 873 12001 Email: jhc@mejeri.dk Mrs Susanne KOFOED

Consultant

The Danish Agricultural Council

3, Axeltory

DK-1609 Copenhagen V

denmark

Phone: +45 33 394000 Fax: +45 33 394150 Email: Sko@agriculture.dk

ECUADOR - ÉQUATEUR

Sr Arturo CABRERA

Counsellor

Permanent Mission of Ecuador 80-82 rue de Lausanne 1202

Geneva

Sr Galo LARENAS

Alternate Permanent Representative Permanent Mission of Ecuador 80-82 rue de Lausanne 1202

Geneva

Sr Carlos SANTOS

Counsellor

Permanent Mission of Ecuador 80-82 rue de Lausanne 1202

Geneva

EGYPT - ÉGYPTE - EGIPTO

Dr. Abdel Azim BAYOUMY

General Director of Food Safety Department

MoHP Cairo Egypt

Phone: +202 7948152 Fax: +202 7921071

Email: abdelazim@yahoo.com

Prof. M. Fahmi SADDIK Professor Food Hygiene Nutrition Institute Phone: 3646413

Email: ilsi@redata.net.eg

Eng. Kamil DARWISH

Senior Food Standard Specialist

Egyptian Organization for Standardization and

Quality Control (EOS)

16 Tadreeb El-Modarrebeen St.

Ameriya, Cairo Egypt

Phone: 2845531 Fax: 2845507

Email: moi@idsc.gov.eg

EL SALVADOR

Srta. Carmen CASTILLO-GALLANDAT

Ministro Consejero

Misión Permanente de El Salvador ante las Naciones

Unidas y Los Organismos Internacionales

65 rue de Lausanne Ginebra, Suiza

Phone: +41 22 732 7036 Fax: +41 22 738 4744

Email: mission.l-salvador@ties.itu.int

ERITREA - ÉRYTHRÉE

Mr Tekleab MESGHENA

Director-General Codex Contact Point

Regulatory Services Department

Ministry of Agriculture

P.O. Box 1162

Asmara

Phone: +291 1 120395 Fax: +291 1 127508

Email: mtekleab@eol.com.er

ESTONIA - ESTONIE

Mrs Katrin LÕHMUS

Senior Officer

Food Safety Office of the Food and Veterinary

Department

Ministry of Agriculture

Lai 39/41 Tallinn 15056 Estonia

Phone: +372 256 509 Fax: +372 6256 210

Email: katrin.lohmus@agri.ee

Eng. Kamel Mohamed KAMEL DARWISH

Senior Expert Food Standards

Egyptian Organization for Standardization and

Quality (EOS)

16 Tadreeb El-Modarrebeen St., Ameriya

Cairo Egypt

Phone: 2845522 Fax: 2845504

Email: moi@idsc.net.eg

EUROPEAN COMMUNITY (MEMBER

ORGANIZATION) -

COMMUNAUTÉ EUROPÉENNE (ORGANISATION MEMBRE) - COMUNIDAD EUROPEA

(ORGANIZACIÓN MIEMBRO)

Mr Michael SCANNELL

Principal Administrator

European Commission

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO)

Rue Froissart 101 (2/54)

B-1049 Brussels

Phone: +32 2 299 3364 Fax: +32 2 299 8566

Email: Michael.scannell@cec.eu.int

Mr Jérôme LEPEINTRE

Administrator

European Commission

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO)

Rue Froissart 101 (2/62)

B-1040 Bruxelles Phone: +32 2 299 3701

Fax: +32 2 299 8566

Email: jerome.lepeintre@cec.eu.int

Mr Basil MATHIOUDAKIS

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO) B-1049 Brussels Phone: +32 2 295 9182

Email: basil.mathioudakis@ec.europa.eu

Mr Frans VERSTRAETE

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO)B-1049 Brussels Phone: +32 2 295 6359

Email: frans.verstraete@ec.europa.eu

Mr Miguel GRANERO ROSELL

European Commission

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO) B-1049 Brussels Phone: +32 2 295 8110

Email: miguel-angel.granero-rosell@ec.europa.eu

Ms Eva ZAMORA ESCRIBANO

European Commission

Health and Consumer Protection Directorate-General

(SANCO) B-1049 Brussels Phone: +32 2 299 8682

Email: eva-maria.zamora-escribano@ec.europa.eu

FINLAND - FINLANDE - FINLANDIA

Mr Matti AHO Director-General

Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

P.O. Box 30

P.O. Box 32

00023 Government, FINLAND Phone: +358-9 1605 3380 Fax: +358-9 1605 4777

Email: matti.aho@mmm.fi

Ms Anne HAIKONEN Counsellor, Legal Affairs Ministry of Trade and Industry

00023 Government, FINLAND Phone: +358-9 1606 3654 Fax: +358-9 1606 2670

Fax: +358-9 1606 2670 Email: anne.haikonen@ktm.fi

Mr Sebastian HIELM Senior Health Officer

Ministry of Social Affairs and Health

P.O. Box 33

00023 Government, FINLAND Phone: +358-9 1607 4121 Fax: +358-9 1607 4120 Email: Sebastian.hielm@stm.fi

Mr Kari TÖLLIKKÖ Principal Administrator

The General Secretariat of the Council of the

European Union Finnish Presidency Rue de la Loi 175 1048 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 281 7841 Fax: +32 2 281 6198

Email: kari.tollikko@consilium.europa.eu

Mr Philip LANDON Administrator

The General Secretariat of the Council of the European Union - Finnish Presidency

Rue de la Loi 175 1048 Brussels Belgium

Phone: + 32 2 281 4966 Fax: +32 2 281 7928

Email: philip.landon@consilium.europa.eu

Ms Rose-Marie ELFQUIST

The General Secretariat of the Council of the

European Union Finnish Presidency Rue de la Loi 175 1048 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 281 9508 Fax: +32 2 281 7928

Email: rose-marie.elfquist@consilium.europa.eu

Ms Rose-Marie ELFQUIST

The General Secretariat of the Council of the

European Union Finnish Presidency Rue de la Loi 175 1048 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 281 9508 Fax: +32 2 281 7928

Email:

rose-marie.elfquist@consilium.europa.eu

FRANCE - FRANCIA

Mme Catherine CHAPOUX

Ajointe au chef de bureau

Bureau des accords multilatéraux sanitaires et

phyosanitaires

Direction générale de l'alimentation

251, rue de Vaugirard 75732 PARIS Cedex 15

France

Phone: +00 33 149 558486 Fax: +00 33 149 554462

Email: catherine.chapoux@agriculture.gouv.fr

M Pascal AUDEBERT

Point de Contact du Codex Alimentarius en France

Premier Ministre

Secrétariat général des Affaires européennes

2, boulevard Diderot 75572 PARIS Cedex 12

France

Phone: +33 1 44 871603 Fax: +33 1 44 871604 Email: sgae-codex-

fr@sgae.gouv.fr/pascal.audebert@sgae.gouv.fr

Mme Roseline LECOURT

Chargée de Mission

Ministère de l'Economie, des Finances et de l'Industrie

DGCCRF - Télédoc 051 59, boulevard Vincent Auriol 75703 PARIS Cedex 13

France

Phone: +00 33 144 973470 Fax: +00 33 144 973037

Email: Roseline.lecourt@dgccrf.finances.gouv.fr

Mme Dominique BUREL FIL France-ALF/CNIEL 42, rue de Châteaudun 75314 PARIS Cedex 09

France

Phone: +00 33 149 707105 Fax: +00 33 142 806345 Email: dburel-alf@cniel.com

Mme Annie LOC'H

Groupe DANONE-Directeur Affaires Réglementaires

17, bd Haussmann 75009 PARIS

France

Phone: +33 1 44 352432 Fax: +33 1 44 352695

Email: annie.loch@danone.com

GEORGIA - GÉORGIE

Mr Teimuraz BAKRADZE

Minister

Permanent Mission of Georgia to the United Nations

Rue Richard wagner 1

Geneva

GERMANY - ALLEMAGNE - ALEMANIA

Mr Bernhard KÜHNLE

Director-General

Food Safety and Veterinary Affairs

Federal Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Consumer

Protection Rochusstraße 1 D-53123 Bonn

Phone: 49(0)228 - 529 3542 Fax: 49(0)228 - 529 3341 Email: AL3@bmvel.bund.de

Mr Gerhard BIALONSKI

Head of Unit

Federal Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Consumer

Protection Rochusstraße 1 D-53123 Bonn

Phone: +49(0)228-529 4651 Fax: +49(0)228-529 4943 Email: 314@bmvel.bund.de

Mr Michael HAUCK

Federal Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Consumer

Protection

Mauerstraße 29-32 D-10117 Berlin

Phone: +49 (0) 30 20063263 Fax: +49 (0) 30 20063273

Email: codex.germany@bmelv.bund.de

Ms Lucia HERRMANN

Federal Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Consumer

Protection Rochusstraße 1 D-53123 Bonn

Phone: +49 (0) 228 5293835 Fax: +49 (0) 228 5293429 Email: 423@bmelv.bund.de

Dr. Heino ROSNER

Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature

Conservation and Nuclear Safety

Referat RS II 2 Postfach 120629 D-53048 Bonn

Phone: +49 (0) 3641 424575 Email: heino.rosner@tiscali.de

Dr Rolf GROSSKLAUS

Director and Professor

Federal Institute for Risk Assessment (BfR)

Thielallee 88-92 D-14195 Berlin

Phone: +49 (03) 8412 3230 Fax: +49 (03) 8412 3715

Email: rolf.grossklaus@bfr.bund.de

Mr Thomas KÜTZEMAIER

Managing Director

German Dairy Association

Meckenheimer Allee 137

D-53115 Bonn

Phone: +49 (0) 228 982430 Fax: +49 (0) 228 982 4320

Email: th.kuetzemeier@vdm-deutschland.de

Dr. Jörg W. RIEKE

Managing Director

German Dairy Association

Milchindustrie-Verband e V.

Godesberger Allee 157

D-53175 Bonn

Phone: +49 (0) 228 9596923 Fax: +49 (0) 228 371535 Email: rieke@milchindustrie.de

Ms Angelika MROHS

Managing Director (Geschäftsführerin)

Bund für Lebensmittelrecht und Lebensmittelkunde e

V

Godesberger Allee 142-148

D-53175 Bonn

Phone: +49 (0) 228 81993132 Fax: +49 (0) 228 375069 Email: amrohs@bll.de

Dr. Michael PACKERT

Gottlieb-Daimler Strasse

68165 Mannheim

GHANA

Mr Kwamina VAN-ESS

Deputy Chief Executive

Food Division, Food and Drugs Board

P.O. Box Ct 2783 Cantonments

Accra Ghana

Phone: +233 21 910761 Email: fdb@ghana.com

kwaminav@yahoo.com

Mr Kwaku Owusu BAAH

Chairman, National Codex Committee, Ghana

Chief Director

Ministry of Food and Agriculture

P.O. Box M 37

Accra, Ghana

Phone: +233 21 666567/244 232015

Fax: +233 21 668245

Email: kwakobaah@yahoo.com

GREECE - GRÈCE - GRECIA

Mr Vasileios KRESTOS

Head Directorate for Nutritional Policy and Research

Ministry of Development Hellenic Food Authority (EFET) 124 Kifisias Av. &2 Iatridou str

115 26 Athens

Greece

Phone: +302 106971514 Fax: +302 106971650 Email: vkrestos@efet.gr

Mrs Alkaterini DAMIGOU

Health Counsellor

Permanent Mission of Greece in Geneva

4 Rue Leman, 1201

Geneva

Phone: +004122 9098940 Fax: +004122 7322150

Mrs Danai PAPANASTASIOU

Officer

Ministry of Development

Hellenic Food Authority (EFET)

Directorate of Nutritional Policy and Research

Department of Quality Standards Greek Codex Contact Point 124 Kifisias Av & 2 Iatridou Str

115 26 Athens

GreecePhone: +302 106971660

Fax: +302 106971650 Email: dpapanastasiou@efet.gr

GUATEMALA

Sr. Carlos Ramiro MARTÍNEZ ALVARADO

Embajador

Representante Permanente Mision Permanente de Guatemala

Ante la Oficina europea de las Naciones Unidas y los

Organismos Internacionales

Ginebra Suiza

Sra. Stephanie HOCHSTETTER SKINNER-KLÉE

Consejero

Mision Permanente de Guatemala

Ante la Oficina europea de las Naciones Unidas y los

Organismos Internacionales

Ginebra Suiza

Sra. Soledad URRUELA ARENALES

Mision Permanente de Guatemala

Ante la Oficina europea de las Naciones Unidas y los

Organismos Internacionales

Ginebra Suiza

GUINEA - GUINÉE

Mme Hadja Minte CISSE

Directrice Générale

Institut National de Normalisation et de Métrologie

Phone: +224 60 299539/30413503

Fax: +224 30 413990

Email: mintecisse@yahoo.fr/inm89@yahoo.fr

HONDURAS

Dr. Cesar Augusto NOE PINO

Director

National Services for Plant Health and Food Safety

and Inspection c/o Tegucigalpa Honduras

Phone: + 504 235 8425 Fax: +504 239 1144

Email: hondurascodex@yahoo.com

cnoepino@yahoo.com

HUNGARY - HONGRIE - HUNGRÍA

Dr. Károlyné SZERDAHELYI

Senior Counsellor

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Development

P.O. Box 1 1860 Budapest 55

Hungary

Phone: +36 1 301 4110 Fax: +36 1 301 4808

Email: tanya.szerdahelyi@fvm.hu

Dr. Mária VÁRADI

Head of Unit

Central Food Research Institute

H-1022, Budapest Herman Otto út 15

Hungary

Phone: +36 1 355 8982 Fax: +36 1 292 9853 Email: m.varadi@cfri.hu

ICELAND - ISLANDE - ISLANDIA

Mr Thordur ASGEIRSSON

Director of Fisheries

Directorate of Fisheries

Dalshraun 1, 220 Hafnarfjordur

Iceland

Phone: +354 569 7900 Fax: +354 569 7991 Email: thordur@fiskistofa.is

INDIA - INDE

Mrs Rita TEAOTIA
Joint Secretary
Department of Health

Ministry of Health and Family Welfare

Nirman Bhavan Maulana Azad Road New Delhi - 110011

India

Phone: +91 11 23061195 Fax: +91 11 23061842 Email: jsrt@nb.nic.in

Mr Dinesh SHARMA Joint Secretary Ministry of Commerce Udyog Bhavan New Delhi-110001 Phone: +91 11 23061837 Fax: +91 11 23061837

Mr Arvind KAUSHAL

Email: dineshsharma@nic.in

Joint Secretary

Department of Animal Husbandry and Dairying

Ministry of Agriculture Room No.240, Krishi Bhawan Dr. Rajendra Prasad Road New Delhi 110001 Phone: +91 1 23384509

Phone: +91 1 23384509 Fax: +91 11 23383228 Email: js.pf@nic.in

Dr. P.S. CHADURKAR

Plant Protection Advisor

Directorate of Plant Protection Quarantine and

Storage

Ministry of Agriculture No 4 Faridabad 121001 Phone: +91 129 2413985 Fax: +91 129 2412125 Email: ppa@nic.in

Mr A.K. SHRIVASTAV

Deputy Assistant Director-General (PFA) Directorate General of Health Services

Nirman Bhavan New Delhi 110011 Phone: +91 11 23063030 Fax: +91 11 23061968 Email: dadgaks@nic.in codex.india@nic.in

INDONESIA - INDONÉSIE

Dr. SUNARYA

National Standardization Agency of Indonesia Manggala Wanabakti Building Block IV, 4th Floor

JL. Gatot Subroto, Senayan

Jakarta 10270 Phone: (62-21) 5747042 Fax: (62-21) 5747045 Email: sunarya@bsn.or.id Mrs Erniningsih HARYADI National Standardization Agency

Manggala Wanabakti Build, Block IV, 4th Senayan

Jakarta

Phone: (62-21) 5747043 Fax: (62-21) 5747045 Email: sps-2@bsn.or.id

Prof. Dr Dedi FARDIAZ

Deputy Chairman for Food Safety and Hazardous

Substance Control

National Agency for Drugs and Foods Control

Jl Percetakan Negara No 23

Jakarta 10560

Phone: (62 21) 4253857 Fax: (62 21) 4287701

Email: d_fardiaz@hotmail.com/

deputi3@pom.go.id

Mrs Indrawati SOEGIANTO National Standardization Agency

JL Gatot Soebroto

Senayan Jakarta

Phone: (62-21) 5747043 Fax: (62-21) 5747045 Email: indrawati@bsn.or.id

Prof.Dr F.G. WINARNO PT. Mbrio Biotekkindo Jl. Pajarin Indah V No1 c

Bogor

Phone: (62-251) 332403 Fax: (62-251) 377973 Email: fgw@mbrio-food.com

Dr. Atih Suryati HERMAN Ministry of Industry Jl. Gatot Subroto Kav. 52-53

Jakarta

Phone: +(62-21) 352244919 Fax: +(62-21) 3524919 Email: atih_suryati@yahoo.com

Mr T. ARITONANG Ministry of Industry Jl. Gatot Subroto Kav. 52-53 Jakarta

Phone: +(62-21) 5255509 Fax: +(62-21) 5252709

Email: aritonang_pi@yahoo.co.id

Sri.Irawati SUSALIT

Director of Food Product Standardization National Agency for Drugs and Foods Control

JL. Percetakan Negara No. 23

Jakarta

Phone: (62-21) 42875584 Fax: (62-21) 42875780 Email: iras48@yahoo.com standarpangan@pom.go.id

IRAN (ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF) – IRAN (RÉPUBLIQUE ISLAMIQUE D') – IRÁN (REPÚBLICA ISLÁMICA DEL)

Mr Javad Shakhs TAVAKOLIAN

Ambassador

Permanent Representative to FAO

Permanent Mission of the Islamic Republic of Iran to

the U.N. Agencies in Rome

Via Aventina 8 00153 Rome

Phone: +39 06 5780334 Fax: +39 06 5747636

Email: javadtavakolian@yahoo.com

Mr Ali Asghar TOFIGH

ISIRI President

Institute of Standards and Industrial Research of

IRAN (ISIRI)

P.O. Box 14155-6139 Tehran Phone: + 98 261 2807045 Fax: +98 261 2828787 Email: standard@isiri.org.ir

Mr Behzad ALIPOUR TEHRANY

Counsellor

Permanent Mission of Iran

Geneva

IRELAND - IRLANDE - IRLANDA

Mr Richard HOWELL

Agricultural Inspector

Department of Agriculture and Food

7C Agriculture House Kildare Street

Dublin 2

Phone: + 00353 1 6072572

Email: Richard.howell@agriculture.gov.ie

Ms J. REGAN

Food Unit

Department of Health and Children

Hawkins House Hawkins Street Dublin 2

Phone: +3531 6354247

Email: joan_regan@health.irlgov.ie

Mr Alan REILLY

Deputy Chief Executive Officer Food Safety Authority of Ireland

Abbey Court Lower Abbey Street

Dublin 1

Phone: +00353 1 8171300 Fax: +00353 1 8171250 Email: areilly@fsai.ie

ISRAEL - ISRAËL

Ms Noa FURMAN Counsellor Mission of Israel 1-3 Avenue de la Paix

Geneva

Phone: +076 5778867

ITALY - ITALIE - ITALIA

Dr.ssa Brunella LO TURCO

Secretary General

Italian Codex Committee

Ministero delle Politiche Agricole Alimentari e

Forestali

Via XX Settembre, 20

Roma 00187

Phone: +39 06 466 56041 Fax: +39 06 4880273

Email: qtc6@politicheagricole.it

Dr. Ciro IMPAGNATIELLO

Ministero delle Politiche Agricole Alimentari e

Forestali

Via XX Settembre, 20

Roma 00187

Phone: +39 06 46656046 Fax: +39 06 4880273

Email: c.impagnatiello@politicheagricole.it

JAMAICA - JAMAÏQUE

Mrs Fay ANDERSON

Acting Manager

Bureau of Standards Jamaica

6 Winchester Rd Kingston 10 Jamaica

Phone: +876 9263140-5 Fax: +876 929-4736

Email: fanderson@bsj.org.jm

Miss Kesseta SCOTT

Inspector

Bureau of Standards Jamaica

6 Winchester Rd. Kingson 10 Jamaica

Phone: +876 9263140-5 Fax: +876 929-4736 Email: kscott@bsj.org.jm

JAPAN - JAPON - JAPÓN

Mr Naohito TAKAHASHI

Deputy Director-General

Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8950

Japan

Phone: +81 3 3502-1955 Fax: +81 3 3501-8715

Email: naohito_takahashi@nm.maff.go.jp

Dr. Tamami UMEDA

Director

Office of International Food Safety

Policy Planning and Communication Division

Department of Food Safety

Pharmaceutical and Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81-3-3595-2326 Fax: +81-3-3503-7965

Email: umeda-tamami@mhlw.go.jp

Dr. Kazuko FUKUSHIMA

Section Chief

Policy Planning and Communications Division

Department of Food Safety

Pharmaceutical and Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81-3-3595-2326 Fax: +81-3-3503-7965

Email: fukushima-kazuko@mhlw.go.jp

Dr. Hiroshi YOSHIKURA

Adviser

Department of Food Safety

Pharmaceutical and Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo, 100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81-3-3595-2326 Fax: +81-3-3503-7965 Email: codexj@mhlw.go.jp

Mr Tamaki FUSHIMI

Director

Standards and Evaluation Division

Department of Food Safety

Pharmaceutical and Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81 3 3595-2341 Fax: +81 3 3501-4868 Email: codexj@mhlw.go.jp

Dr. Terumasa MATSUOKA

Deputy Director

Standards and Evaluation Division

Department of Food Safety

Pharmaceutical and Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-3 Kaumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81 3 3595-2341 Fax: +81 3 3501-4868 Email: codexj@mhlw.go.jp

Dr. Masanori IMAGAWA

Assistant Director

Office of Quarantine Stations Administration Policy Planning and Communication Division Department of Food Safety,Pharmaceutical and Food

Safety Bureau

Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo

Phone: +81-3 3595-2333 Fax: +81 3 3591-8029 Email: codexj@mhlw.go.jp

Mr Takaya NINOMIYA

Chief

Policy Planning and Communication Division

Department of Food safety

Pharmaceutical and Food safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8916

Japan

Phone: +81 3 3593-2326 Fax: +81 3 3503-7965 Email: codexj@mhlw.go.jp

Mr Shigeru KATAYAMA

Director

Plant Products Safety Division

Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-1 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo, 100-8950

Japan

Phone: +81-3-3591-6585 Fax: +81-3-3580-8592

Email: shigeru_katayama@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Masahiro MIYAZAKO

Deputy Director

Food Safety and Consumer Policy Division Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

1-2-1 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo, 100-8950

Japan

Phone: +81-3-5512-2291 Fax: +81-3-3597-0329

Mr Masahiro SEGAWA

Deputy Director

Plant Products Safety Division

Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8950

Japan

Phone: +81-3-3502-5968 Fax: +81-3-3580-8592

Email: masahiro_segawa@nm.maff.go.jp

Ms Kyoko SATO

Deputy-Director

Plant Products Safety Division

Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries

1-2-1, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8950

Japan

Phone: +81 3 3591-6585 Fax: +81 3 3580-8592

Email: kyouko_satou2@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Kazuhiko SHIMADA

Deputy-Director

Food Safety Commission Secretariat

Prudential Tower 6F

2-13-10 Nagatacho, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8989

Japan

Phone: +81 3 5251-9139 Fax: +81 3 3591-2236

Email: kazuhiko.shimada@cao.go.jp

Mr Kazuhiko IKI

Section Chief

Food Safety Commission Secretariat

Prudential Tower 6F

2-13-10 Nagatacho, Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100-8989

Japan

Phone: +81 3 5251 9190 Fax: +81 3 3591 2236

Email: kazuhiko.iki@cao.go.jp

JORDAN - JORDANIE - JORDANIA

Dr. Yaseen Muhib KHAYYAT

Director-General

Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology

P.O. Box 941287

Amman

Phone: +962 6 5680139 Fax: +962 6 5681099 Email: jism@jism.gov.jo

Dr. Mahmoud Ali AL ZU'BI

Director of Standard Department

Secretary of National Codex Committee

Jordan Institution for Standards and Metrology

P.O. Box 941287

Amman

Phone: +962 6 5680139 Fax: +962 6 5681099

Email: mzoubi@jism.gov.jo/www.jism.gov.go

Dr. Fathi SALEH

Director of Food Control - JFDA Jordan Food and Drug Administration

P.O. Box 811951 Amman, Jordan

Phone: +962 6 4602000 Fax: +962 6 4618425 Email: fathi.saleh@jfda.jo Eng. Rima ZUMOT Director of Health Control

Aqaba Speial Economic Zone Authority

Amman

Phone: +9623 2091000 Fax: +9623 2091017 Email: rzumot@aseza.jo

Dr. Mohammed Yacoub SALEH Head of Animal Production Ministry of Agriculture University Street P.O. Box 2099

Amman

Phone: +962 6568615 Fax: +962 65686310

Email: mabbady1953@yahoo.com

KENYA

Mr Daniel Ndungu MUNGAI

Senior Fisheries Officer

Fisheries Department

Ministry of Livestock and Fisheries Development

P.O. Box 58187 Nairobi Phone: +254 20 3742320/49 Fax: +254 20 3743699/3744530

Email: samaki@saamnet.com/karemeri@yahoo.com

Mr Maurice ONYANGO OTIENO

Senior Fisheries Officer

Fisheries Department

Ministry of Livestock and Fisheries Development

P.O. Box 58187 Nairobi Phone: +254 20 3742320/49 Fax: +254 20 3743699 Email: otiwataga@yahoo.co.uk

Mr Japhet Mworia M'ANAMPIU

Fisheries Officer

Ministry of Livestock and Fisheries Development

P.O. Box 58187, Nairobi Phone: +254 20 3742320 Fax: +254 20 3743699 Email: mworiajap@yahoo.com

Mrs Evah ODUOR

General Manager

Standards Development Division

Kenya Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 54974 Nairobi, 00200

Kenya

Phone: +254-020 605490/605506 Fax: +254-020 609660/604031 Email: oduore@kebs.org

Mrs Alice Okelo ONYANGO

Senior Standards Officer/Codex Office

Kenya Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 54974 Nairobi, 00200

Kenya

Phone: +254-020 605490/605506 Fax: +254-020 609660/604031 Email: akothe@kebs.org

Mrs Hannah M. Kiarie ODIPO Senior Industrial Development Officer Department of Industry

Ministry of Trade and Industry P.O. Box 30430

Nairobi 00100 Kenya

Phone: +254 020315001-7 Fax: +254 020 215815 Email: hkiarie@trade and

industry.go.ke/mercykke@yahoo.com

Dr. Ntayiai RHONEST

Chief Chemist

Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service

Nairobi

Phone: +254 020 882308 Fax: +254 020 882265 Email: kephis@nbnet.co.ke

LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC – RÉPUBLIQUE DÉMOCRATIQUE POPULAIRE LAO –

REPÚBLICA DEMOCRÁTICA POPULAR LAO

Mr Nheune SISAVAD Director-General Intellectual Property

Standardization and Metrology Department Science, Technology and Environment Agency

Prime Minister's Office c/o Vientiane 01000 Lao PDR Phone: +856 21 219002 Fax: +856 21 213472 Email: nheune@hotmail.com

Email: nheune@hotmail.com nheune_sisavad@yahoo.com

LATVIA - LETTONIE - LETONIA

Mr Margers KRAMS Head of Delegation to WTO 137 rue Lausanne Genève

LESOTHO

Mrs Mamosala Semakaleng SHALE

First Secretary

Embassy of the Kingdom of Lesotho

Via Serchio, 8 00198 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 8542419 Fax: +39 06 8542527

Email: lesothoembassy.rome@tin.it

LIBYAN ARAB JAMAHIRIYA JAMAHIRIYA ARABE LIBYENNE JAMAHIRIJA ÁRABE LIBIA

Mrs Huda GASHUT

Counsellor

Libyan Permanent Mission

25 Richmond 1201 Geneva

Email: missionlibya@bluewin.ch

LITHUANIA - LITUANIE - LITUANIA

Mr Albertas BARZDA

Director

National Nutrition Center Ministry of Health Kalvariju Str 153 LT-08221

Vilnius Lithuania

Phone: +370 5 2778919 Fax: +370 5 2778713

Email: rmc@vilnius.omnitel.net

LUXEMBOURG - LUXEMBURGO

M Joe PUNDEL

Premier Secrétaire

Mission du Grand-Duché de Luxembourg

13 Chemin de la Rochette

1202 Genève

Phone: +41 22 9191929 Fax: +41 22 919 1920

Email: joe.pundel@mae.etat.lu

MALAYSIA - MALAISIE - MALASIA

Ms Noraini SUDIN

Director of Product Development and Advisory

Services

Malaysia Palm Oil Board (MPOB)

P.O. Box 10620 Kuala Lumpur 50720

Malaysia

Phone: + 603 8925 9952 Fax: + 603 8922 1742 Email: noraini@mpob.gov.my

Ms Noraini Mohd. OTHMAN Deputy Director (Codex) Ministry of Health Malaysia Level 3, Block E7, Parcel E

Federal Government Administrative Centre

62590 Putrajaya

Malaysia

Phone: +603 8883 3500 Fax: +603 8889 3815

Email: noraini_mohdothman@yahoo.co.uk

Ms Shamsinar ABDUL TALIB Deputy Director (SPS & Regional) Ministry of Health Malaysia Level 3, Block E7, Parcel E

Federal Government Administrative Centre

62590 Putrajaya Malaysia

Phone: +603 8883 3508 Fax: +603 8889 3815

Email:

shamsinar@moh.gov.my/shamsinar_talib@yahoo.co

m

Dr. E. Siong TEE Nutrition Consultant No. 46, Jalan SS 22/32 Damansara Jaya 47400 Petaling Jaya Selangor

Malaysia

Phone: +603 7728 7287 Fax: +603 7728 7426

Email: president@nutriweb.org.my

Mr Johari RAMLI Agricultural Attaché

Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO

Embassy of Malaysia Via Nomentana 297 00162 Rome

Italy

Phone: + 39 06 841 9296 Fax: + 39 06 856 5110 Email: johari5@hotmail.com

Dr. Siew WAI LIN Senior Research Officer

Malaysia Palm Oil Board (MPOB)

No. 6 Persiaran Institusi Bandar Baru Bangi 43000 Kajang Selangor Malaysia

Phone: +603 8925 9155 ext.2430

Fax: +603 8922 1742 Email: siew@mpob.gov.my

Ms Fauziah ARSHAD Senior Research Officer

Malaysia Palm Oil Board (MPOB)

No.6, Persiaran Institusi Bandar Baru Bangi 43000 Kajang Selangor Malaysia

Phone: +603 8925 9432 Fax: +603 8920 1918

Email: fauziah@mpob.gov.my

Ms Sharidah YUSOFF Regulatory Manager

Federation of Malaysian Manufacturers Wisma FMM, Nos.3 Persiaran Dagang,

PJU 9

Bandar Seri Damansara 52000 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Phone: +603 7965 6317 Fax: +603 7965 6768

Email: Sharidah.Yusoff@my.nestle.com

Dr. Vincent NG IN HOOI Production Division

Department of Veterinary Services Malaysia

Ministry of Agriculture

Wisma Tani, Block Podium 4G1, Precint 4 Federal Government Administrative Centre

62630 Putrajaya Malaysia

Phone: +603 8870 2208 Fax: +603 8888 5631

Email: vincentng86@hotmail.com

Dr. Noraini Mohd KHALID

Deputy Director

Malaysian Agricultural Research and Development

Institute (MARDI) P.O. Box 12301 50774 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Phone: +603 8943 7722 Fax: +603 8942 2906 Email: noramk@mardi.my

Mr W A Yusri W A RASHID

Second Secretary

Permanent Mission of Malaysia to the UN, Geneva

ICC First Floor Block H 20 Route de Pre-Bois Geneva 1215 Switzerland

Phone: +41 22 7107500 Fax: +41 22 7107501

Email: yoshi19175@yahoo.com

MALI - MALÍ

M Ousmane TOURE

Directeur Général

Agence Nationale de la Sécurité Sanitaire des

Aliments

Ministère de la Santé

BPE:2362

Quartier du Fleuve

(Ancienne Cour des Grandes Endémies)

Bamako Mali

Phone: +223 2220747 Fax: +223 2230203

Email: oussou_toure@hotmail.com

MALTA - MALTE

Mr Saviour F. BORG

Ambassador

Permanent Representative Permanent mission of Malta 26 Parc Château Banquet

CH-1202 Geneva

Mr John BUSUTTIL

First Secretary

Permanent mission of Malta 26 Parc Château Banquet

CH-1202 Geneva

MEXICO - MEXIQUE - MÉXICO

Mr Carlos R. BERZUNZA

Secretary of the Mexican Codex Committee Director for International Standardization General Bureau of Standards of the Ministry of Economy

Av. Puente de Tecamachalco 6 Lomas de Tecamachalco

Naucalpan, Estado de Mexico, 53950 MEXICO

Phone: +52 55 57299480 Fax: +52 55 55209715

Email: cberzunz@economia.gob.mx

Sr Eduardo JARAMILLO NAVARRETE

Director Ejecutivo de Operación Internacional Comisión Federal para la Protección contra Riesgos

Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Monterrey 33 Piso 1

Col. Roma

C.P. 06700 México D.F.,

México

Ciudad de México Phone: +5255 558586 Fax: +5255 52082974

Email: ejaramillo@salud.gob.mx

Sra. Laura BONILLA Coordinador Subcomite 8

Canacintra

Av. San Antonio No.256 Col. Ampliación Nápoles

03849 México, D.F.

Phone: +52 (777) 3 291091 Fax: +52 (777) 3 291232

Email: laura.bonilla@unilever.com

Sr Jonas ORTEGA

Corporate Affairs and Communication Channel UNILEVER de México, S.DE R.L. De C.V. Rio Consulado 721, Col. Santa María Insurgentes

México, D.F.

Phone: +52 (55) 52 382239 Fax: +52 (55) 52382276

Email: jonas.ortega@unilever.com

Mrs Delia ALTAMIRANO

Regulatory and Government Affairs Pepsico International Sabritas Region Av. Palmas 735-12 Lomas de Chapultepec

México D.F. CP 11000 México

Phone: +52 55 52275550 Fax: +52 55 5227 5530

Email: delia.altamirano@intl.fritolay.com

MOROCCO - MAROC - MARRUECOS

M Mohamed MAJDI

Chef de la Direction de la Protection des Végétaux des Contrôles Techniques et de la Répressioon des

Fraudes

Ministère de l'agriculture, du développement rural et

des pêches maritimes

Place Abdallah Chefchaouni, Quartier Administratif

Rabat Chellah

Phone: +212 37 298150 Fax: +212 37 297544

Email: mohammed_majdi@yahoo.fr

Mme Zakia DRIOUICH

Directrice des Industries des Pêches Martimes

Département des Pêches Martimes

Ministère de l'agriculture, du développement rural et

des pêches maritimes B.P. 476 Agdal Rabat

Maroc

Phone: +212-37 688295/93 Fax: +212-37 688294

Email: driouich@mpm.gov.ma

Dr. Samira SENOUCI

Docteur en Microbiologie-Virologie, PhD Chef du Département de Microbiologie Eaux Aliments et Hygiène Alimentaire 27 Av. Ibn Batouta, B.P. 769 Rabat

Maroc

Phone: +212-37 771902 Fax: +212-37 772067 Email: sensafa@yahoo.fr

M El-Mâati BENAZZOUZ

Laboratoire Officiel d'Analyses et de Recherches

Chimiques

Ministère de l'agriculture, du développement rural et

des pêches maritimes 25 rue Nichakra Rahal 2000 Casablanca

Maroc

Phone: +212 22 302196 fax: +212 22 301972

Email: maatibenazzouz@yahoo.fr

M Majid JOUNDY

Secrétaire Général

Union Nationale des Industries de la Conserve de

Poisson (UNICOP)

7, rue El Yarmouk Longchamps

Casablanca

Phone: +028 84594 Fax: +028 845996/828703 Email: info@belma.ma

NETHERLANDS - PAYS-BAS – PAÍSES BAJOS

Ewald WERMUTH

Ambassador

Permanent Representative to FAO

Permanent Representation of the Kingdom of the Netherlands to the UN Organization for Food and

Agriculture

Via delle Terme Deciane, 6

00153 Rome

Mrs Annie DE VEER

Chairperson CCFAC

Department of Food Quality and Animal Health Ministry of Agriculture, Nature and Food Quality

P.O. Box 20401 2500 EK The Hague The Netherlands Phone: +31 70 3785686 Fax: +3170 3786141

Email: a.de.veer@minlnv.nl

Mr Niek SCHELLING

Senior Policy Officer

International Food Safety Matters

National Coordinator of Codex Alimentarius Department of Food Quality and Animal Health Ministry of Agriculture, Nature and Food Quality

P.O. Box 20401 2500 EK The Hague The Netherlands Phone: +31 70 378 4426 Fax: +31 70 378 6141

Email: n.schelling@minlnv.nl

Mrs Tanja ÅKESSON

Codex Contact Point, Netherlands

Department of Food Quality and Animal Health Ministry of Agriculture, Nature and Food Quality

P.O. Box 20401 2500 EK The Hague The Netherlands Phone: +31 70 3784045 Fax: +31 70 3786141

Email: t.z.j.akesson@mininv.nl

Dr. Wim VAN ECK

Chief Public Health Officer

Food and Consumer Product Safety Authority

P.O. Box 19506 2500 CM The Hague The Netherlands

Phone: +31 70 4484814 Fax: +31 70 4484061 Email: wim.van.eck@vwa.nl Dr. Hans JEURING Chairperson CCPR

Food and Consumer Product Safety Authority

P.O. Box 19506 2500 CM The Hague The Netherlands Phone: +31 70 4484808

Fax: +31 70 4484061 Email: hans.jeuring@vwa.nl

Mrs Wieke TAS

Nutrition, Health Protection and Prevention

Department

Ministry of Health, Welfare and Sport

P.O. Box 20350 2500 EJ The Hague The Netherlands Phone: +31 70 340 6365 Fax: +31 (0)70 340 5554 Email: jw.tas@minvws.nl

Mr M. HUIGE

Counsellor

Permanent Representation of the Kingdom of the

Netherlands

31-33 Avenue Giuseppe-Motta

1211 Geneva 20 CIC

Switzerland

Ms Gerda VRIELINK

First Secretary

Mission of the Netherlands

Geneva

NEW ZEALAND – NOUVELLE-ZÉLANDE – NUEVA ZELANDIA

Dr. Steve HATHAWAY

Director (Science)

New Zealand Food Safety Authority

South Tower 86 Jervois Quay P.O. Box 2835 Wellington

Phone: +64 6 867 1144 Fax: +64 6 868 5207

Email: steve.hathaway@nzfsa.govt.nz

Mr Sundararaman RAJASEKAR

Programme Manager (Codex)

Codex Coordinator and Contact Point for New

Zealand

New Zealand Food Safety Authority

South Tower 86 Jervois Quay P.O. Box 2835 Wellington

Phone: +64 4 4632576 Fax: +64 4 4632583

Email: RajasekarS@nzfsa.govt.nz

Ms Melissa QUARRIE

Policy Analyst (Codex)

New Zealand Food Safety Authority

South Tower 86 Jervois Quay P.O. Box 2835 Wellington New Zealand

Phone: +64 4 4633414 Fax: +64 4 4632583

Email: melissa.quarrie@nzfsa.govt.nz

NICARAGUA

Sra. Alicia MARTIN

Embajadora

Representante Permanente Misión Permanente en Ginebra 37-39 rue de Vermont

1202 Ginebra

Sr Norman SOMARRIBA

Primer secretario

Misión Permanente en Ginebra

37-39 rue de Vermont

1202 Ginebra

Sr Silvio ZAMBRANA

Agregado Comercial

Misión Permanente en Ginebra

37-39 rue de Vermont

1202 Ginebra

NIGERIA - NIGÉRIA

Dr. John NDANUSA AKANYA

Director-General/Chief Executive Standards Organization of Nigeria

13/14, Victoria Arobeike Street, Lekki Phase I

Lagos

Mr Louis OKECHUKWU NJOKU

Deputy-Director/Head Fod Standards

Standards Organization of Nigeria

13/14, Victoria Arobeike Street, Lekki Phase I

Lagos

Phone: +0 234-1 2708244 Email: lonjoku@yahoo.com/ info@sononline-ng.com

Mrs Margret E. ESHIETT

Deputy-Director/Head Codex Contact Point

Standards Organization of Nigeria

13/14, Victoria Arobeike Street, Lekki Phase I

Lagos

Phone: +01 2708238 Fax: +01 2708246

Email: megesciett@yahoo.com info@sononline-ng.com

Mrs Jane NZEOMA

Chief Regulatory Officer

Head Regulatory Affairs Division

National Agency for Food and Drug

Administration and Control 3-4 Oshodi Apapa Expressway

Lagos

Phone: +234 803338184 Fax: +234 1 4772453

Email: janenzeoma@yahoo.com

Mrs Nnenna NWOKE KALU

National Coordinator

Vulnerable Empowerment Initiative Network

P.O. Box 72077, Victoria Island 17B, Awori Street, Dolphin Estate

Ikoyi, Lagos

Email: veninet@yahoo.com

Mrs Oludolapo COKER

Food Scientist/Deputy Director

Federal Ministry of Health, Food and Drug Services

Off Edmund-Crescent, Yaba, Lagos

P.O. Box 6858, Marina Lagos

Nigeria

Phone: +234 803 334 2192 Email: dolapo_coker@yahoo.com

Mrs Stella ONWUADUEGBO

Assistant Director

Nigeria Plant Quarantine Service IBADAN Nigeria PMB 5672

Federal Ministry of Agriculture

Nigeria Plant Quarantine Service - Moor Plantations

Ibadan Nigeria

Phone: 234-022 2313842 Email: npqs-ngr.org

Mr Gambo DARINI SANUSI

Assistant Comptroller (Research and Planning)

Nigeria Customs Service, HQ Zone 3, Wuse- Abuja Tel: +234 8033001669

Email: gambosanusi@yahoo.co.uk

NORWAY - NORVÈGE - NORUEGA

Ms Bodil BLAKER

Senior Adviser

Ministry of Health and Care Services

P.O. Box 8011 Dep

N-0030 Oslo

Norway

Phone: +47 2224 8602 Fax: +472224 8656

Email: bob@hod.dep.no

Ms Bente ODLO

Senior Adviser

Ministry of Agriculture and Food

P.O. Box 8007 Dep No-0030 Oslo

Norway

Phone: +47 2224 9138 Fax: +47 2224 9559

Email: bente.odlo@lmd.dep.no

Mrs Tone Elisabeth MATHESON

Senior Adviser/Codex Manager

Section for International and Legal Coordination

Department of Operations Policy

Norwegian Food Safety Authority - Head Office

P.O. Box 383 N-2381 Brumunddal

Norway

Phone: +47 23 216651 Fax: +47 23 216801

Email: tone.elisabeth.matheson@mattilsynet.no

PANAMA- PANAMÁ

Sr Jorge Félix CORRALES

Consejero

Misión Permanente de Panamá ante las Naciones

Unidas y los Organismos Internacionales

Phone: +41 22 7150457 Fax: +41 22 7380363

Email: jorge.corrales@ties.itu.int

PARAGUAY

Sr. Luis Daniel FLEITAS BRIZUELA

Director de Normalización y Certificacion del INTN

Miembro del Comité Nacional del Codex

Avda. Gral Artigas No. 3073

Asunción

Phone: +595 21 290 160 Fax: +595 21290 873 Email: codex@intn.gov.py

Sra. María ROCIO ABED OVIEDO

Secretaría Ejecutiva del Comité del Codex

Alimentarius

Avda. Gral. Artiguas No. 3973 y Gral

Roa

Asunción, Paraguay Phone: +595 21 290 160 Fax: +595 21 290 873 Email: codex@intn.gov.py

Sr Octavio FERREIRA

Secretario

Permanent Mission in Geneva

Geneva

PERU - PÉROU - PERÚ

Sra Milagros MIRANDA ROJAS

Primera Secretaria

Avenue Louis Casa 1216 Cointrin

Case Postale 160

Embajada Peruana en Suiza Phone: +41 22 7917720 Fax: +41 22 7917728 Email: misión.peru@itu.int

Sr Manuel Antonio ALVAREZ ESPINAL

Consejero de la Representacion Permanente ante la

FAO Roma

Phone: +39 0680691510 Fax: +39 0680691777

Email: embperu@ambasciataperu2.191.it

PHILIPPINES - FILIPINAS

Mr Gilberto F. LAYESE

Director

Bureau of Agriculture and Fisheries Product

Standards

Department of Agriculture 4F DA Annex Bldg

Elliptical Road, Diliman Quezon City 1104

Metro Manila

Ms Maria FE ALBERTO CHAU HUU

Agricultural Attaché

Philippine Mission to the United Nations and Other

International Organizations

Geneva Switzerland

Mr Lupino J. LAZARO

Assistant Agricultural Attaché

Philippine Mission to the United Nations and other

International Organizations

Geneva

Switzerland

Ms Ana ABEJUELA

Agricultural Attaché

Embassy of the Philippines to Belgium and

Luxembourg

Mission of the Philippines to theeuropean Community

Avenue Molière 297 1050 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 (0) 2 34003377 Fax: +32 (0) 2 3456425 Email: aabx@skynet.be

POLAND - POLOGNE - POLONIA

Ms Marta SOBIERAJ

Specialist in the International Co-operation

Department

Codex Contact Point for Poland

Agricultural and Food Quality Inspection

30 Wspólna Str. 00-930 Warsaw

Poland

Phone: +48 22 6232903 Fax: +48 22 6232997 Email: kodeks@ijhars.gov.pl

PORTUGAL

Sr José Antonio SOUSA PIALHO

Conseiller

Mission de Portugal 33, rue Antoine Carteret

1202 Genève

Phone: +022 9180200 Fax: +022 9180228

Email: sousafialho@bluemin.ch

QATAR

Mr Khalid AL-SAAD

Director of General Department for Municipal Affairs Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

Doha - Qatar P.O. Box 16773 Phone: +974 55 00322 Fax: +974 4479672

Mr Mohd Saif Al-thashal AL-HAJRI Director of Food Control Department

Doha Municipality

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

P.O. Box 16773 Doha-Qatar

Phone: +974 4478075 Fax: +974 4479672

Dr. Shadi Salah ZEYADAH

Food Consultant Doha Municipality

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

P.O. Box 16773 Doha-Qatar

Phone: +974 4347540 Fax: +974 4479729

Dr. Hassan BAYRAKDAR

Food Expert Doha Municipality

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

P.O. Box 16773 Doha-Qatar

Email: hassan6264@hotmail.com

Mr Mohamed AL-KHATER

Assistant of Municipality Manager for Health Affairs Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

Doha - Qatar P.O. Box 80020 Phone: +974 5566115 Fax: +974 4479672

Mr Mubarak AL-KUWARI

Assistant for Municipality Manager for Health Affairs Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

Doha - Qatar P.O. Box 60021 Phone: +9745095111 Fax: +974 4479672 Mr Salem AL-NABET

Assistant Director of Al Rayyan Municipality for

Health Affairs

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

P.O. Box 16773

Doha Qatar

Phone: +974447 8075 Fax: +974 447 9672

Mr Mohammed Lahdan AL-KABI

Assistant Director of UM Slal Municipality for Health

Affairs

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture

P.O. Box 16773 Doha

Qatar

Phone: +97444 78075 Fax: +974 447972

KOREA, REPUBLIC OF – CORÉE, RÉPUBLIQUE DE – COREA, REPÚBLICA DE

Mr WOO Gun-Jo

Director

Center for Food Safety Evaluation

Coordinator National Antimicrobial Resistance

Management Program (NARMP) Korea Food and Drug Administration 231 Jinheungro Eunpyoung-gu

Seoul 122-704 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 3801685 Fax: +82 2 380 1615 Email: gjwoo@kfda.go.kr

Mr LEE Seoung Yong

Director

Food Safety Assurance Team, Food Headquarters

Korea Food and Drug Administration

231 Jinheungro Eunpyoung Gu Seoul122-704 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 385 2415 Fax: +82 2 385 2416 Email: sylee@kfda.go.kr

Mr LEE Ym Shik Deputy Director

Food Safety Assurance Team, Food Headquarters

Korea Food and Drug Administration 231 Jinheungro Eunpyoung-gu

Seoul 122-704 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 3801347 Fax: +82 2 3852416 Email: leagle@kfda.go.kr

Mrs KWAK Hyo-shun

Deputy Director

Food Microbiology Team

Center for Food Safety Evaluation Korea Food and Drug Administration

231 Jinheungro Eunpyoung-gu

Seoul 122-704 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 3801682

Email: kwakhyos@kfda.go.kr

Mr JANG Soo Bok

Fax: +82 2 3801615

Assistant Director

Ministry of Maritime Affairs and Fisheries

140-2 Gye-dong Jongno-gu

Seoul 110-793 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 36746921 Fax: +82 2 36746919 Email: sbjang@momaf.go.kr

Mr SHIN Seong Gyun

Professor

Hanyang Women's College

17 Haengdang-dong Seoungdong-gu

Seoul 133-793 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 22902185 Fax: +82 2 22902199

Email: shinsg@hywoman.ac.kr

Ms KEUM Eun Hee

Senior Researcher

Food Assurance Team

Korea Food and Drug Administration

231 Jinheungro Eunpyoung-gu

Food Headquarters Seoul 122-704 Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 380 1347 Fax: +82 2 385 2416

Fax: +82 2 385 2416 Email: keumeh@kfda.go.kr

Mrs KONG MiSuk

Deputy Director

Food Industry Division

Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry Government Gwacheon Complex Jungangdong, Gwacheon-city

Gyeonggi-Province Republic of Korea Phone: +82 2 500 1855 Fax: +82 2 503 7905

Email: mskkong@maf.go.kr

Mr KIM Wang June

Senior Research Scientist

Korea Food research Institute

San 46-1 Baekhyun-dong, Bundang-gu Songnam-si, Kyonggi-do

Republic of Korea Phone: +82 31 780 9110 Fax: +82 31 709 9876 Email: wjkim@kfri.re.kr Mr KIM Kyu

Assistant Director

Government Gwacheon Complex Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

Republic of Korea Email: kimk@maf.go.kr

Mr PARK Hun-Yul

Counsellor

Mission of the Republic of Korea

Geneva

MOLDOVA, REPUBLIC OF – MOLDOVA, RÉPUBLIQUE DE – MOLDOVA, REPÚBLICA DE

Ms Mariana ZAPLITNII

First Secretary

Chemin du Petit-Saconnex, 28 1209

Genève

Phone: +0041 22 7339103 Fax: +0041 22 7339104

Email: marianna_zaplitnii@bluewin.ch

ROMANIA - ROUMANIE - RUMANIA

Ms Carmen FRATITA Second Secretary Mission of Portugal

Geneva

RUSSIAN FEDERATION – FÉDÉRATION DE RUSSIE – FEDERACIÓN DE RUSIA

Mr Anatoly PAVLOV

Counsellor

Permanent Mission of the Russian Federation

Av. de la PAIX, 15

Genève

Phone: +022 733 18 70 Fax: 022 734 70 44

RWANDA

Mr Tito MIGABO

Director-General

Rwanda Bureau of Standards (RBS)

Box 7099 Kigali

Rwanda Phone: +250

Phone: +250 586103 Fax: +250 583305

Email: tmigabo@yahoo.com

SAMOA

Mr Lemalu Tate SIMI

Chief Executive Officer/Chairman

Samoa Codex Committee

Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Labour

Level 4, ACB House

P.O. Box 862

Apia

Phone: +685 20441 Fax: +685 20443

Email: codex.samoa@mcil.gov.ws

SAUDI ARABIA, KINGDOM OF -ARABIE SAOUDITE, ROYAUME D'-ARABIA SAUDITA, REINO DE

Mr Siraj M. MASSODE

Deputy Director-General

Saudi Arabian Standards Organization - SASO

P.O. Box 3437 Riyadh 11471 Saudi Arabia

Mr Yacoub A. AL-TURKI

Director General of Standards General Department Saudi Arabian Standards Organization - SASO

Mr Mohammed AL-HADLAQ

Director of Agri. Food Products Department

Saudi Arabian Standards Organization - SASO

Saudi Arabia

Dr. Ibrahim AL-MOHIZEA

Deputy Chairman for Food Affairs

Saudi Food and Drug Authority

SASO

Saudi Arabia

Phone: +966 1 2751788

Email: isarmiz@sfda.gov.sa

SERBIA - SERBIE

Mrs Ivana MILOVANOVIC

Third Secretary

Permanent Mission of the Republic of Serbia to the

United Nations 5, Ch Thury 4206 Geneva

SINGAPORE - SINGAPOUR - SINGAPUR

Dr. Sin Bin CHUA

Chief Executive Officer

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5, Maxwell Road, #04-00, Tower Block

MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Phone: +65 6325 7622 Fax: +65 6220 6068

Email: chua_sin_bin@ava.gov.sg

Ms Huay Leng SEAH

Assistant Director (Food Control)

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority, Singapore 5, Maxwell Road, #18-00, Tower Block, MND

Complex

Singapore 069110 Phone: +65 6325 5480 Fax: +65 6324 4563

Email: seah_huay_leng@ava.gov.sg

SLOVAKIA - SLOVAQUIE - ESLOVAQUIA

Mrs Kitti NEMETH

Deputy-Director

VUP Food Research Institute

Priemyselma 4 824 75 Bratislava

Slovak Republic

Phone: +421 2 502 37134

Fax: +421 2 555 71417

Email: vup@vup.sk

SLOVENIA - SLOVÉNIE - ESLOVENIA

Ms Blaza NAHTIGAL

UnderSecretary

Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Food

Dunajska, 56-58

Ljubljana

Phone: +00386 14789398 Fax: +00386 1 4789398

Email: blaza.nahtigal@gov.si

Ms Marija SKERLJ

UnderSecretary

Sector for Food Safety

Ministry of Health

Stefanova 5

SL-1000 Ljubjana

Republic of Slovenia

Phone: +3861 47868513

Fax: +3861 4786856

Email: marija.skerlj@gov.si

SOUTH AFRICA - AFRIQUE DU SUD -SUDÁFRICA

Ms Jennifer Morongoe RATHEBE

Senior Manager

Food Safety and Quality Assurance

Department of Agriculture

Private Bag X343

0001 Pretoria

South Africa

Phone: +27 12 319 7000/7304

Fax: +27 12 319 6764

Email: SMFSQA@nda.agric.za

Mr Michael Jeffrey YOUNG

Senior Manager

Food Regulatory Affairs and Consumer Protection

South African Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 615 7701 Rondebosch South Africa

Phone: +27 21 681 6700 Fax: +27 21 681 6773 Email: youngmj@sabs.co.za

Mr Pantelis Nicholas TSELENTIS Legal and Regulatory Affairs Manager Consumer Goods Council of South Africa

P.O. Box 41417 2024 Graighall South Africa

Phone: +27 11 789 5777 Fax: +27 12 886 4966 Email: nt@cgcsa.co.za

SPAIN - ESPAGNE - ESPAÑA

Sr. José Ignacio ARRANZ RECIO

Director Ejecutivo

Agencia española de Seguridad Alimentaria

Alcalá, 56 Despacho 195 28014 Madrid Phone: +91 338 05 85

Fax: +91 338 0073 Email: jarranz@msc.es

Dª María Luz CARRETERO BAEZA

Subdirectora General de Gestión de Riesgos

Alimentarios

Agencia Española de Seguridad Alimentaria Subdirección General de Gestión de Riesgos

Alimentarios

Alcalá, 56 Despacho 406

28014 Madrid Phone: +91 338 03 20 Fax: +91 338 01 69 Email: mcarretero@msc.es

Sra. Elisa REVILLA GARCÍA

Subdirectora Adjunta

Subdirección General de Planificación Alimentaria

P° Infanta Isabel, 1 28071 Madrid Phone: +91 347 4596 Fax: +91 347 5728 Email: erevilla@mapya.e

SRI LANKA

Dr. Agampodi Dayaratna SILVA Minister (Economic and Commercial) Permanent Mission of Sri Lanka in Geneva

56 rue de Moillebeau 1209 Geneva

Switzerland

Phone: +41 22 9191250 Fax: +41 22 7349084

Email: mission.sri-lanka-wto@ties.itu.net

dayas@bluewin.ch

SUDAN - SOUDAN - SUDÁN

Dr. Omer Abdalwahab ABDALLA

Under-Secretary

Federal Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

P.O. Box 285 Al Gamaá Avenue Khartoum

Phone: +249 912287192 Fax: +249 183 782027

Prof. Mohamed Said HARBI

Director-General

Sudanese Standards and Metrology Organization

SSMO/Sudan Khartoum

Phone: +249 183775247 Fax: +249 183774852 Email: ssmo@sudanet.net

Mr Hamdi Abbas IBRAHIM

Director

Standards and Quality Control Unit

Federal Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry

P.O. Box 285 Al Gamaá Avenue Khartoum

Phone: +249 918211470 Fax: +249 183782027

Email: hamdi20072000@yahoo.com

Mr Ismail Ahmed ALKAMISH

Director

Food Control Administration Federal Ministry of Health

Khartoum

Phone: +249 12247820

Email: Kamish2005@hotmail.com

Dr. Yousif Mohamed ABDALRAZIG

Head

Exports and Imports Unit Quarantine Department

Federal Ministry of Animal Resources

Khartoum

Mr Kamal MOHAMED ECHADI

Executive Manager Sudanese Standard

Khartoum

SWAZILAND - SWAZILANDIA

Mr Sabelo Muzi MASUKU Senior Environmental Health Officer Ministry of Health and Social Welfare

P.O. Box 5 Mbabane Swaziland

Phone: +268 4042431 Fax: +268 6288100

Email: sabmas2003@yahoo.com

SWEDEN - SUÈDE - SUECIA

Mrs Kerstin JANSSON

Deputy Director

Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Consumer Affairs

SE-103 33 Stockholm

Sweden

Phone: +46 8 4051168 Fax: +46 8 206496

Email: kerstin.jansson@agriculture.ministry.se

Ms Carmina IONESCU Senior Administrative Officer National food Administration

Box 622

SE-751 26 Uppsala

Sweden

Phone: +46 18175601 Fax: +46 18105848 Email: codex@sly.se

Mrs Eva Rolfsdotter LÖNBERG

Codex Coordinator

National Food Administration

Box 622

SE-751 26 Uppsala

Sweden

Phone: +46 18175547 Fax: +46 181 05848 Email: codex@slv.se

SWITZERLAND - SUISSE - SUIZA

Dr. Urs KLEMM

Vice-Director

Swiss Federal Office of Public Health

CH-3003 Bern Switzerland

Phone: +41 31 628227421 Fax: +41 31 628227421 Email: info@ursklemm.ch

Mrs Awilo OCHIENG PERNET

Codex Alimentarius

International Food Safety and Nutrition Issues

Swiss Federal Office of Public Health

CH-3003 Bern Switzerland

Phone: +41 31 3220041 Fax: +41 31 3229574

Email: awilo.ochieng@bag.admin.ch

Mrs Irina DU BOIS

Nestec Ltd. Avenue Nestlé 55 CH-1800 Vevey Switzerland

Phone: +41 21 9242261 Fax: +41 21 9244547

Email: irina.dubois@nestle.com

Mrs Ursula TRÜEB

Representative of the Swiss Consumer Organizations

Bölzli 1

CH-4312 Magden Switzerland

Phone: +41 61 8411256 Fax: +41 618411256

Email: ursula.trueb@tiscali.ch

Mrs Andrea BRAUN

Head of Regulatory Affairs Global Management

DSM Nutritional Products Building 241, Office 415

P.O. Box 3255 CH-4002 Basel Phone: +41 61 6881868 Fax: +41 61 6881635

Email: andrea.braun-scherhag@dsm.com

Dr. Hervé NORDMANN

Director Scientific & Regulatory Affairs

Ajinomoto Switzerland AG Innere Güterstrasse 2-4 CH-6304 Zug, Switzerland Phone: +4121 8003763 Fax: +41218004087

Email: herve.nordmann@asg.ajinomoto.com

Mr Christian HÄBERLI

Federal Office for Agriculture

Mattenhofstrasse 5 CH-3003 Bern Switzerland

Phone: +41 31 322 2513 Fax: +41 31 322 2634

Email: Christian.haeberli@blw.admin.ch

SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC – RÉPUBLIQUE ARABE SYRIENNE – REPÚBLICA ÁRABE SIRIA

Mr Abdul Razzak AL HOMSI AJJOUR

Director

Alimentary Department in SASMO

Secretary of the National Codex Committee (NCC) Syrian Arab Organization for Standardization and

Metrology Damascus

Phone: +963 11 4529825/4527157

Fax: +963 11 4528214 Email: sasmo@net.sy

Mr Abdulmonem ANNAN

Second Secretary

Permanent Mission to the United Nations

72 rue des Lausanne 1202 Geneva

Mr Kamal ELIAS

Attaché

Permanent Mission to the United Nations

72 rue des Lausanne 1202 Geneva

THAILAND - THAÏLANDE - TAILANDIA

Mrs Oratai SILAPANAPAPORN

Director

Office of Commodity and System Standards

National Bureau of Agricultural Commodity and Food

Standards

Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives

Rajdamnoen Nok Avenue Bangkok 10200, Thailand Phone: +66 2 280 3900 Fax: +66 2 280 3899

Mr Pisan PONGSAPITCH

Email: oratai@acfs.go.th

Standards Officer

Office of Commodity and System Standards

National Bureau of Agricultural Commodity and Food

Standards

Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives

Rajdamnoen Nok Avenue Bangkok 10200, Thailand Phone: +66 2 283 1681 Fax: +66 2 280 3899 Email: pisanp@yahoo.com

Mr Boonpeng SANTIWATTANATAM

Vice-Chairman of Food Processing Industry Club

The Federation of Thai Industries

Queen Sirikit National Convention Center, Zone C,

4th Fl.,

60 New Rachadapisek Rd., Klongtoey

Bangkok 10110, Thailand Phone: +66 2 229 4255 ext. 505

Fax: +66 2 229 4937

Email: foodgroup@off.fti.or.th

Mrs Malinee SUBVANICH

General Secretary of Thai Frozen Foods Association

Board of Trade Thailand

150 Rajbopit Rd., Pranakhon District

Bangkok 10200 Thailand

Phone: +66 2 261 2684-6 Fax: +66 2 261 2996-7 Email: thaifood@thaifood.org

Mr Chanin CHAROENPONG

Senior Expert in Health Products Food and Drug Administration Ministry of Public Health Tiwanond Road

Nonthaburi 11000 Thailand

Phone: +6625918447 Fax: +6625918446

Email: chanin@fda.moph.go.th

THE FORMER YUGOSLAV REPUBLIC OF MACEDONIA L' EX-RÉPUBLIQUE YOUGOSLAVE DE MACÉDONIE LA EX REPÚBLICA YUGOSLAVA DE MACÉDONIE

Mr Kadrize SALMANI Third Secretary Rue de Vermont 62 1202 Geneva

TUNISIA - TUNISIE - TÚNEZ

Mr Mohamed Chokri REJEB

Directeur-General

CTAA

6 rue de l'Usine Charguia II Ariana

Tunisie

Phone: +21671510258 Fax: +21671949080 Email:rejebchokri@yahoo.fr

Mme Alya MAHJOUB ZARROUK

Directeur Général

Agence Nationale de Contôle Sanitaire et

Environmental du Produits 37 av. Taieb Mehiri

Tunisie

Email: Zarrouk.alya@rns.tn

Mr Mabrouk NADHIF

Directeur

Ministère de la Santé Publique

Tunisie

Phone: +00216 71576115 Fax: +00216 71576010

Mr Mohamed OAUINI

Directeur Général de la Qualité, du Commerce

interieur

1, rue d' Irak Tunis

Tunisie

Phone: +216 71842029 Fax: +216 71800382

Email: mohamed.loauini@email.ati.tn

Dr. Thouraya ANNABI ATTIA

ANCSEP

37 Avenue T M'hiri

Tunis 1002

Phone: +2167190988 Email: thouraya.attia@ms.tn

TURKEY - TURQUIE - TURQUÍA

Prof. Dr. Nevzat ARTIK Deputy of General Director

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs-General

Directorate of Protection and Control

Tarim ve Köyisleri Bakanligi, Koruma ve Kontrol

Genel Müdürlügü, Akay Cad. No:3 Bakanlıklar ANKARA/TURKEY Phone: +90-312 418 70 22 Fax: +90-312 418 32 46 Email: nartik@kkgm.gov.tr

Mr Ibrahim ILBEGI Head of Department

Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs General Directorate of Protection and Control Tarim ve Köyisleri Bakanligi, Koruma ve Kontrol Genel Müdürlügü, Akay Cad. No:3

Bakanliklar ANKARA

TURKEY

Phone: +90 312 4254390 Fax: +90 312 4198325 Email: iilbegi@kkgm.gov.tr

Mr Ahmet CANLI Head of Section

Undersecretariat for Foreign Trade

DG of Exports Head of Section

Inünü Bulvari 06510 Emek

ANKARA TURKEY

Phone: +90-312 2047670 Fax: +90-312 2128881 Email: canlia@dtm.gov.tr

Mr Ongan BAHADIR

Inspector

Undersecretariat for Foreign Trade DG of Standardization for Foreign Trade Inönü Bulvari No:36 06510 Emek ANKARA TURKEY

Phone: +90-312 2048077

Fax: +90-312 2128768 Email: bahadiro@dtm.gov.tr

UGANDA - OUGANDA

Mr William Mamuma SSALI Chairman, National Standards Council c/o Uganda National Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 6324 Kampala

Phone: +256 41 505995 Fax: +256 41 286123

Email: unbs@infocom.co.ug/fosri@utlonline.co.ug

Mr Terry KAHUMA Executive Director

Uganda National Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 6329 Kampala

Phone: +256 772702688 Fax: +256-041 286123 Email: unbs@infocom.co.ug Mr Ben MANYINDO

Deputy Executive Director (Technical) Uganda National Bureau of Standards M217 Nakawa Industrial Area P.O. Box 6329 Kampala

Uganda

Phone: +256 41 505995 Fax: +256 41 286123

Email: ben.manyindo@unbs.go.ug

Ms Hope KABIRISI

Special Presidential Assistant (Science and

Technology) State House P. O. Box 25497

Kampala

Phone: +256 41 343222/+256 772505646

Fax: 256 41 343277

Email: kabirisih@yahoo.co.uk

UKRAINE - UCRAINA

Ms Tatiana SEMENIUTA

3rd Secretary Mission of Ukraine Rue de L'Orangerie Geneva

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES – ÉMIRATS ARABES UNIS – EMIRATOS ÁRABES UNIDOS

Mr Ali ABDULLAH

Standardization Department Director

Emirates Authority for Standardization and Metrology

ESMA

P.O. Box 2166 Abu Dhabi United Arab Emirates Phone: +00971 2 6711110 Fax: +00971 2 6715999 Email: belfaqeh@esma.ae

Mr Waleed AL MANSOURI

Director-General

Emirates Authority for Standardization and Metrology

(ESMA)

PO Box 2166 Abu Dhabi

UAE

Phone: +00971 2 671110 Fax: +00971 2 6715999 Email: esma@esma.ae

UNITED KINGDOM - ROYAUME-UNI – REINO UNIDO

Mr Steve WEARNE

Head of Strategy, Regulation and International

Division

Food Standards Agency 115 Aviation House 125 Kingsway London WC2B 6NH, UK

Phone: +20 7276 8338 Fax: +20 7276 8376

Email: steve.wearne@foodstandards.gsi.gov.uk

Mr Michael WIGHT Food Standards Agency Room 115, Aviation House

125 Kingsway

London WC2B 6NH, UK Phone: +020 7276 8183

Email: michael.wight@foodstandards.gsi.gov.uk

Mr Bill KNOCK Food Standards Agency 615B, Aviation House 125 Kingsway

London WC2B 6NH, UK Phone: +020 7276 8183 Fax: +020 7276 8614

Email: bill.knock@foodstandards.gsi.gov.uk

TANZANIA, UNITED REPUBLIC OF – TANZANIE, RÉPUBLIQUE-UNIE DE – TANZANÍA, REPÚBLICA UNIDA DE

Mr Daimon Jim MWAKYEMBE Director, Tanzania Bureau of Standards

P.O. Box 9524 Dar-es-Salaam

Phone: +255 22 2450298 Fax: +255 22 2450959

Email: mwakyembedj@yahoo.co.uk

Mrs Perpetua M. Simon HINGI

Agricultural Attaché

Alternate Permanent Representative to FAO Embassy of the United Republic of Tanzania

Via Cortina D'ampezzo, 185

00135 Rome

Phone: +39 06 33485820 Fax: +39 06 33485828 Email: mhingi@yahoo.co.uk

Mr Linus Chenya GEDI Food Technologist Chair National Codex

Small Industries Development Organization

Mfaume/Fire Road, Upanga P.O. Box 2476, Dar-es-Salaam

Tanzania

Phone: +255 22 2151383 Fax: +255 22 2151383

Email: gedili@yahoo.com/wed@sido.go.tz

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA – ÉTATS-UNIS D'AMÉRIQUE – ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA

Mr Jack Anthony BOBO

Deputy Chief

Biotechnology Trade Division United States Department of State

2201 C Street NW Washington, D.C. 20520

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 647 1647 Fax: +1 202 647 2302 Email: BOBOJA@state.gov Mr Daryl BREHM

Director

Food Safety and Technical Services Division

Department of Agriculture Foreign Agricultural Service Room 5545-South Bldg. Washington, D.C. 20250

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 690 0929 Fax: +1 202 690 0677

Email: daryl.brehm@fas.usda.gov

Dr. Cathleen ENRIGHT

Deputy Assistant U.S. Trade Representative Office of the U.S. Trade Representative

600 17th Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20508

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 395 6147 Fax: +1 202 395 4579

Email: Cathleen_enright@ustr.eop.gov

Ms V. Eileen D. HILL Lead International Economist U.S. Department of Commerce 14th Street and Constitution Ave., N.W. Washington, D.C.

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 482 5276 Fax: +1 202 482 5939

Email: Eileen_hill@ita.doc.gov

Ms Karen HULEBAK

Chief Scientist

Office of Public Health Science

United States Department of Agriculture 1400 Independence Ave., SW- Room 3129S

Washington, DC 20250 Phone: +202 720 5735 Fax: +202 690 2980

Email: karen.Hulebak@fsis.usda.gov

Ms Mary Frances LOWE

Senior Program Advisor

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Pesticide Programs (7506C) 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W.

Washington, D.C.

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 703 305 5689 Fax: +1 703 308 1850

Email: lowe.maryfrances@epa.gov

Dr. F. Ed SCARBROUGH

Manager, U.S. Codex Office Food Safety and Inspection Service U.S. Department of Agriculture Room 4861 South Building 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20250

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 720 2057 Fax: +1 202 720 3157

Email: ed.scarbrough@fsis.usda.gov

Dr. Stephen SUNDLOF

Director, Center for Veterinary Medicine U.S. Food and Drug Administration Center for Veterinary Medicine

7519 Standish Place Rockville, Maryland 20855 Phone: +240 276 9000 Fax: +240 276 9001

Email: stephen.sundlof@fda.hhs.gov

Dr. H. Michael WEHR Codex Program Coordinator U.S. Food and Drug Administration Room 1B-002

5100 Paint Branch Parkway College Park, MD 20740 Phone: +1 301 436 1724 Fax: +1 301 436 2618

Email: michael.wehr@fda.hhs.gov

Mr Kyd BRENNER

Partner

DTB Associates, LLP 901 New York Avenue, N.W.

Third Floor

Washington, D.C. 20001

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 661 7098 Fax: +1 202 661 7093

Email: Kbrenner@dtbassociates.com

Ms Marsha ECHOLS Law Office of Marsha A. Echols 3286 M Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20007

U.S.A.

Phone: + 1 202 625 1451 Fax: +1 202 625 9126 Email: mechols@earthlink.net

Mr Raul GUERRERO

Consultant

793 North Ontare Road Santa Barbara, CA 93105

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 805 898 1830 Fax: +1 805 898 1830

Email: guerrero_raul_j@yahoo.com

Mr Clayton Lee HOUGH

Senior Vice President and General Counsel International Dairy Foods Association 1250 H. Street, N.W., Suite 900 Washington, D.C. 20005

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 220 3516 Fax: +1 202 331 7820 Email: chough@idfa.org Mr David P. LAMBERT

Principal

Lambert Associates 5105 Yuma Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20016

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 966 5056 Fax: +1 202 966 5094

Email: lambertdp@yahoo.com

Mr Charles W. MCMILLAN

President

CW McMillan Co. P.O. Box 10009 Alexandria, VA 22310

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 703 960 1982 Fax: +1 703 960 4976 Email: cwmco@aol.com

Ms Peggy ROCHETTE

Sr. Director of International Policy Food Products Association

1350 I Street N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20005

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 639 5921 Fax: +1 202 639 5991

Email: prochette@fpa-food.org

URUGUAY

Mrs Delvey Alicia ANCHIERI

Presidenta Pro-Tempore del Comité Nacional del

Codex

Ministerio de Salud Publica Unidad de Inocuidad de Alimentos 18 de Julio 1892-4º Piso-Montevideo

Uruguay

Phone: +598 2 7086434 Fax: +598 2 6280130

Email: danchieri@adinet.com.uy

VIET NAM

Mr Bui Manh HAI

ViceMinister

Ministry of Science and Technology

Chairman of Vietnam National Codex Committee

70 Tran Hung Dao Street

Hanoi Vietnam

Phone: +84 4 9 428030 Fax: +84 4 8222520 Email: codex@tcvn.gov.vn

Mr Pham Van THO

Deputy Director

Department for Science and Technology

Ministry of Fishery

10 Nguyen Cong Hoan Street

Hanoi

Phone: +84 4 7716270

Email: phamvantho@mofi.gov.vn

Mr Nguyen Manh HUNG Deputy-Director Market Control Department Ministry of Trade 91 Dinh Tien Hoang Street

Hanoi Vietnam

Phone: +84 4 8253273 Fax: +84 4 9342726 Email: gltt@mot.gov.vn

Mrs Nguyen Thi Minh HA Secretary Vietnam Codex Contact Point Vietnam National Codex Committee 70 Tran Hung Dao Street Hanoi Vietnam

Phone: +84 4 9 428030 Fax: +84 4 8 222520

Email:

codex@tcvn.gov.vn/nguyen_thi_minh_ha@yahoo.com

Mrs HO THI MY DUE Director Department for Science and Technology The Office of the Government Vietnam Phone: +84 08043742

Email: homydue@yahoo.com

OBSERVER COUNTRIES PAYS OBSERVATEURS PAÍSES OBSERVADORES

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA BOSNIE-HÉRZEGOVINE BOSNIA Y HERZEGOVINA

Mrs Jadranka KALMETA Ambassador Permanent Representative to the Permanent Mission of Bosnia and Herzegovina to the United Nations Geneva

Mrs Dragana ANDELIC Counsellor Permanent Mission of Bosnia and Herzegovina to the United Nations Geneva

UNITED NATIONS AND SPECIALIZED AGENCIES NATIONS UNIES ET INSTITUTIONS SPÉCIALISÉES NACIONES UNIDAS Y ORGANISMOS ESPECIALIZADOS

INTERNATIONAL ATOMIC ENERGY AGENCY AGENCE INTERNATIONALE DE L'ÉNERGIE **ATOMIQUE** ORGANISMO INTERNACIONAL DE ENERGÍA **ATÓMICA**

Mr David H. BYRON

Section Head

Food and Environmental Protection Section

Joint FAO/IAEA Division of Nuclear Techniques in

Food and Agriculture

International Atomic Energy Agency

Wagramer Strasse 5, P.O. Box 100 A-1400 Vienna, Austria

Phone: +43 1 2600 21638 Fax: +43 1 2600 29332 Email: D.H. Byron@iaea.org

INTERNATIONAL TRADE CENTRE

UNCTAD/WTO

CENTRE DU COMMERCE INTERNATIONAL

CNUCED/OMC

CENTRO DE COMERCIO INTERNACIONAL

UNCTAD/OMC

Ms Ludovica GHIZZONI

Associate Expert on Standards and Quality

Management

International trade Centre UNCTAD/WTO (ITC)

54-56, rue de Montbrillant

1202 Geneva Switzerland

Phone: +41227300638

Fax: +41227300576

Email: ghizzoni@intracen.org

WORLD TRADE ORGANIZATION ORGANISATION MONDIALE DU COMMERCE ORGANIZACIÓN MUNDIAL DEL COMERCIO

Ms Gretchen STANTON

Senior Counsellor, Agriculture and Commodities

Division

World Trade Organization

Rue de Lausanne 154

CH-1211 Geneva 21

Switzerland

Phone: +0041 22 7395086

Fax: +0041 22 7395760

Email: gretchen.stanton@wto.org

Ms Christiane WOLFF

Economic Affairs Officer, Agriculture and

Commodities Division

World Trade Organization

Rue de Lausanne 154

CH-1211 Geneva 21

Switzerland

Phone: +0041 22 7395536 Fax: +0041 22 7395760

Email: Christiane.wolff@wto.org

Ms Serra AYRAL

Economic Affairs Officer, Agriculture and

Commodities Division World Trade Organization Rue de Lausanne 154 CH-1211 Geneva 21 Switzerland

Phone: +0041 22 7395465 Fax: +0041 22 7395760 Email: serra.ayral@wto.org

Mr Melvin SPREIJ

Economic affairs Officer, agriculture and

Commodities Division World Trade Organization Rue de Lausanne 154 CH-1211 Geneva 21

Switzerland

Phone: + 0041 22 7396630 Fax: +0041 22 7395760 Email: melvin.spreij@wto.org

INTERNATIONAL GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS ORGANISATIONS GOUVERNEMENTALES INTERNATIONALES ORGANIZACIONES GUBERNAMENTALES INTERNACIONALES

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF REFRIGERATION INSTITUT INTERNATIONAL DU FROID INSTITUTO INTERNACIONAL DEL FRÍO

M Félix DEPLEDT 30, avenue de la République 94700 Maisons Alfort France

Phone: +33 1 4396 0561

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZAION OF VINE AND WINE ORGANISATION INTERNATIONALE DE LA VIGNE ET DU VIN ORGANISACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE LA VIÑA Y DEL VINO

Dr. Jean Claude RUF

Coordinator Scientific and Technical Department Head of Unit "Enology"- Nutrition and Health -

Methods of Analysis

International Organization of Vine and Wine

18 rue d'Aguesseau F-75008 Paris France

Phone: + 33 (0) 144948094 Fax: +33 (0)142669063 Email: jruf@oiv.int

REGIONAL INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR PLANT PROTECTION AND ANIMAL HEALTH ORGANISME INTERNATIONAL REGIONAL CONTRE LES MALADIES DES PLANTES ET DES ANIMAUX ORGANISMO INTERNACIONAL REGIONAL DE SANIDAD AGROPECUARIA

Dr. Oscar GARCÍA SUÁREZ
Coordinador Regional de la CRIA-OIRSA
Calle Ramón Belloso
final pasaje Isolde
Colonia Escalón
San Salvador
El Salvador
Email: cria@oirsa.org
ogarcia@oirsa.org

WORLD ORGANIZATION FOR ANIMAL HEALTH ORGANISATION MONDIAL DE LA SANTÉ ANIMALE ORGANIZACIÓN MUNDIAL DE SANIDAD ANIMAL

Dr. Bernard VALLAT Directeur général

Organisation Mondial de la Santé Animale (OIE)

12 rue de Prony 75017 Paris

Phone: +33 (0) 1 44 15 18 88 Fax: +33 (0) 1 42670987 Email: b.vallat@oie.int

Dr. Willem DROPPERS Chargé de Mission

Organisation Mondial de la Santé Animale (OIE)

12 rue de Prony 75017 Paris

Phone: 33- (0) 144151888 Fax: 33-90) 142 670987 Email: w.droppers@oie.int

Dr. Francesco BERLINGIERI

Deputy Head

Organisation Mondial de la Santé Animale (OIE)

International Trade Department

12 rue de Prony 75017 Paris

Phone: +33 (0) 1 44151888 Fax: +33 (0) 1 42670987 Email: f.berlingieri@oie.int

INTERNATIONAL NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS ORGANISATIONS NON-GOUVERNEMENTALES INTERNATIONALES ORGANIZACIONES INTERNACIONALES NO GUBERNAMENTALES

ASOCIACIÓN LATINOAMERICANA DE AVICULTURA

Dr. J. Isidro MOLFESE

Secretario Ejecutivo

Observador por ALA al Codex Alimentarius

Coordinador del CISA

Asociación Latinoamericana de Avicultura

Esteban Arce 441 - 3F C1426BSE Buenos aires República Argentina Phone: +54 11 4774-4770 Fax: +54 9 11 4539-2595

Email: molfese@ciudad.com.ar

ASSOCIATION FOR INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF NATURAL GUMS

ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE POUR LE

DÉVELOPPEMENT DES GOMMES NATURELLES

Mr Gontran, Albert DONDAIN

President AIDGUM

AIDGUM 129 Chemin de Croisset 76723 Rouen Cedex France Phone: +33 232831818 Fax: +33 232831919

Email: gdondain@uniworld.com

Mr John LUPIEN Scientific Adviser AIDGUM

129 Chemin de Croisset 76723 Rouen Cedex

France

EUROPEAS

Phone: (33) 232 831818 Fax: (33) 232 831919

Email: gdondain@uniworld.com

ASSOCIATION OF EUROPEAN COELIAC SOCIETIES ASSOCIATION DES SOCIÉTES COELIAQUES EUROPÉENNES ASOCIACIÓN DE SOCIEDADES CELÍACAS

Mrs Hertha DEUTSCH Chair of Codex and Labelling Affairs AOECS Association of European Coeliac Societies Anton Baumgartner Straße 44/C5/2302

A-1230 Vienna, Austria Phone: +0043 1 6671887 Fax: +0043 1 6671887

Email: hertha.deutsch@utanet.at

ASSOCIATION OF THE CEREAL STARCH INDUSTRIES OF THE EU ASSOCIATION DES AMIDONNERIES DE CÉRÉALES DE L'UE

Ms Giovanna RIZZETTO Regulatory Affairs'Assistant

A.A.C.

Avenue des Arts, 43 B-1040 Bruxelles Phone: +32 2 2896761 Fax: +32 2 5135592

Email: G.Rizzetto@aaf-eu.org

BIOTECHNOLOGY INDUSTRY ORGANIZATION ORGANISATION DE L'INDUSTRIE BIOTECHNOLOGIQUE ORGANIZACIÓN DE LA INDUSTRIA BIOTECNOLÓGICA

Dr. Michael PHILLIPS

Vice President

Biotechnology Industry Organization 1225 Eye Street NW, Suite 300 Washington, DC 20005

Washington, DC 20005 Phone: +202 962 9200 Fax: +202 962 9201 Email: mphillips@bio.org

Dr. Russell SCHNEIDER Director, Regulatory Affairs

Monsanto Company

1300 Eye Street NW, Suite 450 East

Washington, DC 20005 Phone: +202 383 2866

Email: russell.p.schneider@monsanto.com

CONFEDERATION OF THE FOOD AND DRINK INDUSTRIES OF THE EU CONFEDERATION DES INDUSTRIES AGROALIMENTAIRES DE L'UE

Ms Clara THOMPSON Scientific and Technical Affairs Manager Confederation of the Food and Drink Industries of the EU Avenue des Arts 43 1000 Brussels

Belgium

COUNCIL FOR RESPONSIBLE NUTRITION CONSEJO PARA UNA NUTRICIÓN RESPONSABLE

Mr Mark LE DOUX

CEO/Chairman

Natural Alternatives International Council for Responsible Nutrition

1828 L Street, NW

Suite 900

Washington, DC 20036 Phone: +760 736 7742 Fax: +760 591 9637

Email: mledoux@nai-online.com

Mr Mark MANSOUR Partner-Foley&Ladner LLP

Council for Responsible Nutrition

1828 L Street, NW

Suite 900

Washington, DC 20036 Phone: +202 672 5585 Fax: +202 672 5399

Email: mmansour@foley.com

EUROPEAN COMMITTE OF SUGAR

MANUFACTURERS

COMITÉ EUROPÉEN DES FABRICANTS DE

SUCRE

COMITÉ EUROPEO DE FABRICANTES DE AZÚCAR

Mr Oscar RUIZ DE IMAÑA

Head of Scientific and Regulatory Affairs

Avenue Tervuren 182

1150 Brussels

Belgium

Phone: +32 2 774 5106 Fax: +32 2 7620760 Email: oscar.ruiz@cefs.org

EUROPEAN FEED MANUFACTURERS' FEDERATION

FÉDÉRATION EUROPÉENNE DES FABRICANTS D'ALIMENTS COMPOSÉS

Mr Alexander DÖRING Secretary-General

European Feed Manufacturers' Federation

223 Rue de la Loi Box 3 B-1040 Belgium Phone: +32 2 2850050

Fax: +32 2 230 5722 Email: fefac@fefac.org

EUROPEAN FOOD LAW ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION EUROPÉENNE POUR LE DROIT DE L'ALIMENTATION

Mr Miguel FERNANDES DA SILVA European Food Law Association (EFLA)

235 rue de la Loi 1040 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 (0) 230 4854 Fax: +32 (0) 2230 8206

Email: secretariat@efla-aeda.org

INSTITUTE OF FOOD TECHNOLOGISTS

Ms Margaret A. LAWSON

President, IFT

VP Sciences Innovation

D.D. Wlliamson

Phone: +312 782 8424 Fax: +312 782 8348

Email:foodquality@yahoo.com

Dr. Rosetta NEWSOME

Director

Science and Communications Institute of Food Technologists

World Headquarters 525 West Van Buren Street Chicago, IL 60607-3814

Phone: +312-782-8424 Fax: +312-782-8348 Email: rinewsome@ift.org

Dr. Rodney J.H. GRAY

Chair, IFT Global Regulations and Policy Committee

Regulatory Affairs Director Hercules Inc. Research Center

500 Hercules Road Wilmington, DE 19808 Phone: +302 995-3400 Fax: +302 995-4668

Email: RGRAY@HERC.COM

INTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF DIETARY/FOOD SUPPLEMENT ASSOCIATIONS

Mr David PINEDA EREÑO

Manager, Regulatory Affairs

International Alliance of Dietary/Food Supplement

Associations

Rue de l'Association, 50

1000-Brussels

Belgium Phone: +32 2 2091155 Fax: +32 2 223 3064

Email: secretariat@iadsa.be

INTERNATIONAL BABY FOOD ACTION NETWORK RÉSEAU INTERNATIONAL DES GROUPES D'ACTION POUR L'ALIMENTATION INFANTILE RED INTERNACIONAL DE ACCIÓN SOBRE ALIMENTOS DE LACTANTES

Mrs Alison LINNECAR International Coordinator

IFBAN/GIFA

11 Avenue de la Paix

1202 Genève

Phone: +022 7989164 Fax: +022 7984443

Email: alison.linnecar@gifa.org

Ms Patti RUNDALL Policy Director Baby Milk Action 34 Trumpington St Cambridge, CB2 1 QY Phone: 01223 464420 Fax: 01223 464417

Email: prundall@babymilkaction.org

INTERNATIONAL CENTRE FOR TRADE AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CENTRE INTERNATIONAL POUR LE COMMERCE ET LE DÉVELOPPEMENT DURABLE

CENTRO INTERNACIONAL DE COMERCIO Y DESARROLLO SOSTENIBLE

Ms Marie CHAMAY Programme Officer

Trade and Natural Resources

International Centre for Trade and Sustainable

Development (ICTSD) Phone: +41 22 9178833 Fax: +41 22 9178093 Email: mchamay@ictsd.ch

INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Dr. Janet E. COLLINS

Director, Global Regulatory Sciences

Solze Company

601 Pennsylvania Ave, NW, Suite 3/25 N

Washington, D.C. 20004 USA Phone: +1 202 7283622 Email: jcollins@solze.com

INTERNATIONAL CHEWING GUM ASSOCIATION

M Jean SAVIGNY

Counsel

International Chewing Gum Association (ICGA)

25 Rue Blance 1060 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 5410570 Fax: +32 2 5410580 Email: savigny@khlaw.be

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF BEVERAGES ASSOCIATIONS

Ms Paivi JULKUNEN

Chair

ICBA Committee for Codex

International Council of Beverages Associations

Bd. St. Michel 77-79, B-1040 Brussels

Belgium

Phone: +32 2 74340 50 Fax: +32 2 7325102 Email: pjulkunen@na.ko.com

Dr. John MUNA MWANGI

Technical Advisor

International Council of Beverages Associations

Bd. St. Michel 77-79 1040 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 743 4050 Fax: +32 2 732 5102

Email: jomwangi@na.ko.com

Mr Shuji IWATA

Advisor

Japan Soft Drink Association 3-3-3 Nihonbashi-Muromachi

Chuo-ku Tokyo 103-0022

Japan

Phone: 81-3-3270-7300 Fax: 81-3-3270-7306 Email: icba@j-sda.or.jp

Mr Keitaro HAMURO

Advisor

Japan Soft Drink Association 3-3-3 Nihonbashi-Muromachi

Chuo-ku

Tokyo 103-0022

Japan

Phone: 81-3-3270-7300 Fax: 81-3-3270-7306 Email: icba@j-sda.or.jp

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF GROCERY MANUFACTURERS ASSOCIATION CONSEJO INTERNACIONAL DE ASOCIACIONES DE FABRICANTES DE COMESTIBLES

Ms Monica GONZALEZ

Director

Scientific and Regulatory Affairs

ICGMA International Council of Grocery

Manufacturer Associations 2401 Pennsylvania Ave., NW

Second Floor

Washington, DC 20037 Phone: +202 337 9400 Fax: +202 337 4508

Email: mgonzalez@gmabrands.com

INTERNATIONAL DAIRY FEDERATION FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE DE LAITERIE FEDERATIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE LECHERÍA

Mr Michael HICKEY

Irish National committee of IDF

Derryreigh

Creggane, charleville

Co. Cork Ireland

Phone: +353 63 89392

Email: mfhickey@oceanfree.net

Mr Claus HEGGUM Chief Consultant Danish Dairy Board Frederiks Allé 22 DK-8000 Aarhus C Danemark

Phone: +45 87 312198 Fax: +45 87 312001 Email: ch@mejeri.dk

Mr Christian ROBERT

Director-General

International Dairy Federation

Diamant Building

Boulevard Auguste Reyers, 80

1030 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 733 9888 Fax: +32 2 733 0413 Email: CRobert@fil-idf.org

Mr Jörg SEIFERT

Technical director

International Dairy Federation

Diamant Building

Boulevard Auguste Reyers, 80

1030 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 706 86 43 Fax: +32 2 733 0413 Email: JSeifert@fil-idf.org

Dr. Jean VIGNAL Regulatory Affairs

Nestec S.A.

Avenue H. Nestlé 55 CH-1800 Vevey Switzerland

Phone: +41 21 9243501 Fax: +41 21 9244547

Email: jean.vignal@nestle.com

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION FOR ANIMAL HEALTH FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE POUR LA SANTÉ ANIMALE

Dr. Peter G.H. JONES Executive Director

IFAH, International Federation for Animal Health

Rue Defacqz,

1-1000 Brussels (Belgium) Phone: +32 473 384797 Fax: +32 2 541 0119 Email: ifah@ifahsec.org

Dr. Robert LIVINGSTON

Director

International Affairs and Regulatory Policy

Animal Health Institute 1325 G St NW Suite 700 Washington, DC 2005-3104

U.S.A.

Phone: +1 202 637 2440 Fax: +202 393 1667 Email: rlivingston@ahi.org

Mr Dennis L. ERPELDING

Manager

Elanco Government Relations, Public Affairs and

Communications Elanco Animal Health 2001 West Main Street

P.O. Box 708

Greenfield, IN 46140, USA Phone: + 317-276-2721 Fax: +317 433-6353

Email: erpelding_dennis_l@lilly.com

Dr. Olivier ESPEISSE Corporate Affairs Manager ELANCO Animal Health Research and Development

Stoofstraat 52

1000 Brussels (Belgium) Phone: +32-476 666704

Email: espeisse_olivier@lilly.com

Mr Ludwig KLOSTERMANN Head, Policy and Issues Management

BAYER HEALTHCARE AG

Animal Health Division-Strategy and Business

Development

Mittelstr.11-13, Building 4845

40789 Monheim Germany

Phone: +49 2173 383861 Fax: +49 2173 382188

Email: ludwig.kostermann@bayerhealth.com

Mrs Bertha GINER Circuito del Pojron 50

Colonia Residencial La Hacienda

Torreon, Coahuila 27276 Mexico

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Professor Eunice TAYLOR

Centre Director

International Federation of Environmental Health,

Phone: +0161 278 2660 Email: e.taylor@salford.ac.uk

Mr Kevin KANE

International Federation of Environmental Health,

Manchester United Kingdom

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF AGRICULTURAL PRODUCERS FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE DES PRODUCTEURS AGRICOLES FEDERACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE PRODUCTORES AGRÍCOLAS

Ms Fabienne DERRIEN

Policy Officer

International Federation of Agricultural Producers

60 rue St Lazare 75009 Paris France

Phone: +33 1 45260553 Fax: +33 1 48747212

Email: FabienneDerrien@ifap.org

Mr Nils FARNET

Consultant

International Federation of Agricultural Producers

60 rue St Lazare 75009 Paris

Phone: +33 1 45260553 Fax: +33 1 48747212

Email: nils.farnert@swipnet.se

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF FRUIT JUICE PRODUCERS FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE DES PRODUCTEURS DE JUS DE FRUITS FEDERACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE LOS PRODUCTORES DE JUGOS DE FRUITAS

Mr Paul ZWIKER

International Federation of Fruit Juice Producers

(IFU)

23, Boulevard des Capucines

75002 PARIS

France

Phone: +33 1 47428280 Fax: +33 1 4742 82 81

Email: if u@ifu-fruit juice.com/zwiker@bluewin.ch

Mrs Elisabetta ROMEO-VAREILLE

International Federation of Fruit Juice Producers

(IFU

23, Boulevard des Capucines

75002 PARIS

France

Phone: +332 474428280 Fax: +331 47428281 Email: ifu@fruitjuice.com

INTERNATIONAL FEED INDUSTRY FEDERATION ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE D'ALIMENTATION ANIMALE

Mr Roger GILBERT

Secretary General

International feed Industry Federation

214 Prestbury Rod Cheltenham GLOS GL 52 3ER United Kingdom

Phone: +44 1242 267702 Fax: +44 1242 267701 Email: roger.gilbert@ifif.org

INTERNATIONAL FROZEN FOODS ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONALE DES

DENRÉES CONGELÉES ASOCIACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE ALIMENTOS

CONGELADOS

Mr Robert GARFIELD

Senior Vice President International Frozen Food association

2000 Corporate Ridge Suite 1000

McLean, Virginia, USA 22102

Phone: +703 821 0770 Fax: +703 821 1350 Email: rgarfield@affi.com

INTERNATIONAL GLUTAMATE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE COMITÉ INTERNATIONALE TECHNIQUE DE L'ACIDE GLUTAMIQUE

Dr. Takeshi KIMURA

Chief Executive Officer

International Glutaminate Technical Committee

Hatchobori 3-9-5, Chuo-ku

Tokyo 104-0032

Japan

Phone: +81 (0)803258 1900 Fax: +81 (0)35250 8403

Email: takeshi_kimura@e-igtc.org

INTERNATIONAL NUT COUNCIL

Mrs Julie ADAMS

Member of the Scientific Committee

International Nut Council

Calle Boule 2 43201 Reus

Spain

Phone: +34 977 331416 Fax: +34 977 315028

Email: goretti.guasch@treenuts.org/

jadams@almondboard.com

Mr Giuseppe CALCAGNI

Chairman

International Nut Council Scientific Committee

International Nut Council

Calle Boule 2 43201 Reus Spain

Phone: +34 977 331416 Fax: +34 977 315028

Email: giuseppe.calcagni@besanagroup.com

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR STANDARDIZATION ORGANISATION INTERNATIONALE DE NORMALISATION ORGANIZACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE NORMALIZACIÓN

Mr Kevin MCKINLEY

Deputy Secretary-General

International Organization for Standardization

1 rue de Varembé 1211 Genève 20 Phone: +41 22 7490251 Fax: +41 227494349 Email: mckinley@iso.org

Ms Pauline JONES

Technical Programme Manager

International Organization for Standardization

1 rue de Varembé 1211 Genève 20 Phone: +41 22 7490288 Fax: +41 22 7494349 Email: jones@iso.org

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF THE FLAVOUR INDUSTRY ORGANISATION INTERNATIONALE DE L'INDUSTRIE DES PRODUITS AROMATIQUES ORGANIZACIÓN INTERNACIONAL DE LA INDUSTRIA AROMÁTIC

Mr Thierry CACHET Scientific Director

International Organization of the Flavour Industry

Square Marie Louise 49 B-1000 Brussels Belgium

Phone: +32 2 2389902 Fax: +32 2300265

Email: secretariat@iofiorg.org

INTERNATIONAL SEED FEDERATION FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE DU COMMERCE DES SEMENCES

Ms Radha RANGANATHAN

Technical Director

International Seed Federation 7 Chemin du Reposoir 1260 Nyon, Switzerland Phone: +41 22 3654420

Fax: +41 22 3654421 Email: isf@worldseed.org

INTERNATIONAL SPECIAL DIETARY FOODS INDUSTRIES FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE DES INDUSTRIES DES ALIMENTS DIÉTÉTIQUES

Ms Andrée BRONNER

Secretary-General

ISDI

194 rue de Rivoli F-75001 Paris

Phone: +33 1 53 458787 Fax: +331 53 458780

Email: andree.bronner@isdifederation.org

Ms Amandine DEVERGIES

Scientific and Regulatory Affairs

ISDI

194 rue de Rivoli F-75001 Paris

Phone: +33 1 53 458787 Fax: +33 1 53 458780

Email: amandine.devergies@isdifederation.oeg

Mr Peter VAN DAEL

ISDI

194 rue de Rivoli F-75001 Paris

Phone: +33 1 53 458787 Fax: +33 1 53 458780

Email: andree.bronner@ isdifederation.org

NATIONAL HEALTH FEDERATION

Mr Paul Anthony TAYLOR

Vice Chairman

National Health Federation

P.O. Box 688

Monrovia, California 91017

U.S.A

Phone: +1 626 357 2181 Fax: +1 626 303 0642

Email: contact-us@thenhf.com

Ms Stefanie GROENEFELD National Health Federation

P.O. Box 688

Monrovia, California 91017

U.S.A

Phone: +1 626 357 2181 Fax: +1 626 303 0642

WORLD SUGAR RESEARCH ORGANIZATION ORGANISATION MONDIALE DE RECHERCHE SUR LE SUCRE

Ms Mary HARRINGTON Assistant to the Director-General World Sugar Research Organization P.O. Box 50134

WORLD VETERINARY ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION MONDIALE VÉTÉRINAIRE ASOCIACIÓN MUNDIAL VETERINARIA

Prof. Dr. Leon RUSSELL World Veterinary Association 12 rue de Prony

Paris

Phone: +1 979 845 3517/1 979 776 8506

Fax: +1 979 847 8981

Email: ihrdvm@verizon.net/lrussell@cvm.tamu.edu

Phone: +44 (0) 20 7821 6800

Fax: +44 (0) 20 7834 4137

Email: info@wsro.org

SECRETARIAT SECRÉTARIAT SECRETARÍA

Dr. Kazuaki MIYAGISHIMA Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracolla 00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 54390 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

Email: kazuaki.miyagishima@fao.org

Ms Selma H. DOYRAN Senior Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 55826 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 Email: selma.doyran@fao.org

Mr Tom HEILANDT

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

Senior Food Standards Officer

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 54384 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 Email: tom.heilandt@fao.org Ms Noriko ISEKI

Senior Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 53195 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 Email: noriko.iseki@fao.org

Dr Jeronimas MASKELIUNAS

Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 53967 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

Email: jeronimas.maskeliunas@fao.org

Ms Gracia BRISCO

Food Standards Officer

Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracolla

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 52700 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 Email: gracia.brisco@fao.org

Ms Verna CAROLISSEN Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracolla 00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 55629 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

Email: verna.carolissen@fao.org

Mr M. KUSUKAWA Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 54790 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

LEGAL COUNSEL **CONSEILLER JURIDIQUE** ASESOR JURÍDICO

Mr Antonio TAVARES Legal Counsel Legal Office Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 55132 Fax: +39 06 570 54408

Email: antonio.tavares@fao.org

Ms Egle GRANZIERA Legal Officer World Health Organization (WHO) 20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland

Phone: +41 22 791 3680 Fax: +41 22 791 2111 Email: granziera@who.int Dr. Steve SOLOMON Principal Legal Officer World Health Organization (WHO) 20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Phone: +41 22 791 3826

Fax: +41 22 791 2111 Email: solomons@who.int

FAO PERSONNEL PERSONNEL DE LA FAO PERSONAL DE LA FAO

Dr Kraisid TONTISIRIN Director Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 53330 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

Email: kraisid.tontisirin@fao.org

Mr Ezzeddine BOUTRIF Chief, Food Quality and Standards Service Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 56156 Fax: +39 06 570 54593

Email: ezzeddine.boutrif@fao.org

Dr Maria de Lourdes COSTARRICA

Senior Officer

Food Quality Liaison Group

Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 56060 Fax: +39 06 570 5459

Email: lourdes.costarrica@fao.org

Dr. Maya PINEIRO Senior Officer

Food Control and Consumer Protection Group Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 53308 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 Email: maya.pineiro@fao.org Mr Julius JACKSON Project Officer

Food Quality and Standards Service Nutrition and Consumer Protection Division Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00100

Rome Italy

Phone: +39 06 5705 3653 Fax: +39 06 5705 4593 Email: Julius.Jackson@fao.org

Mr Andrew SPEEDY Animal Production Service

Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Viale delle Terme di Caracalla

00100 Rome

Italy

Phone: +39 06 570 52425 Email: Andrew.speedy@fao.org

WHO PERSONNEL PERSONNEL DE L'OMS PERSONAL DE LA OMS

Ms Susanne WEBER-MORSDORF

Assistant Director-General

Sustainable Development and Healthy Environments

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 2899 Fax: +41 22 791 4725

Email: webermosdorfs@who.int

Dr. Jorgen SCHLUNDT

Director

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 3445 Fax: +41 22 791 4807 Email: schlundtj@who.int

Dr. Denise COSTA COITINHO

Director

Nutrition for Health and Development World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 2809 Fax: +41 22 791 2809 Email: coitinhod@who.int Dr. Margaret MILLER

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 1979 Fax: +41 22 791 4807 Email: millerm@who.int

Dr. Gerald MOY

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 3698 Fax: +41 22 791 4807 Email: moyg@who.int

Mrs Françoise FONTANNAZ

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases (FOS)

World Health Organization 20 avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 791 3697 Fax: +41 22 7914807

Email: fontannazf@who .int

Dr. Patience MENSAH

Regional Adviser for Food Safety WHO Regional Office for Africa

BP 06, Brazzaville Republic of Congo Phone: +47 241 39775 Fax: +47 241 390501/3 Email: mensahp@afro.who.int

Dr. Genaro W. GARCIA

Veterinary Public Health Adviser

Pan American Centre for Food and Mouth Disease

(PANAFTOSA)

WHO Regional Office for the Americas

Phone: + 001 202 974 3191 Fax: +001 202 974 3331 Email: garciage@paho.org

Dr. Mohamed ELMI

Regional Adviser for Food and Chemical Safety WHO Regional Office for the Eastern Mediterranean

Phone: +00202 2765384 Fax: +00202 670 2492 Email: elmin@emro.who.int

Mr François Xavier MESLIN

Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27

Switzerland

Phone: +22.791.2575 Fax: 22.791.4807 Email: meslinf@who.int

Ms Awa AIDARA-KANE

Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27

Switzerland

Phone: +22.791.2403 Fax: +22.791.4807

Email: aidarakanea@who.int

Mr Peter BRAAM

Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Phone: +22.791.4204

Fax: +22.791.4807 Email: benembarekp@who.int Dr. Claudia STEIN

Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne Diseases

Sustainable Development and Healthy Environments

(SDE)

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland

Phone: +22.791.3234 Fax: +22.791.4807 Email: steinc@who.int

Ms Saskia HENDRIKS

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 7914235 Fax: +41 22 7914807 Email: hendrikss@who.int

Ms Catherine MUHOLAND

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Phone: +41 22 7914235 Fax: +41 22 7914807 Email: muholandc@who.int

Ms Angelika TRITSCHER

Scientist

Sustainable Development and Health Environments

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Phone: +22.791. 3569

Fax: +22.791

Email: tritschera@who.int

Ms Jenny BISHOP

Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne

Diseases (FOS)

World Health Organization (WHO)

20 Avenue Appia CH-1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland

Phone: +41 22.791.4235 Fax: +41 22.791.4807 Email: bishopj@who.int

APPENDIX II

AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

DURATION OF THE TERM OF OFFICE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

(New text appear in bold)

RULE III OFFICERS

1. The Commission shall elect a Chairperson and three Vice-Chairpersons from among the representatives, alternates and advisers (hereinafter referred to as "delegates") of the Members of the Commission; it being understood that no delegate shall be eligible without the concurrence of the head of his delegation. They shall be elected at each session and shall hold office from the end of the session at which they were elected until the end of the following regular session. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons may remain in office only with the continuing endorsement of the respective Member of the Commission of which they were a delegate at the time of election. The Directors-General of FAO and WHO shall declare a position vacant when advised by the Member of the Commission that such endorsement has ceased. The Chairperson and the Vice-Chairpersons shall be eligible for re-election but after having served two consecutive terms shall be incligible to hold such office for the next succeeding term twice, provided that by the end of their second term of office they have not served for a period of more than two years.

RULE IV COORDINATORS

2. Appointment of Coordinators shall be made exclusively on the proposal of a majority of the Members of the Commission which constitute the region or group of countries concerned. Coordinators shall hold office from the end of the session of the Commission at which they were appointed until not later than the end of the third succeeding regular session, the precise term being determined by the Commission in each instance. After having served two consecutive terms, the Coordinators shall be ineligible to hold such office for the next succeeding term. In principle, they shall be nominated at each session of the relevant Coordinating Committee established under Rule XI.1(b)(ii), and appointed at the following regular session of the Commission. They shall hold office from the end of this session. Coordinators may be reappointed for a second term. The Commission shall make such arrangements as may be necessary in order to ensure continuity in the functions of the Coordinators.

RULE V EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1. The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons of the Commission and the Coordinators appointed on the basis of Rule IV together with seven further members elected by the Commission at regular sessions from among the Members of the Commission, one each coming from the following geographic locations: Africa, Asia, Europe, Latin America and the Caribbean, Near East, North America, South West Pacific. Not more than one delegate from any one country shall be a member of the Executive Committee. Members elected on a geographic basis shall hold office from the end of the session at which they were elected until the end of the second succeeding regular session and shall be eligible for reelection **if they have not served for more than two years in their current term**, but after having served two consecutive terms shall be ineligible to hold such office for the next succeeding term.

(Secretariat to take care of possible consequential changes)

APPENDIX III

AMENDMENTS TO THE PROCEDURAL MANUAL

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROCEDURES FOR THE ELABORATION OF CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS AND TO THE GUIDELINES ON THE CONDUCT OF MEETINGS OF CODEX COMMITTEES AND AD HOC INTERGOVERNMENTAL TASK FORCES

PROCEDURES FOR THE ELABORATION OF CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS

PART 3. UNIFORM PROCEDURE FOR THE ELABORATION OF CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS

Step 8

The draft standard is submitted through the Secretariat to the Executive Committee for critical review and to the Commission, together with any written proposals received from Members and interested international organizations for amendments at Step 8, with a view to its adoption as a Codex standard. In taking any decision at this step, the Commission will give due consideration to the outcome of the critical review and to any comments that may be submitted by any of its Members regarding the implications which the draft standard or any provisions thereof may have for their economic interests. In the case of Regional standards, all Members and interested international organizations may present their comments, take part in the debate and propose amendments but only the majority of Members of the region or group of countries concerned attending the session can decide to amend and adopt the draft.

PART 4. UNIFORM ACCELERATED PROCEDURE FOR THE ELABORATION OF CODEX STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS

Step 5

In the case of standards identified as being subject to an accelerated elaboration procedure, the **proposed** draft standard is submitted through the Secretariat to the Executive Committee for critical review and to the Commission, together with any written proposals received from Members and interested international organizations for amendments, with a view to its adoption as a Codex standard. In taking any decision at this step, the Commission will give due consideration to **the outcome of the critical review and to** any comments that may be submitted by any of its Members regarding the implications which the proposed draft standard or any provisions thereof may have for their economic interests. **In the case of Regional standards, all Members and interested international organizations may present their comments, take part in the debate and propose amendments but only the majority of Members of the region or group of countries concerned attending the session can decide to amend and adopt the proposed draft.**

GUIDE TO THE CONSIDERATION OF STANDARDS AT STEP 8 OF THE PROCEDURE FOR THE ELABORATION OF CODEX STANDARDS INCLUDING CONSIDERATION OF ANY STATEMENTS RELATING TO ECONOMIC IMPACT

1. In order:

- (a) to ensure that the work of the Codex committee concerned is not made less valuable by the passage of an insufficiently considered amendment in the Commission;
- (b) at the same time to provide scope for significant amendments to be raised and considered in the Commission;
- (c) to prevent, as far as practicable, lengthy discussion in the Commission on points that have been thoroughly argued in the Codex committee concerned;
- (d) to ensure, as far as practicable, that delegations are given sufficient warning of amendments so that they may brief themselves adequately,

amendments to Codex standards at Step 8 should, as far as practicable, be submitted in writing, although amendments proposed in the Commission would not be excluded entirely, and the following procedure should be employed:

- 2. When Codex standards are distributed to Member Countries prior to their consideration by the Commission at Step 8, the Secretariat will indicate the date by which proposed amendments must be received; this date will be fixed so as to allow sufficient time for such amendments to be in the hands of governments not less than one month before the session of the Commission.
- 3. Governments should submit amendments in writing by the date indicated and should state that they had been previously submitted to the appropriate Codex committee with details of the submission of the amendment or should give the reason why the amendment had not been proposed earlier, as the case may be.
- 4. When amendments are proposed during a session of the Commission, without prior notice, to a standard which is at Step 8, the Chairperson of the Commission, after consultation with the chairperson of the appropriate committee, or, if the chairperson is not present, with the delegate of the chairing country, or, in the case of subsidiary bodies which do not have a chairing country, with other appropriate persons, shall rule whether such amendments are substantive.
- 5. If an amendment ruled as substantive is agreed to by the Commission, it shall be referred to the appropriate Codex committee for its comments and, until such comments have been received and considered by the Commission, the standard shall not be advanced beyond Step 8 of the Procedure.
- 6. It will be open to any Member of the Commission to draw to the attention of the Commission any matter concerning the possible implications of a draft standard for its economic interests, including any such matter which has not, in that Member's opinion, been satisfactorily resolved at an earlier step in the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards. All the information pertaining to the matter, including the outcome of any previous consideration by the Commission or a subsidiary body thereof should be presented in writing to the Commission, together with any draft amendments to the standard which would in the opinion of the country concerned, take into account the economic implications. In considering statements concerning economic implications the Commission should have due regard to the purposes of the Codex Alimentarius concerning the protection of the health of consumers and the ensuring of fair practices in the food trade, as set forth in the General Principles of the Codex Alimentarius, as well as the economic interests of the Member concerned. It will be open to the Commission to take any appropriate action including referring the matter to the appropriate Codex committee for its comments.

GUIDE TO THE PROCEDURE FOR THE REVISION AND AMENDMENT OF CODEX STANDARDS

- 1.- 2. [no change]
- 3. The procedure for amending or revising a Codex standard is would be as laid down in paragraphs 8 5 and 6 of the Introduction to the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts.
- 4. [no change]

GUIDELINES ON THE CONDUCT OF MEETINGS OF CODEX COMMITTEES AND AD HOC INTERGOVERNMENTAL TASK FORCES

REPORTS

[...]

The Joint FAO/WHO Secretariat should ensure that, as soon as possible and in any event not later than one month after the end of the session, copies of the final report, as adopted in the languages of the Committee, are sent to all **members and observers of the Commission** participants, and all Codex Contact Points.

Circular Letters should be attached to the report, as required, requesting comments on Proposed Draft or Draft Standards or Related Texts at Step 5, 8 or Step 5 (Accelerated), with the indication of the date by which comments or proposed amendments must be received in writing, so as to allow such comments to be considered by the Commission.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE ON FOOD ADDITIVES AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTAMINANTS IN FOODS

Codex Committee on Food Additives

Terms of reference:

- (a) to establish or endorse permitted maximum levels for individual food additives;
- (b) to prepare priority lists of food additives for risk assessment by the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives;
- (c) to assign functional classes to individual food additives;
- (d) to recommend specifications of identity and purity for food additives for adoption by the Commission;
- (e) to consider methods of analysis for the determination of additives in food; and
- (f) to consider and elaborate standards or codes for related subjects such as the labelling of food additives when sold as such.

Codex Committee on Contaminants in Foods

Terms of reference:

- (a) to establish or endorse permitted maximum levels or guidelines levels for contaminants and naturally occurring toxicants in food and feed;
- (b) to prepare priority lists of contaminants <u>and naturally occurring toxicants</u> for risk assessment by the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives;
- (c) to consider methods of analysis and sampling for the determination of contaminants <u>and naturally</u> occurring toxicants in food and feed;
- (d) to develop consider and elaborate standards or codes of practice for related subjects; and
- (e) to consider other matters assigned to it by the Commission in relation to contaminants <u>and naturally occurring toxicants</u> in food and feed.

AMENDMENT TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE ON FOOD HYGIENE

- (a) to (f) [no change]
- (g) to consider microbiological risk management matters in relation to food hygiene, including food irradiation, and in relation to the risk assessment of FAO and WHO.

REVISED CRITERIA FOR PRIORITIZATION PROCESS OF COMPOUNDS FOR EVALUATION BY JMPR

1. GENERAL CRITERIA

1.1 Criteria for Inclusion of Compounds on the Priority List

Before a pesticide can be considered for the Priority List it:

- i must be registered for use in a member country;
- ii must be available for use as a commercial product;
- iii must not have been already accepted for consideration; and
- iv must give rise to residues in or on a food or feed commodity moving in international trade, the presence of which is (or may be) a matter of public health concern and thus create (or have the potential to create) problems in international trade.

1.2 Criteria for Selecting Food Commodities for which Codex MRLs or EMRLs Should Be Established

The commodity for which the establishment of a Codex MRL or EMRL is sought should be such that it may form a component in international trade. A higher priority will be given to commodities that represent a significant proportion of the diet.

Note

Before proposing a pesticide/commodity for prioritization, it is recommended that governments check if the pesticide is already in the Codex system. Pesticide/commodity combinations that are already included in the Codex system or under consideration are found in a working document prepared for and used as a basis of discussion at each Session of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues. Consult the document of the latest session to see whether or not a given pesticide has already been considered.

2. CRITERIA FOR PRIORITISATION

2.1 New Chemicals

When prioritizing new chemicals for evaluation by the JMPR, the Committee will consider the following criteria:

- 1. If the chemical has a reduced acute and/or chronic toxicity risk to humans compared with other chemicals in its classification (insecticide, fungicide, herbicide);
- 2. The date when the chemical was nominated for evaluation;
- 3. Commitment by the sponsor of the compound to provide supporting data for review with a firm date for data submission;
- 4. The availability of regional/national reviews and risk assessments, and coordination with other regional/national lists; and
- 5. Allocating priorities to new chemicals, so that at least 50% of evaluations are for new chemicals, if possible.

Note

In order to satisfy the criterion that the proposed new chemical is a "safer" or "reduced risk" replacement chemical, the nominating country is required to provide:

- i the name(s) of the chemicals for which the proposed chemical is likely to be an alternative;
- ii a comparison of the acute and chronic toxicities of the proposed chemical with other chemicals in its classification (insecticide, fungicide, herbicide);
- iii a summary of acute and chronic dietary exposure calculations encompassing the range of diets considered by CCPR; and
- iv other relevant information to support classification of the proposed chemical as a safer alternative chemical.

2.2 Periodic Re-Evaluation

When prioritizing chemicals for periodic re-evaluation by the JMPR, the Committee will consider the following criteria:

- 1. If the intake and/or toxicity profile indicate some level of public health concern;
- 2. Chemicals that have not been reviewed toxicologically for more than 15 years and/or not having a significant review of maximum residue limits for 15 years;
- 3. The year the chemical is listed in the list for Candidate Chemicals for Periodic Re-evaluation –Not Yet Scheduled;
- 4. The date that data will be submitted;
- 5. Whether the CCPR has been advised by a national government that the chemical has been responsible for trade disruption;
- 6. If there is a closely related chemical that is a candidate for periodic re-evaluation that can be evaluated concurrently; and
- 7. The availability of current labels arising from recent national re-evaluations.

2.3 Evaluations

When prioritizing proposed toxicological or residue evaluations by the JMPR the Committee will consider the following criteria:

- 1. The date the request was received;
- 2. Commitment by the sponsor to provide the required data for review with a firm date of submission;
- 3. Whether the data is submitted under the 4-year rule for evaluations; and
- 4. The nature of the data to be submitted, and the reason for its submission; for example, a request from CCPR.

Note:

Where a pesticide has already been evaluated by the JMPR and MRLs, EMRLs or GLs have been established, new evaluations may be initiated if one or more of the following situations arise:

i New toxicological data becomes available to indicate a significant change in the ADI or ARfD.

- ii The JMPR may note a data deficiency in a Periodic Re-evaluation or New Chemical evaluation. In response, national governments or other interested parties may pledge to supply the information to the appropriate Joint Secretary of the JMPR with a copy for consideration by the CCPR. Following scheduling in the JMPR tentative schedule, the data should be submitted subsequently to the appropriate Joint Secretary of the JMPR.
- iii The CCPR may place a chemical under the four-year rule, in which case the government or industry should indicate support for the specific MRLs to the FAO Joint Secretary of the JMPR. Following scheduling in the JMPR tentative schedule, any data in support of maintenance of the MRL(s) would be submitted to the FAO Joint Secretary of the JMPR.
- iv A government member may seek to expand the use of an existing Codex chemical: that is, obtain MRLs for one or more new commodities where some MRLs already exist for other commodities. Such requests should be directed to the FAO Joint Secretary of the JMPR and submitted for consideration by the CCPR. Following scheduling in the JMPR tentative schedule, the data would be submitted to the FAO Joint Secretary of the JMPR.
- v A government member may seek to review a MRL due to a change in GAP. For example a new GAP may necessitate a larger MRL. In this case the request should be made to the FAO Joint Secretary with a copy for consideration by the Committee. Following scheduling in the JMPR tentative schedule, the data would be submitted to the FAO Joint Secretary of the JMPR.
- vi The CCPR may request a clarification or reconsideration of a recommendation from the JMPR. In such cases the relevant Joint Secretary will schedule the request for the next JMPR.
- vii A serious public health concern may emerge in relation to a particular pesticide for which MRLs exist. In such cases government members should notify the WHO Joint Secretary of the JMPR promptly and provide appropriate data to the WHO Joint Secretary.

THE USE OF ANALYTICAL RESULTS: SAMPLING PLANS, RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE ANALYTICAL RESULTS, THE MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY, RECOVERY FACTORS AND PROVISIONS IN CODEX STANDARDS

(To be included in the Codex Procedural Manual at the end of the sections on methods of analysis and sampling in the *Guidelines for the Inclusion of Specific Provisions in Codex Standards and Related Texts*)

ISSUES INVOLVED

There are a number of analytical and sampling considerations which prevent the uniform implementation of legislative standards. In particular, different approaches may be taken regarding sampling procedures, the use of measurement uncertainty and recovery corrections.

At present there is no official guidance on how to interpret analytical results in the framework of Codex. Significantly different decisions may be taken after analysis of the "same sample". For example some countries use an "every-item-must-comply" sampling regime, others use an "average of a lot" regime, some deduct the measurement uncertainty associated with the result, others do not, some countries correct analytical results for recovery, others do not. This interpretation may also be affected by the number of significant figures included in any commodity specification.

It is essential that analytical results be are interpreted in the same way if there is to be harmonization in the framework of Codex.

It is stressed that this is not an analysis or sampling problem as such but an administrative problem which has been highlighted as the result of recent activities in the analytical sector, most notably the development of International Guidelines on the Use of Recovery Factors when Reporting Analytical Results and various Guides prepared dealing with Measurement Uncertainty.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that when a Codex Commodity Committee discusses and agrees on a commodity specification and the analytical methods concerned, it states the following information in the Codex Standard:

1. Sampling Plans

The appropriate sampling plan, as outlined in the Guidelines for Sampling (CAC/GL 50-2004), Section 2.1.2 Guidelines on Sampling to control conformity of products with the specification. This should state:

- whether the specification applies to every item in a lot, or to the average in a lot, or the proportion non-conforming;
- the appropriate acceptable quality level to be used;
- the acceptance conditions of a lot controlled, in relation to the qualitative/quantitative characteristic determined on the sample.

2. Measurement Uncertainty

An allowance is to be made for the measurement uncertainty when deciding whether or not an analytical result falls within the specification. This requirement may not apply in situations when a direct health hazard is concerned, such as for food pathogens.

3. Recovery

Analytical results are to be expressed on a recovery corrected basis where appropriate and relevant, and when corrected it has to be so stated.

If a result has been corrected for recovery, the method by which the recovery was taken into account should be stated. The recovery rate is to be quoted wherever possible.

When laying down provisions for standards, it will be necessary to state whether the result obtained by a method used for analysis within conformity checks shall be expressed on an recovery-corrected basis or not..

4. Significant Figures

The units in which the results are to be expressed and the number of significant figures to be included in the reported result.

Amendments consequential to the splitting of the Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants into the Committee on Food Additives and the Committee on Contaminants in Foods

SECTION II: UNIFORM SYSTEM OF REFERENCES FOR CODEX DOCUMENTS

Current Text	New Text	
Food Additives and Contaminants - CX/FAC	Food Additives - CX/FA Contaminants in Foods - CX/CF	

SECTION II: FORMAT FOR CODEX COMMODITY STANDARDS

Current Text	New Text	
"The following provisions in respect of food additives and their specifications as contained in section of the Codex Alimentarius are subject to endorsement [have been endorsed] by the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants."	"The following provisions in respect of food additives and their specifications as contained in section of the Codex Alimentarius are subject to endorsement [have been endorsed] by the Codex Committee on Food Additives."	
"The following provisions in respect of contaminants, other than pesticide residues, are subject to endorsement [have been endorsed] by the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants."	"The following provisions in respect of contaminants, other than pesticide residues, are subject to endorsement [have been endorsed] by the Codex Committee on Contaminants in Food."	

SECTION II : RELATIONS BETWEEN COMMODITY COMMITTEES AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

Current Text	New Text
The Codex Committees on Food Labelling; Food Additives and Contaminants; Methods of Analysis and Sampling;	The Codex Committees on Food Labelling; Food Additives; Contaminants in Foods; Methods of Analysis and Sampling;
All provisions in respect of food additives (including processing aids) and contaminants contained in Codex commodity standards should be referred to the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants preferably after the Standards have been advanced to Step 5 of the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards or before they are considered by the Commodity Committee concerned at Step 7, though such reference should not be allowed to delay the progress of the Standard to the subsequent Steps of the Procedure.	All provisions in respect of food additives (including processing aids) and contaminants contained in Codex commodity standards should be referred to the Codex Committees on Food Additives or on Contaminants in Foods, as appropriate, preferably after the Standards have been advanced to Step 5 of the Procedure for the Elaboration of Codex Standards or before they are considered by the Commodity Committee concerned at Step 7, though such reference should not be allowed to delay the progress of the Standard to the subsequent Steps of the Procedure.
All provisions in respect of food additives will require to be endorsed by the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants, on the basis of technological justification submitted by the commodity committees and of the recommendations of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives concerning the safety-in-use (acceptable daily intake (ADI) and other restrictions) and an estimate of the potential and, where possible, the	All provisions in respect of food additives will require to be endorsed by the Codex Committee on Food Additives, on the basis of technological justification submitted by the commodity committees and of the recommendations of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives concerning the safety-in-use (acceptable daily intake (ADI) and other restrictions) and an estimate of the potential and, where possible, the actual intake of the food

Current Text	New Text	
actual intake of the food additives.	additives.	
When commodity standards are sent to governments for comment at Step 3, they should contain a statement that the provisions "in respect of food additives and contaminants are subject to endorsement by the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants and to incorporation into the General Standard for Food Additives or the General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods."	When commodity standards are sent to governments for comment at Step 3, they should contain a statement that the provisions "in respect of food additives and contaminants are subject to endorsement by the Codex Committees on Food Additives or on Contaminants in Food and to incorporation into the General Standard for Food Additives or the General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods."	
When an active commodity committee exists, proposals for the use of additives in any commodity standard under consideration should be prepared by the committee concerned, and forwarded to the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants for endorsement. When the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants decides not to endorse specific additives provisions (use of the additive, or level in the end-product), the reason should be clearly stated. The section under consideration should be referred back to the Committee concerned if further information is needed, or for information if the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants decides to amend the provision.	When an active commodity committee exists, proposals for the use of additives in any commodity standard under consideration should be prepared by the committee concerned, and forwarded to the Codex Committee on Food Additives for endorsement. When the Codex Committee on Food Additives decides not to endorse specific additives provisions (use of the additive, or level in the end-product), the reason should be clearly stated. The section under consideration should be referred back to the Committee concerned if further information is needed, or for information if the Codex Committee on Food Additives decides to amend the provision.	
When no active commodity committee exists, proposals for new additive provisions or amendment of existing provisions, should be forwarded directly by member countries to the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants.	When no active commodity committee exists, proposals for new additive provisions or amendment of existing provisions, should be forwarded directly by member countries to the Codex Committee on Food Additives.	
Methods of analysis included in Codex Advisory Food Additives Specifications, for the purpose of verifying the criteria of purity and identity of the food additive, need not be referred to the Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling for endorsement. The Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants is responsible for carrying out the steps of the Procedure.	Methods of analysis included in Codex Advisory Food Additives Specifications, for the purpose of verifying the criteria of purity and identity of the food additive, need not be referred to the Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling for endorsement. The Codex Committee on Food Additives is responsible for carrying out the steps of the Procedure.	

SECTION III

The Committees on Food Additives and on Contaminants in Foods are to follow up, as necessary, on the review of: (i) Risk Analysis Principles Applied by the Codex Committee on Food Additives and Contaminants, and (ii) CCFAC Policy for Exposure Assessment of Contaminants and Toxins in Foods or Food Groups.

APPENDIX IV

LIST OF STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS ADOPTED BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Part 1 - Standards and related texts adopted at Step 8

Standard and Related Text	Reference	Status
Standard for Instant Noodles (except Sections 4 and 9 – see Part 2 of this Appendix)	Annex to CL 2006/15-CPL	Adopted
Revision of the Preamble of the Codex General Standard for Food Additives	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix V	Adopted
Food additive provisions of the General Standard for Food Additives (GSFA)	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix VII & XI	Adopted with amendments (see para. 49)
Maximum Level for Lead in Fish	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXIV	Adopted*
Maximum Levels for Cadmium in marine bivalve molluscs (excluding oysters and scallops), in cephalopods (without viscera) and in polished rice	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXV	Adopted*
Amendment to Section 2 "Description" of the General Standard for Cheese	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix II	Adopted
Standard for a Blend of Evaporated Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix III	Adopted with amendments (see para. 82)
Standard for a Blend of Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat in Powdered Form	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix IV	Adopted with amendments (see para. 82)
Standard for a Blend of Sweetened Condensed Skimmed Milk and Vegetable Fat	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix V	Adopted with amendments (see para. 82)
Revision of the Standard for Whey Cheeses	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix VIII	Adopted
Revision of the Standard for Processed Cereal- Based Foods for Infants and Young Children	ALINORM 06/29/26, Appendix II	Adopted
Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides, including Dried Chili Pepper	ALINORM 06/29/24, Appendix II	Adopted
Guidelines on Estimation of Uncertainty of Results	ALINORM 06/29/24, Appendix IV	Adopted
Maximum Residue Limits for Veterinary Drugs	ALINORM 06/29/31, Appendix II	Adopted

-

^{*} For inclusion in the Codex General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods (CODEX STAN 193-1995)

Part 2 – Standards and related texts adopted at Step 5/8 (with omission of Steps 6 and 7)

Standard and Related Text	Reference	Status
Standard for Instant Noodles (Sections 4 and 9 – see Part 1 of this Appendix)	Annex to CL 2006/15-CPL	Adopted
Food additive provisions of the General Standard for Food Additives (GSFA)	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix VII & XI	Adopted with amendments (see para. 49)
Amendments to the International Numbering System for Food Additives	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XVI	Adopted
Specifications for the Identity and Purity of Food Additives arising from the 65 th JECFA meeting	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XVII	Adopted
Appendix to the Codex Code of Practice for the Prevention and Reduction of Aflatoxins Contamination in Tree Nuts – Additional Measures for the Prevention and Reduction of Aflatoxins Contamination in Brazil nuts (N08-2005)	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XX	Adopted
Code of Practice for the Prevention and Reduction of Dioxin and Dioxin-like PCB Contamination in Food and Feeds	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXVI	Adopted
Revision of the Guideline Levels for Radionuclides in Foods Contaminated Following a Nuclear or Radiological Emergency for Use in International Trade	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXXI	Adopted
Principles and Guidelines for Imported Food Inspection Based on Risk	ALINORM 06/29/30, Appendix II	Adopted
Principles for Traceability/Product Tracing as a Tool within a Food Inspection and Certification System	ALINORM 06/29/30, Appendix III	Adopted with amendments (see paras 72-73)
Standard for Dairy Fat Spreads	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XXIII	Adopted
Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides	ALINORM 06/29/24, Appendix III	Adopted

Part 3 – Standards and related texts adopted at Step 5 of the Accelerated Procedure

Standard and Related Text	Reference	Status
Amendment to the Guidelines on Nutrition Labelling: Definition of Trans Fatty Acids	ALINORM 06/29/22, Appendix V	Adopted

Part 4 – Other Standards and related texts submitted for adoption

Standard and Related Text	Reference	Status
Labelling provisions related to processing aids for inclusion in the Codex General Standard for Fruit Juices and Nectars	ALINORM 06/29/22 paras. 4-5	Adopted
Methods of analysis and sampling for inclusion in Codex standards and/or in CODEX STAN 234-1999	ALINORM 06/29/23, Appendix II	Adopted
Codex General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods, including Schedule I	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XVIII	Adopted
Amendment of the Annex to Table 3 of the GSFA	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix VIII	Adopted
Revision of the Descriptor of Food Category 13.6 "Food supplements" of the GSFA	ALINORM 06/29/12, Appendix XXXIII	Adopted
Amendment to the Standard for Whey Powders, inclusion of provision for benzoyl peroxide	ALINORM 06/29/11, para. 21	Adopted (see para. 177)
Amendment to the Food Hygiene Section in certain Standards for Milk and Milk Products	ALINORM 06/29/9C, paras 16-17 and Annex I	Adopted (see para. 178)
	CODEX STAN A-6 1978 (Codex General Standard for Cheese)	
Amendment to the reference in the Guidelines for the Assessment of the Competence of Testing Laboratories involved in the Import and Export Control of Foods (CAC/GL 27-1991)	ALINORM 06/29/23, paras 98-102.	Adopted (see para. 197)

APPENDIX V

LIST OF DRAFT STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS ADOPTED AT STEP 5 BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Part 1 – List of Standards and Related Texts adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 6 by the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Standards and Related Texts	Reference	Status
Draft revision of the Codex Class Names and the International Numbering System for Food Additives – CAC/GL 36 – 2003 (N07–2005)	ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 98 and Appendix XV	Adopted
Draft Maximum Level for Total Aflatoxins Almonds, Hazelnuts and Pistachios "ready to eat"	ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 132 and Appendix XXII	Adopted
Draft Maximum Levels for Tin in Canned Foods (other than beverages) and in Canned Beverages	ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 183 and Appendix XXVIII	Adopted
Draft Revised Standard for Infant Formula and Formulas for Special Medical Purposes Intended for Infants (Section B)	ALINORM 06/29/26, para. 126 and Appendix IV B	Adopted
Draft Guidelines for Settling Disputes over Analytical (Test) Results	ALINORM 06/29/23, para. 43 and Appendix III	Adopted
Draft Model Export Certificate for Milk and Milk Products	ALINORM 06/29/11, para. 143 and Appendix XXIV	Adopted
Draft MRLs for Residues of Pesticides	ALINORM 06/29/24 paras. 93 – 94; 134 – 135 and Appendix VI	Adopted
Draft MRLs for Colistin and Ractopamine	ALINORM 06/29/31, para. 77 and Appendix IV	Adopted
Draft Guidelines for the Design and Implementation of National Regulatory Food Safety Assurance Programmes Associated with the Use of Veterinary Drugs in Food Producing Animals	ALINORM 06/29/31, para. 86 and Appendix VII	Adopted

APPENDIX VI

LIST OF DRAFT STANDARDS HELD AT STEP 8 BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Part 1 – List of Codex Standards and Related Texts held at Step 8 by the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Standards and Related Texts	Reference	Status
Draft Revised Standard for Cheddar (C-1)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix VI	Held at Step 8 (see para. 88)
Draft Revised Standard for Danbo (C-3)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix VII	_

Part 2 – List of Codex Standards and Related Texts adopted at Step 5 and advanced to Step 8 by the Codex Alimentarius Commission

Standards and Related Texts	Reference	Status
Proposed draft Revised Standard for Edam (C-4)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix IX	
Draft Revised Standard for Gouda (C-5)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix X	
Draft Revised Standard for Havarti (C-6)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XI	
Draft Revised Standard for Samso (C-7)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XII	
Draft Revised Standard for Emmental (C-9)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XIII	
Draft Revised Standard for Tilsiter (C-11)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XIV	Held at Step 8
Draft Revised Standard for Saint-Paulin (C-13)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XV	(see para. 88)
Draft Revised Standard for Provolone (C-15)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XVI	
Draft Revised Standard for Cottage Cheese (C-16)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XVII	
Draft Revised Standard for Coulommiers (C-18)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XVIII	_
Draft Revised Standard for Cream Cheese (C-31)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XIX	_
Draft Revised Standard for Camembert (C-33)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XX	_
Draft Revised Standard for Brie (C-34)	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XXI	_
Draft Standard for Mozzarella	ALINORM 06/29/11, Appendix XXII	

APPENDIX VII

LIST OF STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS REVOKED BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Standard and Related Text	Reference	Status
Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides	ALINORM 06/29/24; paras 47 – 142 and Appendix VII	Revoked
List of Individual Codex Maximum Levels and Guideline Levels for Contaminants and Toxins	ALINORM 05/28/12, para. 124 and Appendix XVIII	Revoked
Food Additive Provisions of the GSFA	ALINORM 06/29/12, paras 63 and 81 and Appendices VII & XII	Revoked with the exception of Food Categories 02.2.1.2 Margarine and similar products, 13.1.1 – Infant formulae and 13.1.2 – Follow-up formulae in Appendices VII & XII

APPENDIX VIII

LIST OF STANDARDS AND RELATED TEXTS APPROVED AS NEW WORK BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Responsible Committee	Standard and Related Texts	Job Code
TFFBT	Proposed Draft Guideline for the Conduct of Food Safety Assessment of Foods derived from Recombinant-DNA Animals	N01-2006
TFFBT	Proposed Draft Annex to the Codex Guideline for the Conduct of Food Safety Assessment of Foods Derived from Recombinant-DNA Plants (CAC/GL 45-2003) regarding food safety assessment of foods derived from recombinant-DNA plants modified for nutritional or health benefits	N02-2006
CCFA	Guidelines for the Use of Flavourings	N03-2006
CCCF	Revision of the Preamble of the Codex General Standard for Contaminants and Toxins in Foods	N04-2006
CCCF	Code of Practice for the Prevention and Reduction of Ochratoxin A Contamination in Wine	N05-2006
CCCF	Code of Practice for the Reduction of Acrylamide in Food	N06-2006
CCCF	Code of Practice for the Reduction of Contamination of Food with PAH from Smoking and Direct Drying Processes	N07-2006
CCMMP	Amendment to the List of Additives of the Code Standard for Creams and Prepared Creams	N08-2006
CCPR	Priority List of Pesticides (New Pesticides and Pesticides under Periodic Review)	Ongoing
CCPR	Extension of the Work on the Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds	N09-2006
CCRVDF	Priority List of Veterinary Drugs Requiring Evaluation of Re- evaluation	Ongoing
CCFL	Proposed Draft Amendment to the Guidelines for Organically Produced Foods (Ethylene)	N10-2006
CCFL	Definition of advertising as related to Health and Nutrition Claims	N11-2006
CCMAS	Revision of <i>Principles for the Establishment or Selection of Codex</i> Sampling Procedures in the Procedural Manual	Procedure
CCMAS	Review of <i>Analytical Terminology for Codex Use</i> approved as new work by the 26 th Session of the Commissionto be transferred from the Procedural Manual to a Proposed Draft Guideline on Analytical Terminology	N12-2006

APPENDIX IX

LIST OF WORK DISCONTINUED BY THE TWENTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Responsible Committee	Standards and Related Texts	Reference
CCFAC	Discontinuation of work on draft and proposed draft Food Additive Provisions of the GSFA	ALINORM 06/29/12, para. 81 and Appendix XIII. Except for food additive provisions in Food Categories 2.2.1.2 – Margarine and similar products, 13.1.1 – Instant Formulae and 13.1.2 - Follow-up formulae (see para. 136)
CCPR	Proposed Draft Amendment to the Codex MRL Elaboration Procedure (in relation to the establishment of interim MRLs) (N11-2005)	ALINORM 06/29/24, paras. 203 - 210

APPENDIX X

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE *AD HOC* CODEX INTERGOVERNMENTAL TASK FORCE ON THE PROCESSING AND HANDLING OF QUICK FROZEN FOODS

Objectives

To finalize the International Code of Practice for the Processing and Handling of Quick Frozen Foods.

Terms of Reference

To resolve all outstanding issues including quality and safety provisions with a view to the advancement of the Code to Step 8.

Time frame

The Task Force shall complete its work within two (2) years, with one (1) Session of the Task Force.

APPENDIX XI

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE *AD HOC* CODEX INTERGOVERNMENTAL TASK FORCE ON ANTIMICROBIAL RESISTANCE

Objectives

To develop science based guidance, taking full account of its risk analysis principles and the work and standards of other relevant international Organizations, such as FAO, WHO and OIE. The intent of this guidance is to assess the risks to human health associated with the presence in food and feed including aquaculture and the transmission through food and feed of antimicrobial resistant microorganisms and antimicrobial resistance genes and to develop appropriate risk management advice based on that assessment to reduce such risk.

Terms of reference

To develop guidance on methodology and processes for risk assessment, its application to the antimicrobials used in human and veterinary medicine as provided by FAO/WHO through JEMRA, and in close cooperation with OIE, with subsequent consideration of risk management options. In this process work undertaken in this field at national, regional and international levels should be taken into account.

Time frame

The Task Force shall complete its work within four sessions, starting 2007.

APPENDIX XII

CURRENT CHAIRMANSHIP OF CODEX SUBSIDIARY BODIES

Subsidiary Bodies Established under Rule XI.1(b)(i)

Code	Subsidiary Body	Member Responsible	Status
CX 703	Codex Committee on Milk and Milk Products	New Zealand	Active
CX 708	Codex Committee on Cocoa Products and Chocolate	Switzerland	Sine die
CX 709	Codex Committee on Fats and Oils	United Kingdom	Active
CX 710	Codex Committee on Sugars	United Kingdom	Sine die
CX 711	Codex Committee on Food Additives	China	Active
CX 735	Codex Committee on Contaminants in Foods	The Netherlands	Active
CX 712	Codex Committee on Food Hygiene	United States of America	Active
CX 713	Codex Committee on Processed Fruits and Vegetables	United States of America	Active
CX 714	Codex Committee on Food Labelling	Canada	Active
CX 715	Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling	Hungary	Active
CX 716	Codex Committee on General Principles	France	Active
CX 718	Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues	China	Active
CX 719	Codex Committee on Natural Mineral Waters	Switzerland	Sine die
CX 720	Codex Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses	Germany	Active
CX 722	Codex Committee on Fish and Fishery Products	Norway	Active
CX 723	Codex Committee on Meat Hygiene	New Zealand	Sine die
CX 728	Codex Committee on Vegetable Proteins	Canada	Sine die
CX 729	Codex Committee on Cereals, Pulses and Legumes	United States of America	Sine die
CX 730	Codex Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods	United States of America	Active
CX 731	Codex Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables	Mexico	Active
CX 733	Codex Committee on Food Import and Export Certification and Inspection Systems	Australia	Active

Code)	Subsidiary Body	Member Responsible
Ad hoc Intergovernmental Task Force established by the 27th Session of the Commission			
CX	802	Ad hoc Codex Intergovernmental Task Force on Foods derived from Biotechnology	Japan
Ad hoc Intergovernmental Task Force established by the 29 th Session of the Commission			
CX	804	Ad hoc Codex Intergovernmental Task Force on Antimicrobial Resistance	Republic of Korea
CX	805	Ad hoc Codex Intergovernmental Task Force on the Processing and Handling of Quick Frozen Foods	Thailand

Subsidiary Bodies Established under Rule XI.1(b)(ii)

Code	Subsidiary Body	Member Responsible
CX 706	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Europe	Coordinator for Europe
CX 707	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Africa	Coordinator for Africa
CX 725	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Latin America and the Caribbean	Coordinator for Latin America and the Caribbean
CX 727	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Asia	Coordinator for Asia
CX 732	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for North America and the South West Pacific	Coordinator for North America and the South West Pacific
CX 734	FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for the Near East	Coordinator for the Near East